
�

�������������������������������� �� �

v1�2015�

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� London�Assembly�(Plenary)�

Date� Wednesday�2�December�2015�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Chamber,�City�Hall,�The�Queen's�
Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly�
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�

A�meeting�of�the�Assembly�will�be�held�to�deal�with�the�business�listed�below.�
�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�
Chair�of�the�London�Assembly�

Tony�Arbour�AM�
Deputy�Chairman�

� Tuesday�24�November�2015�
�
�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�4425;��
Email:�john.barry@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458.�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact:�Alison�Bell;�Telephone:�020�7983�5769;��
Email:�alison.bell@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458.��If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�
please�contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�the�end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�
�

Proper�Officer:�Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�
�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
London�Assembly�(Plenary)��
Wednesday�2�December�2015�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� The�Assembly�is�recommended�to:�

�
(a)� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;��
�
(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�
Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and��

�
(c)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�
which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�
of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�
Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�
action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�

�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�66)�
�
� The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�London�Assembly�

(Plenary)�meeting�held�on�4�November�2015�to�be�signed�by�the�Chair�as�a�correct�
record.��
�

� The�appendices�to�the�minutes�of�the�4�November�(Plenary)�meeting�(including�the�transcript�

of�the�question�and�answer�session�with�London�&�Partners)�are�attached�for�Members�and�

officers�only�but�are�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly���
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



�

4�
�

4 Question�and�Answer�Session�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�
Authority�(Pages�67�-�68)�

�
� Part�A:�

�

The�Assembly�will�put�questions�to�the�Chairman�of�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�

Authority,�Gareth�Bacon�AM,�and�the�Commissioner�for�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning,�

Ron�Dobson�CBE�QFSM,�on�the�policies�and�work�of�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�

Authority.�
�
Part�B:�
�
Motion�submitted�in�the�name�of�the�Chair:�
�
“That�the�Assembly�notes�the�answers�to�the�questions�asked.”��
�
�

5 Petitions�(Pages�69�-�72)�
�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�John�Barry,�john.barry@london.gov.uk,�tel:�020�7983�4425�

�

The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�receive�and�note�the�petitions�listed�at�

paragraph�4�of�the�report�and�to�decide�whether�to�refer�the�petitions,�and�if�so�

where�to,�and�to�seek�a�response�to�the�points�raised.�
�
�

6 Motions�(Pages�73�-�78)�
�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�John�Barry,�john.barry@london.gov.uk,�tel:�020�7983�4425�

The�Assembly�is�asked�to�consider�the�motions�submitted�by�Assembly�Members.�
�
�

7 Action�Taken�by�the�Chair�under�Delegated�Authority�(Pages�79�-�84)�
�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�John�Barry,�john.barry@london.gov.uk,�tel:�020�7983�4425�

�

The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�note�recent�action�taken�by�the�Chair�of�the�

Assembly,�Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM,�under�delegated�authority,�namely�not�to�hold�

a�confirmation�hearing�in�respect�of�the�proposed�reappointment�of�

Gareth�Bacon�AM�as�Chairman�of�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�

Authority�for�the�period�1�December�2O15�to�16�June�2016.�
�
�
�



�

5�
�

8 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�scheduled�meeting�of�the�London�Assembly�will�be�the�Mayor’s�Question�Time�

meeting�which�will�take�place�at�10.00am�on�Wednesday�16�December�2015�in�the�Chamber,�

City�Hall.��
�
�

9 Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�

�



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v7/2015�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 London
Assembly




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
2
December
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
Kemi�Badenoch�AM� �
Mayor�John�Biggs�AM� Mayor�of�Tower�Hamlets�(LB);�Member,�LLDC�Board�
Andrew�Boff�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�

Authorities�(Council�of�Europe)�
James�Cleverly�AM�MP� Member�of�Parliament�
Tom�Copley�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Deputy�Mayor;�Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�

London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP� Member�of�Parliament�
Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� �
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
LLDC�–�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation;�MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�

Page 2



        

�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�
knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�

was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�
namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�

would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�

decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�
make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�
from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�

disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�
at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�

out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-
line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�
the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�

are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�
the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�

hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�
relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�

regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�
any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications




4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�



5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

Page 3



        

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�
E-mail:� john.barry@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk�

MINUTES



�

Meeting:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Date:
 Wednesday
4
November
2015

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Chamber,
City
Hall,
The
Queen's


Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-
assembly/whole-assembly�
�
�
Present:

�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair)�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman)�

Gareth�Bacon�AM�

Kemi�Badenoch�AM�

Andrew�Boff�AM�

James�Cleverly�AM�MP�

Tom�Copley�AM�

Andrew�Dismore�AM�

Len�Duvall�AM�

Roger�Evans�AM�

Nicky�Gavron�AM�

Darren�Johnson�AM�

�

Jenny�Jones�AM�

Stephen�Knight�AM�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP�

Joanne�McCartney�AM�

Steve�O'Connell�AM�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�

Murad�Qureshi�AM�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�

Navin�Shah�AM�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�

Richard�Tracey�AM�

Fiona�Twycross�AM�

�

�
�

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1 An�apology�for�absence�was�received�from�Mayor�John�Biggs�AM. 
�
�

2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�



2.1 The�Assembly�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.
 





2.2 Resolved:�




That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
at
Item
2,


be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests.

�
�

3 Question
and
Answer
Session
-
London
&
Partners
(Item
3)�



Part
A:


�

3.1� The�Assembly�put�questions�to�Sir�Edward�Lister,�Chairman,�London�&�Partners,�and�Gordon�

Innes,�Chief�Executive,�London�&�Partners,�on�the�work�of�London�&�Partners.�

�

3.2� During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�the�Assembly�requested�the�following�additional�

information:�

• Further�details�of�which�countries�were�being�surveyed�as�part�of�the�long-term�strategy�

work�on�the�tourist�experience�in�London;�

• An�update�on�what�was�being�done�to�improve�broadband�connectivity�in�London�and�

details�of�London�&�Partners’�submission�to�the�Public�Accounts�Committee;�

• The�number�of�overseas�trade�missions�that�London�&�Partners�has�led�and�the�number�it�

indirectly�supported�overseas;�

• An�update�on�the�Royal�Albert�Dock�development�and�details�of�the�recent�contract�with�

Citic�Construction;�

• Progress�on�the�development�of�London�&�Partners�new�mobile�app;�

• An�analysis�of�the�impact�of�England’s�exit�from�the�2015�Rugby�World�Cup�at�the�group�

stage,�specifically�with�reference�to�the�impact�on�visitor�numbers�to�both�inner�and�outer�

London;�

• An�update�on�what�could�be�done�by�London�&�Partners,�in�conjunction�with�VisitEngland,�

to�encourage�boroughs�in�outer�London�to�improve�provision�of�bed�and�breakfast�and�

other�accommodation;�

• Further�information�on�how�London�&�Partners’�ten-year�tourist�strategy�would�seek�to�

balance�the�success�of�tourist�attractions�across�London;�

• Details�of�what�could�be�done�to�promote�the�Thames�as�a�route�to�reaching�outer�London�

attractions;�

Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

• An�update�on�progress�in�lobbying�Ministers�to�make�London�and�the�UK�more�open�to�

international�students,�particularly�on�changes�to�immigration�policy�concerning�post-

study�work�visa�issues;�

• An�update�on�the�research�work�being�undertaken�on�the�implications�of�a�British�exit�from�

the�European�Union�on�trade�deals�with�major�economies,�access�to�the�EU�market,�and�

impact�on�international�and�European�headquarters�functions;��

• Details�of�any�cost-benefit�analysis�used�to�inform�the�decision�to�withdraw�from�the�Tour�

de�France�Grand�Depart;�and�

• An�update�on�what�London�&�Partners�could�do�to�facilitate�the�promotion�of�the�

London�Living�Wage�in�the�hospitality�and�catering�industry�through�its�business�plan.�

�

3.3� The�record�of�the�questions�put�by�Assembly�Members�and�the�answers�given�is�attached�as�

Appendix
1.�

�

3.4� The�written�answers�to�those�questions�not�asked�at�the�meeting�are�attached�at�Appendix
2.�

�

Part
B:





3.5� The�Chair�formally�moved�the�motion�in�the�agenda,�namely:�

�

“That�the�Assembly�notes�the�answers�to�the�questions�asked.”�

�

3.6� Resolved:






 The
answers
to
the
questions
asked
be
noted.

�
�

4 Action
Taken
by
the
Chair
Under
Delegated
Authority
and
Outcome
of

Confirmation
Hearings
(Item
4)�



4.1� The�Assembly�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.
 �




4.2
 Resolved:


�

(a) That
the
action
taken
by
the
Chair
of
the
Assembly,
Jennette
Arnold
OBE
AM,


in
accordance
with
the
authority
delegated
to
her,
namely
to
agree
to
hold


Confirmation
Hearings
in
relation
to
the
proposed
appointment
of:
(i)
Sir


Merrick
Cockell
to
the
office
of
Chairman
of
the
London
Pensions
Fund


Authority;
and
(ii)
David
Edmonds
CBE
to
the
office
of
Chairman
of
the


London
Legacy
Development
Corporation,
and
to
ask
both
candidates
to


provide
a
CV
and
supporting
statement,
be
noted.





(b) That
the
decisions
of
the
Confirmation
Hearings
Committee,
further
to
its


meetings
held
on
20
May
2015
and
13
October
2015
and
as
set
out
at


Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

Appendices
2
and
5
to
the
report,
to
recommend
that
the
Mayor
should


proceed
with
his
proposed
appointments
to
those
offices,
be
noted.
�

�

(c) That
the
responses
from
the
Mayor
attached
at
Appendices
3
and
6
to
the


report
which
mark
the
end
of
the
Confirmation
Hearings
process
in
respect
of


the
appointments,
be
noted.�

�

(d) That
the
letter
attached
at
Appendix
4
to
the
report
from
the
Chair
of
the


Confirmation
Hearings
Committee
meeting
held
on
20
May
2015,
Valerie


Shawcross
CBE
AM,
to
Sir
Merrick
Cockell,
setting
out
issues
raised
during


the
confirmation
hearing
discussion,
which
has
been
copied
to
the
Chair
of


the
GLA
Oversight
Committee
for
follow-up
action
as
deemed
necessary,
be


noted.

�
�

5 Mayoral
Commitments
(Item
5)�



5.1� The�Assembly�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�
�
5.2� Resolved:�
�

That
the
commitments
made
by
the
Mayor,
Boris
Johnson
MP,
during
London


Assembly
(Mayor’s
Question
Time)
meetings
held
between
October
2014
and


October
2015
be
noted.

�
�

6 Future
Plenary
Meetings
(Item
6)�



6.1
 Resolved:


�

(a) That
the
Assembly,
under
section
61
of
the
Greater
London
Authority
Act


1999,
requires
the
attendance
of
Ron
Dobson
CBE
QFSM
(Commissioner
for


Fire
and
Emergency
Planning),
and
Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman,
London
Fire


and
Emergency
Planning
Authority)
at
the
2
December
2015
London
Assembly


(Plenary)
meeting,
for
which
notice
will
be
given
in
accordance
with
section


62
of
the
Greater
London
Authority
Act
1999
in
due
course,
to
answer


questions
in
relation
to
the
policies
and
work
of
the
London
Fire
and


Emergency
Planning
Authority.





(b) That
the
Assembly,
under
section
61
of
the
Greater
London
Authority
Act


1999,
requires
the
attendance
of
the
Mayor,
Boris
Johnson
MP
(in
his


capacity
as
Chairman
of
Transport
for
London)
and
Mike
Brown


(Commissioner,
Transport
for
London)
at
the
10
February
2016
London


Assembly
(Plenary)
meeting,
for
which
notice
will
be
given
in
accordance
with


Page 8



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

section
62
of
the
Greater
London
Authority
Act
1999
in
due
course,
to
answer


questions
in
relation
to
the
policies
and
work
of
Transport
for
London.

�
�

7 Petitions
(Item
7)�



7.1� The�Assembly�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

7.2�� Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�presented�a�petition�with�the�following�prayer:�

�

‘To�get�planning�permission�for�a�new�Whitgift�Centre,�Westfield�are�paying�Croydon�£15�

million.�TfL�want�to�spend�it�(+£9�million)�on�a�’Dingwall�Road�loop”�–�which�would�stop�trams�

short�of�most�shops.��

�

Our�trams�are�crowded.�Spend�the�money�instead�on�more�trams.�

�

We�the�undersigned�want�the�£24�million�cost�of�the�proposed�“Dingwall�Road�loop”�spent�

instead�on�more�trams�and�longer�trams�(and�longer�platforms�to�cope).’�

�

7.3
 Resolved:





That
the
petition
be
forwarded
to
the
Mayor,
as
Chairman
of
Transport
for
London,


for
a
response.


�

7.4�� Stephen�Knight�AM�presented�a�petition�with�the�following�prayer:�

�

‘We�call�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�work�with�TfL�and�Westminster�City�Council�to�remove�all�

motor�traffic�from�Oxford�Street,�introduce�a�zero�emission�shuttle�bus,�leading�to�full�

pedestrianisation�of�Oxford�Street�by�2020.’�

�

7.5
 Resolved:





That
the
petition
be
forwarded
to
the
Mayor,
as
Chairman
of
Transport
for
London,


for
a
response.

�
�

8 Motions
(Item
8)�



8.1 The�Assembly�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

8.2 During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�at�12.30pm�the�Chair�proposed,�and�it�was�agreed,�that�

Standing�Order�2.9B�be�suspended�to�extend�the�meeting�in�order�to�allow�the�remaining�

items�of�business�on�the�agenda�to�be�considered.�

�

Page 9



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

8.3 Darren�Johnson�AM�proposed�and�Andrew�Boff�AM�seconded�the�following�motion,�altered�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Order�3.6A�(1):�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�tragic�deaths�of�eight�people�cycling�in�London�so�far�this�year,�

seven�of�whom�were�killed�in�collisions�with�Heavy�Goods�Vehicles�(HGVs).��

�

Despite�positive�initiatives�led�by�the�Mayor,�TfL�and�the�MPS,�this�Assembly�believes�there�

are�still�too�many�dangerous�HGVs�on�London’s�roads.�

�

We�therefore�call�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�work�with�the�Government�and�commercial�

partners�to�implement�the�following�policies:�

• a�rush-hour�lorry�ban,�subject�to�the�completion�of�a�full�impact�assessment;�

• the�construction�industry�to�adopt�Construction�Logistics�and�Cyclist�Safety�(CLOCS)�

standards�across�the�board,�including�direct�vision�lorry�cabs,�including�a�commitment�

from�the�Mayor�to�make�direct�vision�lorry�cabs�compulsory�on�all�GLA�Group�contracts�

before�the�end�of�his�term�of�office;�

• confidential�reporting�of�bad�practice�to�be�rolled�out�to�all�HGV�drivers,�irrespective�of�

whether�their�employer�wants�to�take�part;�

• comprehensive�enforcement�so�that�rogue�operators�do�not�permit�unlicensed,�

untrained�lorry�drivers,�or�unsafe�vehicles,�to�operate�on�our�roads,�with�regular�

reporting�from�the�London�Freight�Enforcement�Partnership�against�an�aim�to�reduce�

commercial�vehicle�casualties.”�

�

8.4 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Darren�Johnson�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
notes
the
tragic
deaths
of
eight
people
cycling
in
London
so
far
this


year,
seven
of
whom
were
killed
in
collisions
with
Heavy
Goods
Vehicles
(HGVs).






Despite
positive
initiatives
led
by
the
Mayor,
TfL
and
the
MPS,
this
Assembly


believes
there
are
still
too
many
dangerous
HGVs
on
London’s
roads.





We
therefore
call
on
the
Mayor
of
London
to
work
with
the
Government
and


commercial
partners
to
implement
the
following
policies:


• a
rush-hour
lorry
ban,
subject
to
the
completion
of
a
full
impact
assessment;

• the
construction
industry
to
adopt
Construction
Logistics
and
Cyclist
Safety


(CLOCS)
standards
across
the
board,
including
direct
vision
lorry
cabs,


including
a
commitment
from
the
Mayor
to
make
direct
vision
lorry
cabs


compulsory
on
all
GLA
Group
contracts
before
the
end
of
his
term
of
office;


• confidential
reporting
of
bad
practice
to
be
rolled
out
to
all
HGV
drivers,

irrespective
of
whether
their
employer
wants
to
take
part;


• comprehensive
enforcement
so
that
rogue
operators
do
not
permit

unlicensed,
untrained
lorry
drivers,
or
unsafe
vehicles,
to
operate
on
our


Page 10



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

roads,
with
regular
reporting
from
the
London
Freight
Enforcement


Partnership
against
an
aim
to
reduce
commercial
vehicle
casualties.”


�

was�agreed�unanimously.�

�

8.5 Stephen�Knight�AM�proposed�and�Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�seconded�the�following�motion:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�recent�admission�by�Volkswagen,�the�German�carmaker,�that�it�has�

installed�‘defeat�devices’�–�software�designed�to�manipulate�emissions�test�results�–�in�11�

million�vehicles�worldwide,�of�which�1.2�million�are�in�the�UK.1��

��

This�Assembly�further�notes:�

��

i) the�failure�of�recent
European�vehicle�emissions�standards�(Euro�standards)
to�deliver�the�

anticipated�emissions�reductions;�and�

�

ii) the�results�of�TfL’s�recent�testing�of�Euro�6/VI�vehicles�using�London�drive�cycles�which�

found�that�a�number�of�Euro�6�passenger�cars�emit�several�times�more�NOx�than�some�

HGVs.2�

��

This�Assembly�remains�concerned�that�large�sections�of�the�capital�continue�to�exceed�both�

the�annual�mean�and�hourly�legal�limits�for�the�concentration�of�nitrogen�dioxide�(NO2)�and�

are�currently�projected�to�continue�doing�so�until�2025�at�the�earliest,�over�fifteen�years�after�

the�original�deadline�for�compliance.3�

��

This�Assembly�believes�that�the�Mayor�has�a�duty�to�review�his�current�policies�and�proposals�

in�light�of�the�emerging�scientific�evidence�on�the�performance�of�Euro�6�vehicles�under�real-

world�driving�conditions�and�our�increasing�knowledge�of�the�adverse�effects�of�air�pollution�

on�human�health.�

��

This�Assembly�therefore�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�review�the�planned�exhaust�emission�

standards�of�his�Ultra�Low�Emission�Zone�to�ensure�that�all�vehicles�driving�in�the�centre�of�the�

capital�in�2020�are�truly�ultra-low�or�zero�emission.”�

��

�

�

�

�

�������������������������������������������������
1See�comments�made�by�Paul�Willis,�Managing�Director�of�VW�UK,�appearing�before�the�House�of�Commons�Transport�

Select�Committee�on�Monday�12�October�2015.

2�TfL�Euro�6�emission�standard�testing:�https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/In-
service%20emissions%20performance%20of%20Euro%206VI%20vehicles%20WEBSITE%20COPY.pdf��
3�Draft�Air�Quality�Plan�for�the�achievement�of�EU�air�quality�limit�value�for�nitrogen�dioxide�(NO2)�in�Greater�London�
Urban�Area:�http://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/no2-consultation-2015/AQplans_UK0001.pdf 

Page 11



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

8.6 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
notes
the
recent
admission
by
Volkswagen,
the
German
carmaker,


that
it
has
installed
‘defeat
devices’
–
software
designed
to
manipulate
emissions


test
results
–
in
11
million
vehicles
worldwide,
of
which
1.2
million
are
in
the
UK.4







This
Assembly
further
notes:






i) the
failure
of
recent
European
vehicle
emissions
standards
(Euro
standards)
to


deliver
the
anticipated
emissions
reductions;
and





ii) the
results
of
TfL’s
recent
testing
of
Euro
6/VI
vehicles
using
London
drive


cycles
which
found
that
a
number
of
Euro
6
passenger
cars
emit
several
times


more
NOx
than
some
HGVs.5






This
Assembly
remains
concerned
that
large
sections
of
the
capital
continue
to


exceed
both
the
annual
mean
and
hourly
legal
limits
for
the
concentration
of


nitrogen
dioxide
(NO2)
and
are
currently
projected
to
continue
doing
so
until
2025


at
the
earliest,
over
fifteen
years
after
the
original
deadline
for
compliance.6






This
Assembly
believes
that
the
Mayor
has
a
duty
to
review
his
current
policies
and


proposals
in
light
of
the
emerging
scientific
evidence
on
the
performance
of
Euro
6


vehicles
under
real-world
driving
conditions
and
our
increasing
knowledge
of
the


adverse
effects
of
air
pollution
on
human
health.






This
Assembly
therefore
calls
on
the
Mayor
of
London
to
review
the
planned
exhaust


emission
standards
of
his
Ultra
Low
Emission
Zone
to
ensure
that
all
vehicles
driving


in
the
centre
of
the
capital
in
2020
are
truly
ultra-low
or
zero
emission.”


�

was�agreed�(with�13�votes�cast�in�favour�and�8�votes�cast�against).�

�

8.7 Stephen�Knight�AM�proposed�and�Murad�Qureshi�AM�seconded�the�following�motion,�altered�

in�accordance�with�Standing�Order�3.6A�(1):�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�Government’s�recent�consultation�on�its�review�of�the�Feed-in�Tariff�

scheme,�the�subsidy�scheme�for�the�generation�of�renewable�electricity�from�small-scale�

installations.�

��

�������������������������������������������������
4See�comments�made�by�Paul�Willis,�Managing�Director�of�VW�UK,�appearing�before�the�House�of�Commons�Transport�

Select�Committee�on�Monday�12�October�2015.

5�TfL�Euro�6�emission�standard�testing:�https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/In-
service%20emissions%20performance%20of%20Euro%206VI%20vehicles%20WEBSITE%20COPY.pdf��
6�Draft�Air�Quality�Plan�for�the�achievement�of�EU�air�quality�limit�value�for�nitrogen�dioxide�(NO2)�in�Greater�London�
Urban�Area:�http://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/no2-consultation-2015/AQplans_UK0001.pdf 

Page 12



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

This�Assembly�further�notes�that��

��

i) London�currently�has�the�lowest�amount�of�installed�solar�power�capacity�of�any�region�in�

the�UK,�but�among�the�greatest�potential�to�generate�solar�power;�and�that�

�

ii) 2,740�people�are�currently�employed�in�the�solar�industry�and�its�supply�chain�in�London�

according�to�recent�research�published�by�the�Solar�Trade�Association.���

��

This�Assembly�is�concerned�that�the�87�per�cent�cut�to�the�Feed-in�Tariff�for�solar�energy�

proposed�by�the�Government�will�have�a�disproportionate�impact�on�London’s�ability�to�

generate�energy�from�local�and�renewable�sources.��

��

This�Assembly�also�notes�the�comments�made�by�the�Mayor�of�London�on�16�September�2015�

that�“it�would�be�wrong�if�the�cut�in�the�feed-in�tariffs�actually�stops�people�from�investing�in�

solar�because�it�clearly�has�many�attractions.”�

��

This�Assembly�regrets�the�Mayor’s�refusal�so�far�to�lead�a�cross-party�delegation�of�interested�

parties�to�meet�with�the�Secretary�of�State�for�Energy�and�Climate�Change�to�discuss�the�

impact�of�the�Government's�proposed�changes�to�the�Feed�in�Tariff�on�the�viability�of�the�

solar�industry�in�London.�

�

Should�the�Mayor�continue�to�refuse�to�lead�such�a�delegation�by�the�end�of�the�week�(Friday�

6th�November�2015),�this�Assembly�calls�on�the�Chair�of�the�London�Assembly,�in�consultation�

with�Party�Group�Leads�and�the�Environment�Committee,�to�write�to�the�Secretary�of�State�

requesting�a�meeting�on�behalf�of�Assembly�Members�and�London-based�solar�companies.”�

�

8.8 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Stephen�Knight�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
notes
the
Government’s
recent
consultation
on
its
review
of
the


Feed-in
Tariff
scheme,
the
subsidy
scheme
for
the
generation
of
renewable


electricity
from
small-scale
installations.






This
Assembly
further
notes
that:







        i)         London
currently
has
the
lowest
amount
of
installed
solar
power
capacity
of


any
region
in
the
UK,
but
among
the
greatest
potential
to
generate
solar


power;
and
that






      ii)          2,740
people
are
currently
employed
in
the
solar
industry
and
its
supply


chain
in
London
according
to
recent
research
published
by
the
Solar
Trade


Association.








Page 13



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

This
Assembly
is
concerned
that
the
87
per
cent
cut
to
the
Feed-in
Tariff
for
solar


energy
proposed
by
the
Government
will
have
a
disproportionate
impact
on


London’s
ability
to
generate
energy
from
local
and
renewable
sources.







This
Assembly
also
notes
the
comments
made
by
the
Mayor
of
London
on
16


September
2015
that
“it
would
be
wrong
if
the
cut
in
the
feed-in
tariffs
actually


stops
people
from
investing
in
solar
because
it
clearly
has
many
attractions.”






This
Assembly
regrets
the
Mayor’s
refusal
so
far
to
lead
a
cross-party
delegation
of


interested
parties
to
meet
with
the
Secretary
of
State
for
Energy
and
Climate


Change
to
discuss
the
impact
of
the
Government's
proposed
changes
to
the
Feed
in


Tariff
on
the
viability
of
the
solar
industry
in
London.





Should
the
Mayor
continue
to
refuse
to
lead
such
a
delegation
by
the
end
of
the


week
(Friday
6th
November
2015),
this
Assembly
calls
on
the
Chair
of
the
London


Assembly,
in
consultation
with
Party
Group
Leads
and
the
Environment
Committee,


to
write
to�the
Secretary
of
State
requesting
a
meeting
on
behalf
of
Assembly


Members
and
London-based
solar
companies.”


�

was�agreed�(with�13�votes�cast�in�favour�and�7�votes�cast�against).�

�

8.9 Richard�Tracey�AM�proposed�and�Murad�Qureshi�AM�seconded�the�following�motion:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�that�up�to�300�tonnes�of�rubbish�is�recovered�from�the�Thames�every�

year,�with�the�amount�of�plastics,�especially�plastic�bottles�growing�annually.�

�

With�this�in�mind�the�Assembly�offers�its�wholehearted�support�to�the�Port�of�London�

Authority’s�Cleaner�Thames�Campaign,�which�calls�on�Londoners�to�‘do�the�right’�thing�and�

make�sure�their�rubbish�goes�in�the�bin,�not�in�the�River�Thames.�

�

Noting�the�Authority’s�strategic�role�in�promoting�recycling�and�waste�reduction,�this�Assembly�

also�urges�the�Mayor�to�work�with�the�Port�of�London�Authority,�its�partners�and�London’s�

riparian�Boroughs�to�support�this�campaign.”�

�

8.10 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Richard�Tracey�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
notes
that
up
to
300
tonnes
of
rubbish
is
recovered
from
the
Thames


every
year,
with
the
amount
of
plastics,
especially
plastic
bottles
growing
annually.





With
this
in
mind
the
Assembly
offers
its
wholehearted
support
to
the
Port
of


London
Authority’s
Cleaner
Thames
Campaign,
which
calls
on
Londoners
to
‘do
the


right’
thing
and
make
sure
their
rubbish
goes
in
the
bin,
not
in
the
River
Thames.





Page 14



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

Noting
the
Authority’s
strategic
role
in
promoting
recycling
and
waste
reduction,


this
Assembly
also
urges
the
Mayor
to
work
with
the
Port
of
London
Authority,
its


partners
and
London’s
riparian
Boroughs
to
support
this
campaign.”


�

was�agreed�unanimously.�

�

8.11 Andrew�Dismore�AM�proposed�and�Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�seconded�the�following�motion:�

�

“This�Assembly�expresses�its�concern�over�the�decision�of�the�Government�abruptly�to�end�

ESOL�funding�for�mandated�DWP�referred�FE�students.��

�

The�Assembly�believes�that�it�does�not�represent�joined�up�Government�for�one�department,�

the�DWP,�to�mandate�people��to�go�on�ESOL�courses�or�lose�their�benefit�on�the�one�hand;�

and�on�the�other�for�another�department,�BIS,�to�entirely�cut�the�funding�for�such�mandated,�

work�tailored��courses.�

�

The�Mayor�has�previously�insisted�that�“everybody�in�London,�everybody�who�comes�to�work�

in�our�economy,�should�be�able�to�speak�English.”[1]�However,�given�this�latest�barrier�being�

placed�in�the�way�of�those�seeking�to�acquire�English�language�skills,�this�Assembly�is�sceptical�

about�the�Government’s�commitment�to�ensuring�that�all�those�seeking�employment�and�

greater�integration�into�their�communities�are�able�to�do�so,�especially�in�the�context�of�other�

Government�cuts�to�the�Adult�Skills�Budget,�which�restrict�ESOL�courses�so�that�refugees,�

asylum�seekers,�and�other�migrants�who�need�to�learn�English�find�it�ever-harder�to�access�

appropriate�language�classes.��

The�Assembly�therefore�calls�on�the�Mayor�to:��

• Lobby�the�Business,�Education,�and�Work�and�Pensions�Ministers�to�seek�an�alternative�

to�the�ESOL�funding�cuts.�

• To�commission�a�study�from�GLA�Economics�looking�at�the�costs�and�benefits�to�the�

London�regional�economy�of�government�funding�for�ESOL�courses.”�

�

8.12 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Andrew�Dismore�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
expresses
its
concern
over
the
decision
of
the
Government
abruptly


to
end
ESOL
funding
for
mandated
DWP
referred
FE
students.






The
Assembly
believes
that
it
does
not
represent
joined
up
Government
for
one


department,
the
DWP,
to
mandate
people

to
go
on
ESOL
courses
or
lose
their


benefit
on
the
one
hand;
and
on
the
other
for
another
department,
BIS,
to
entirely


cut
the
funding
for
such
mandated,
work
tailored

courses.





�������������������������������������������������
[1]�Nicholas�Cecil,�Boris�Johnson:�Everybody�in�London�should�be�able�to�speak�English,�Evening�Standard,�06.01.15�

Page 15



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

The
Mayor
has
previously
insisted
that
“everybody
in
London,
everybody
who
comes


to
work
in
our
economy,
should
be
able
to
speak
English.”[1]
However,
given
this


latest
barrier
being
placed
in
the
way
of
those
seeking
to
acquire
English
language


skills,
this
Assembly
is
sceptical
about
the
Government’s
commitment
to
ensuring


that
all
those
seeking
employment
and
greater
integration
into
their
communities


are
able
to
do
so,
especially
in
the
context
of
other
Government
cuts
to
the
Adult


Skills
Budget,
which
restrict
ESOL
courses
so
that
refugees,
asylum
seekers,
and


other
migrants
who
need
to
learn
English
find
it
ever-harder
to
access
appropriate


language
classes.






The
Assembly
therefore
calls
on
the
Mayor
to:



• Lobby
the
Business,
Education,
and
Work
and
Pensions
Ministers
to
seek
an

alternative
to
the
ESOL
funding
cuts.


• To
commission
a
study
from
GLA
Economics
looking
at
the
costs
and
benefits

to
the
London
regional
economy
of
government
funding
for
ESOL
courses.”


�

was�agreed�(with�12�votes�cast�in�favour).�

�

8.13 Nicky�Gavron�AM�proposed�and�Navin�Shah�AM�seconded�the�following�motion:�

�

“This�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�lobby�the�Government�to�reverse�its�decision�

that�the�temporary�rule�allowing�property�owners�to�convert�offices�and�other�workspaces�into�

flats�almost�overnight,�without�the�need�for�planning�permission,�will�be�made�permanent7.�

��

The�temporary�policy�has�already�been�an�unmitigated�disaster�for�outer�London,�where�over�

320�fully�occupied�office�buildings�have�been�earmarked�for�conversions.�Richmond-upon-

Thames,�for�example,�has�lost�20�per�cent�of�its�office�space,�displacing�3,150�local�jobs8.�

Where�owners�do�not�convert,�the�hope�value�on�all�commercial�and�light�industrial�premises�

provides�an�incentive�to�drive�up�rents,�squeezing�out�even�more�affordable�workspace.�The�

migration�of�jobs�outside�of�local�authorities�and�beyond�is�particularly�concerning�in�light�of�

plans�to�allow�local�authorities�to�keep�increased�business�rate�revenues.�The�converted�

housing�will�not�be�affordable�and�is�not�required�to�meet�environmental�or�disability�

standards�set�by�local�authorities9.�

��

The�extended�policy�will�be�even�more�damaging�to�London’s�economy.�The�exemption�

currently�enjoyed�by�limited�parts�of�central�London�will�expire�in�2019.�Boroughs�will�be�able�

to�impose�Article�4�directions�to�suspend�the�permitted�development�rights,�but�this�is�a�

cumbersome�process�which�can�result�in�councils�being�subject�to�compensation�claims�by�

property�owners�and�can�be�vetoed�by�the�Secretary�of�State�against�the�councils’�wishes.�

�������������������������������������������������
[1]�Nicholas�Cecil,�Boris�Johnson:�Everybody�in�London�should�be�able�to�speak�English,�Evening�Standard,�06.01.15�
7�DCLG�press�release.�“Thousands�more�homes�to�be�developed�in�planning�shake�up.”�13�October�2015.�
8�London�Councils.�“The�Impact�of�Permitted�Development�Rights�for�Office�to�Residential�Conversions.”�August�2015.�
9�National�Planning�Policy�Guidance.�“Planning�Obligations.”�Paragraph:�005�Reference�ID:�23b-005-20140306�

Page 16



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

�

In�addition,�under�the�new�rules,�developers�will�be�able�to�demolish�office�buildings�and�build�

new�residential�buildings�in�their�place,�further�undermining�the�ability�of�local�authorities�to�

plan�for�development.�

�

This�Assembly�recognises�that�some�areas�may�have�a�surplus�of�office�space,�but�the�existing�

planning�system�already�gives�local�authorities�the�tools�to�allow�conversions�where�

appropriate10.�

��

Given�his�statutory�planning�function�in�London,�this�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�to�lobby�the�

Government�to�withdraw�its�proposals�regarding�Permitted�Development�Rights�in�the�capital.”�

�

8.14 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Nicky�Gavron�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
calls
on
the
Mayor
of
London
to
lobby
the
Government
to
reverse
its


decision
that
the
temporary
rule
allowing
property
owners
to
convert
offices
and


other
workspaces
into
flats
almost
overnight,
without
the
need
for
planning


permission,
will
be
made
permanent11.






The
temporary
policy
has
already
been
an
unmitigated
disaster
for
outer
London,


where
over
320
fully
occupied
office
buildings
have
been
earmarked
for
conversions.


Richmond-upon-Thames,
for
example,
has
lost
20
per
cent
of
its
office
space,


displacing
3,150
local
jobs12.
Where
owners
do
not
convert,
the
hope
value
on
all


commercial
and
light
industrial
premises
provides
an
incentive
to
drive
up
rents,


squeezing
out
even
more
affordable
workspace.
The
migration
of
jobs
outside
of


local
authorities
and
beyond
is
particularly
concerning
in
light
of
plans
to
allow
local


authorities
to
keep
increased
business
rate
revenues.
The
converted
housing
will
not


be
affordable
and
is
not
required
to
meet
environmental
or
disability
standards
set


by
local
authorities13.






The
extended
policy
will
be
even
more
damaging
to
London’s
economy.
The


exemption
currently
enjoyed
by
limited
parts
of
central
London
will
expire
in
2019.


Boroughs
will
be
able
to
impose
Article
4
directions
to
suspend
the
permitted


development
rights,
but
this
is
a
cumbersome
process
which
can
result
in
councils


being
subject
to
compensation
claims
by
property
owners
and
can
be
vetoed
by
the


Secretary
of
State
against
the
councils’
wishes.





�������������������������������������������������
10�London�Plan�Policy�4.2 
11�DCLG�press�release.�“Thousands�more�homes�to�be�developed�in�planning�shake�up.”�13�October�2015.�
12�London�Councils.�“The�Impact�of�Permitted�Development�Rights�for�Office�to�Residential�Conversions.”�August�2015.�
13�National�Planning�Policy�Guidance.�“Planning�Obligations.”�Paragraph:�005�Reference�ID:�23b-005-20140306�

Page 17



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

In
addition,
under
the
new
rules,
developers
will
be
able
to
demolish
office
buildings


and
build
new
residential
buildings
in
their
place,
further
undermining
the
ability
of


local
authorities
to
plan
for
development.





This
Assembly
recognises
that
some
areas
may
have
a
surplus
of
office
space,
but


the
existing
planning
system
already
gives
local
authorities
the
tools
to
allow


conversions
where
appropriate14.






Given
his
statutory
planning
function
in
London,
this
Assembly
calls
on
the
Mayor
to


lobby
the
Government
to
withdraw
its
proposals
regarding
Permitted
Development


Rights
in
the
capital.”


�

was�agreed�unanimously.�

�

8.15 Fiona�Twycross�AM�proposed�Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�seconded�the�following�motion,�altered�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Order�3.6A�(1):�

�

“This�Assembly�urges�the�Government�to�maintain�Universal�Free�School�Meals�for�infant�

school�pupils�in�London,�introduced�in�2014,�when�it�announces�the�Spending�Review�on�25�

November�2015.��

��

Universal�Free�School�Meals�have�been�shown�to�have�significant�benefits�for�educational�

performance�of�children�across�the�country,�and�therefore�in�London,�with�the�2009-11�pilot�

schemes�generating�four�weeks�additional�progress�for�pupils�at�Key�Stage�1�and�eight�weeks�

progress�at�Key�Stage�2.�Universal�Free�School�Meals�for�infants�are�therefore�an�important�

tool�for�improving�attainment�in�the�classroom�and�reducing�the�stigma�of�means�tested�free�

school�meals�that�results�in�many�children�failing�to�claim�their�meal.��

��

With�over�40,000�visits�by�children�to�a�London�food�bank�last�year�(2014/15),�and�evidence�

from�the�Mayor�that�74,000�London�children�sometimes�or�often�go�to�bed�hungry�at�night,�it�

is�also�clear�that�Universal�Free�School�Meals�can�be�an�important�means�of�tackling�child�

hunger�in�the�capital.�At�a�time�when�tax�credits�are�due�to�be�severely�cut,�Universal�Free�

School�Meals�are�also�helping�the�family�budgets�of�parents�with�young�children,�who�save�

around�£400�a�year�per�child.��

��

This�Assembly�therefore�urges�the�Government�to�protect�Universal�Free�School�Meals�for�

infant�school�pupils�in�London�and�for�the�Mayor�–�who�has�previously�stated�his�support�for�

the�School�Food�Plan’s�recommendation�for�the�rollout�of�universal�free�school�meals�for�4�to�

7�year�olds15�-�to�write�to�the�Prime�Minister�and�Chancellor�calling�for�Universal�Free�School�

Meals�to�be�protected.”�

�

�������������������������������������������������
14�London�Plan�Policy�4.2 
15�Question�2015/1948,�Mayor’s�Question�Time,�17.06.15�

Page 18



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

8.16 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Fiona�Twycross�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
urges
the
Government
to
maintain
Universal
Free
School
Meals
for


infant
school
pupils
in
London,
introduced
in
2014,
when
it
announces
the
Spending


Review
on
25
November
2015.







Universal
Free
School
Meals
have
been
shown
to
have
significant
benefits
for


educational
performance
of
children
across
the
country,
and
therefore
in
London,


with
the
2009-11
pilot
schemes
generating
four
weeks
additional
progress
for
pupils


at
Key
Stage
1
and
eight
weeks
progress
at
Key
Stage
2.
Universal
Free
School
Meals


for
infants
are
therefore
an
important
tool
for
improving
attainment
in
the


classroom
and
reducing
the
stigma
of
means
tested
free
school
meals
that
results
in


many
children
failing
to
claim
their
meal.







With
over
40,000
visits
by
children
to
a
London
food
bank
last
year
(2014/15),
and


evidence
from
the
Mayor
that
74,000
London
children
sometimes
or
often
go
to
bed


hungry
at
night,
it
is
also
clear
that
Universal
Free
School
Meals
can
be
an
important


means
of
tackling
child
hunger
in
the
capital.
At
a
time
when
tax
credits
are
due
to


be
severely
cut,
Universal
Free
School
Meals
are
also
helping
the
family
budgets
of


parents
with
young
children,
who
save
around
£400
a
year
per
child.







This
Assembly
therefore
urges
the
Government
to
protect
Universal
Free
School


Meals
for
infant
school
pupils
in
London
and
for
the
Mayor
–
who
has
previously


stated
his
support
for
the
School
Food
Plan’s
recommendation
for
the
rollout
of


universal
free
school
meals
for
4
to
7
year
olds16
-
to
write
to
the
Prime
Minister
and


Chancellor
calling
for
Universal
Free
School
Meals
to
be
protected.”


�

was�agreed�unanimously.�

�

8.17 Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�proposed�and�Tony�Arbour�AM�seconded�the�following�motion,�

altered�in�accordance�with�Standing�Order�3.6A�(1):�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�that�approximately�6�million�people�were�killed�during�the�Holocaust,�

including�1.5�million�Jewish�children.�Since�the�Holocaust,�other�genocides�such�as�the�

Rwandan�Genocide�of�1994�have�killed�millions�of�people.�Even�now,�people�all�over�the�world�

live�in�fear�of�being�killed�due�to�their�race,�ethnicity,�religion,�culture,�or�nationality.��

�

This�Assembly�is�proud�that�the�UK�has�always�played�a�major�role�in�ensuring�that�the�

Holocaust�is�never�forgotten.�Holocaust�Memorial�Day�has�taken�place�in�the�UK�since�2001,�

with�a�UK�event�and�over�3,600�local�activities�taking�place�on�or�around�27�January�each�

year.�The�Holocaust�Educational�Trust�has�taken�thousands�of�UK�students�to�visit�former-

concentration�camps,�in�order�to�teach�them�the�lessons�of�the�Holocaust.�

�������������������������������������������������
16�Question�2015/1948,�Mayor’s�Question�Time,�17.06.15�

Page 19



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

�

This�Assembly�believes�that�Holocaust�Memorial�Day�should�continue�to�be�commemorated�in�

the�UK.�Children�should�be�encouraged�and�enabled�to�actively�promote�the�lessons�learnt�

from�the�Holocaust�and�other�genocides.�Efforts�of�schools�across�London�to�raise�awareness,�

such�as�the�Hampton�School�in�Richmond,�where�pupils�promoted�the�issue�on�social�media�

using�the�hashtag�#genocideknowmore,�should�be�encouraged�and�applauded.�

�

This�Assembly�also�believes�that�the�Greater�London�Authority�and�London’s�Boroughs�should�

continue�to�work�with�local�schools,�charities,�and�other�stakeholder�organisations�to�promote�

understanding�of�this�important�issue,�to�ensure�that�the�Holocaust,�and�other�Genocides,�are�

remembered�through�the�generations.”� 

�

8.18 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM,�namely:�

�

“This
Assembly
notes
that
approximately
6
million
people
were
killed
during
the


Holocaust,
including
1.5
million
Jewish
children.
Since
the
Holocaust,
other


genocides
such
as
the
Rwandan
Genocide
of
1994
have
killed
millions
of
people.


Even
now,
people
all
over
the
world
live
in
fear
of
being
killed
due
to
their
race,


ethnicity,
religion,
culture,
or
nationality.






This
Assembly
is
proud
that
the
UK
has
always
played
a
major
role
in
ensuring
that


the
Holocaust
is
never
forgotten.
Holocaust
Memorial
Day
has
taken
place
in
the
UK


since
2001,
with
a
UK
event
and
over
3,600
local
activities
taking
place
on
or
around


27
January
each
year.
The
Holocaust
Educational
Trust
has
taken
thousands
of
UK


students
to
visit
former-concentration
camps,
in
order
to
teach
them
the
lessons
of


the
Holocaust.





This
Assembly
believes
that
Holocaust
Memorial
Day
should
continue
to
be


commemorated
in
the
UK.
Children
should
be
encouraged
and
enabled
to
actively


promote
the
lessons
learnt
from
the
Holocaust
and
other
genocides.
Efforts
of


schools
across
London
to
raise
awareness,
such
as
the
Hampton
School
in
Richmond,


where
pupils
promoted
the
issue
on
social
media
using
the
hashtag


#genocideknowmore,
should
be
encouraged
and
applauded.





This
Assembly
also
believes
that
the
Greater
London
Authority
and
London’s


Boroughs
should
continue
to
work
with
local
schools,
charities,
and
other


stakeholder
organisations
to
promote
understanding
of
this
important
issue,
to


ensure
that
the
Holocaust,
and
other
Genocides,
are
remembered
through
the


generations.”
 

�

was�agreed�unanimously.�

�

�

Page 20



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

�

8.19 Fiona�Twycross�AM�proposed�and�Andrew�Dismore�AM�seconded�the�following�motion:�

�

“Trade�unions�play�an�important�role�in�reducing�inequality17.�Given�London’s�status�as�one�of�

the�most�unequal�cities�in�the�industrialised�world18,�this�Assembly�believes�the�Trade�Union�

Bill�2015-16�is�an�attempt�to�militate�against�the�economic�interests�of�hardworking�

Londoners,�including�officers�of�the�Greater�London�Authority,�by�discouraging�trade�union�

membership.�

�

This�Assembly�believes�the�Trade�Union�Bill�will�seek�to�undermine�trade�union�membership�in�

the�following�ways:�

��

Turnout�Restrictions�

�

Strike�action�is�always�a�last�resort,�but�the�Government’s�aim�that�50%�of�members�must�turn�

out�to�vote�and�40%�of�the�entire�membership�must�vote�in�favour�(that�amounts�to�80%�of�

those�voting,�on�a�50%�turnout)19�in�‘important�public�services’,�represents�an�attack�on�the�

democratic�rights�of�workers�in�London,�such�as�those�working�for�TfL�and�for�the�London�Fire�

Brigade.�

�

The�Government’s�refusal�to�allow�secure�online�balloting20�of�the�kind�used�to�select�the�

Conservative�Party�candidate�for�the�2016�London�Mayoral�Election,�and�which�could�

potentially�increase�turnout,�suggests�that�the�primary�motivation�for�the�Trade�Union�Bill�is�to�

reduce�the�scope�for�unions�to�represent�the�interests�of�workers.��

�

Surveillance�of�Trade�Union�Members�

�

The�London�Assembly�believes�draconian�measures�seeking�the�names�of�pickets�and�

restrictions�on�social�media�usage�are�an�attack�on�fundamental�human�rights21.�Oversight�of�

such�matters�would�place�costly�demands�on�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�risk�the�

independence�of�policing�in�the�capital.��

�

Steve�White,�the�chair�of�the�Police�Federation�of�England�and�Wales,�recently�informed�MPs�

that�the�surveillance�of�trade�unionists�proposed�by�the�bill:�

�

�������������������������������������������������
17�Dr�Lydia�Hayes�and�Professor�Tonia�Novitz�(2014),�Trade�Unions�and�Economic�Inequality�
18�Randeep�Ramesh,�London's�richest�people�worth�273�times�more�than�the�poorest,�Guardian,�21.04.10�
19�Trades�Union�Congress,�About�the�Trade�Union�Bill�
20�Trades�Union�Congress,�TUC�slams�Conservative�"hypocrisy"�over�use�of�online�balloting�for�London�Mayoral�selection,�
02.10.15�
21�Article�23(4)�of�The�Universal�Declaration�Human�Rights�–�“Everyone�has�the�right�to�form�and�to�join�trade�unions�for�
the�protection�of�his�interests.”�

Page 21



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

“would�be�such�a�massively�complex�operation�and�from�the�police�point�of�a�view�a�dangerous�

road�to�go�down…It�would�be�a�travesty�if�the�police�went�back�to�the�days�of�the�70s�or�the�

80s�when�the�police�were�seen�as�an�arm�of�a�state.”22�

��

Use�of�Agency�Workers�

�

The�London�Assembly�is�further�concerned�that�allowing�the�use�of�agency�workers�to�‘break’�

strikes23�will�lead�to�staff�carrying�out�work�they�are�not�trained�for,�potentially�lead�to�unsafe�

workplaces�and�services,�and�undermine�good�working�relationships.�Such�practices�could�also�

have�an�impact�of�the�effective�functioning�of�London’s�transport�network.�

��

Facility�Time�and�Member�Subscriptions�

�

This�Assembly�believes�that�facility�time�arrangements�for�local�trade�union�representatives�

and�the�deduction�of�subscriptions�through�payroll�are�matters�for�negotiation�between�

employers,�such�as�individual�members�of�the�GLA�family,�and�recognised�trade�unions,�which�

form�the�basis�of�good�employee�relations.��

�

Given�the�concerns�expressed�and�that,�despite�the�Bill’s�potentially�negative�impact�on�

workers�in�the�capital,�the�Mayor�has�expressed�‘passionate�support’�for�the�proposed�

legislation�24,�this�Assembly�believes�that�

�

Ø If�enacted,�the�Trade�Union�Bill�2015-16�could�discourage�trade�union�

membership,�undermining�the�important�role�trade�unions�play�in�addressing�

economic�inequality�in�the�capital;�and�

�

Ø This�would�impact�upon�the�principle�duty�of�the�Greater�London�Authority�to�

promote�economic�development�and�wealth�creation�in�Greater�London.�

�

The�Assembly�requests�that�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly�writes�to�the�Mayor�of�London�to�

convey�these�concerns.”�

�

8.20 Upon�being�put�to�the�vote,�the�motion�in�the�name�of�Fiona�Twycross�AM,�namely:�

�

“Trade
unions
play
an
important
role
in
reducing
inequality25.
Given
London’s
status


as
one
of
the
most
unequal
cities
in
the
industrialised
world26,
this
Assembly
believes


the
Trade
Union
Bill
2015-16
is
an
attempt
to
militate
against
the
economic


�������������������������������������������������
22�Patrick�Wintour,�Trade�union�bill:�police�‘dread�and�fear’�social�media�plan,�Guardian,�15.10.15 
23�Frances�O’Grady,�The�Trade�Union�Bill�is�coming�–�here's�what�it�threatens,�The�Independent,�16.10.15�
24�Boris�Johnson,�If�Jeremy�Corbyn�honestly�cares�about�the�workers,�he’ll�back�trade�union�reform,�Daily�Telegraph,�
13.09.15�
25�Dr�Lydia�Hayes�and�Professor�Tonia�Novitz�(2014),�Trade�Unions�and�Economic�Inequality�
26�Randeep�Ramesh,�London's�richest�people�worth�273�times�more�than�the�poorest,�Guardian,�21.04.10�

Page 22



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

interests
of
hardworking
Londoners,
including
officers
of
the
Greater
London


Authority,
by
discouraging
trade
union
membership.





This
Assembly
believes
the
Trade
Union
Bill
will
seek
to
undermine
trade
union


membership
in
the
following
ways:






Turnout
Restrictions





Strike
action
is
always
a
last
resort,
but
the
Government’s
aim
that
50%
of
members


must
turn
out
to
vote
and
40%
of
the
entire
membership
must
vote
in
favour
(that


amounts
to
80%
of
those
voting,
on
a
50%
turnout)27
in
‘important
public
services’,


represents
an
attack
on
the
democratic
rights
of
workers
in
London,
such
as
those


working
for
TfL
and
for
the
London
Fire
Brigade.





The
Government’s
refusal
to
allow
secure
online
balloting28
of
the
kind
used
to


select
the
Conservative
Party
candidate
for
the
2016
London
Mayoral
Election,
and


which
could
potentially
increase
turnout,
suggests
that
the
primary
motivation
for


the
Trade
Union
Bill
is
to
reduce
the
scope
for
unions
to
represent
the
interests
of


workers.






Surveillance
of
Trade
Union
Members





The
London
Assembly
believes
draconian
measures
seeking
the
names
of
pickets
and


restrictions
on
social
media
usage
are
an
attack
on
fundamental
human
rights29.


Oversight
of
such
matters
would
place
costly
demands
on
the
Metropolitan
Police


Service
risk
the
independence
of
policing
in
the
capital.






Steve
White,
the
chair
of
the
Police
Federation
of
England
and
Wales,
recently


informed
MPs
that
the
surveillance
of
trade
unionists
proposed
by
the
bill:





“would
be
such
a
massively
complex
operation
and
from
the
police
point
of
a
view
a


dangerous
road
to
go
down…It
would
be
a
travesty
if
the
police
went
back
to
the


days
of
the
70s
or
the
80s
when
the
police
were
seen
as
an
arm
of
a
state.”30






Use
of
Agency
Workers





The
London
Assembly
is
further
concerned
that
allowing
the
use
of
agency
workers


to
‘break’
strikes31
will
lead
to
staff
carrying
out
work
they
are
not
trained
for,


�������������������������������������������������
27�Trades�Union�Congress,�About�the�Trade�Union�Bill�
28�Trades�Union�Congress,�TUC�slams�Conservative�"hypocrisy"�over�use�of�online�balloting�for�London�Mayoral�selection,�
02.10.15�
29�Article�23(4)�of�The�Universal�Declaration�Human�Rights�–�“Everyone�has�the�right�to�form�and�to�join�trade�unions�for�
the�protection�of�his�interests.”�
30�Patrick�Wintour,�Trade�union�bill:�police�‘dread�and�fear’�social�media�plan,�Guardian,�15.10.15 

Page 23



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

potentially
lead
to
unsafe
workplaces
and
services,
and
undermine
good
working


relationships.
Such
practices
could
also
have
an
impact
of
the
effective
functioning


of
London’s
transport
network.






Facility
Time
and
Member
Subscriptions





This
Assembly
believes
that
facility
time
arrangements
for
local
trade
union


representatives
and
the
deduction
of
subscriptions
through
payroll
are
matters
for


negotiation
between
employers,
such
as
individual
members
of
the
GLA
family,
and


recognised
trade
unions,
which
form
the
basis
of
good
employee
relations.






Given
the
concerns
expressed
and
that,
despite
the
Bill’s
potentially
negative
impact


on
workers
in
the
capital,
the
Mayor
has
expressed
‘passionate
support’
for
the


proposed
legislation
32,
this
Assembly
believes
that





Ø If
enacted,
the
Trade
Union
Bill
2015-16
could
discourage
trade
union


membership,
undermining
the
important
role
trade
unions
play
in


addressing
economic
inequality
in
the
capital;
and





Ø This
would
impact
upon
the
principle
duty
of
the
Greater
London


Authority
to
promote
economic
development
and
wealth
creation
in


Greater
London.





The
Assembly
requests
that
the
Chair
of
the
Assembly
writes
to
the
Mayor
of


London
to
convey
these
concerns.”


�

was�agreed�(with�12�votes�cast�in�favour�and�5�votes�cast�against).�
�
�

9 Statutory
Officers'
Protocol
(Item
9)�



9.1� The�Assembly�received�the�report�of�the�Head�of�Paid�Service.�

�

9.2� Resolved:�

�

That,
noting
that
it
is
a
joint
decision
with
the
Mayor,
the
revisions
to
the
Statutory


Officers
Staffing
Protocol,
attached
at
Appendix
A
to
the
report,
be
approved
and


adopted.�
�
�
�

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
31�Frances�O’Grady,�The�Trade�Union�Bill�is�coming�–�here's�what�it�threatens,�The�Independent,�16.10.15�
32�Boris�Johnson,�If�Jeremy�Corbyn�honestly�cares�about�the�workers,�he’ll�back�trade�union�reform,�Daily�Telegraph,�
13.09.15�

Page 24



Greater
London
Authority

London
Assembly
(Plenary)

Wednesday
4
November
2015


�

�
��

�

10 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
10)�



10.1� The�next�scheduled�meeting�of�the�London�Assembly�was�the�Mayor’s�Question�Time�meeting�

which�was�scheduled�to�take�place�at�10.00am�on�Wednesday�18�November�2015�in�the�

Chamber,�City�Hall.�
�
�

11 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
11)�



11.1� There�were�no�items�of�urgent�business.�
�
�

12 Close
of
Meeting
�



12.1� The�meeting�ended�at�1.58pm.

�
�
�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chair� � Date�
�
Contact
Officers:
 John�Barry�

Principal�Committee�Manager�
GLA�Secretariat,�City�Hall�
The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
�

Telephone:
 020�7983�4425�
Email:
 john.barry@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

�

Appendix 1 
�

London�Assembly�(Plenary)�Meeting�–�4�November�2015�
�

Transcript�of�Agenda�Item�3:��
Question�and�Answer�Session�–�London�&�Partners�

 
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Can�we�now�welcome�to�this�meeting�with�us�today�Sir�Edward�Lister,�

Chairman�of�London�&�Partners�(L&P),�and�Gordon�Innes,�Chief�Executive�Officer.��Welcome,�both,�to�the�

meeting.�

�

Before�we�move�to�the�questions�on�the�agenda,�can�I�invite�Sir�Edward�to�make�a�short�opening�statement?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Thank�you�very�much,�Chair,�and�thank�you�for�giving�us�the�

opportunity�of�coming�here�today.��It�is�probably�quite�useful�that�you�are�doing�this�review�now�because�it�is,�

basically,�four�years�since�L&P�was�set�up.��There�is�obviously�going�to�be�whatever�happens�next�May.��

Therefore,�it�is�quite�an�apposite�time�to�be�looking�and�thinking�about�in�what�direction�L&P�goes.�

�

Just�to�give�a�few�highlights:�L&P�has,�in�our�opinion,�added�£1�billion�to�the�London�economy.��L&P�has�

secured�30,000�new�jobs�and�that�is�30,000�new�jobs�calculated�by�the�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA)�

formula�for�calculating�jobs�and�so�it�is�not�about�retaining�jobs�or�anything�else.��This�is�about�actual�new�

ones�that�can�be�individually�identified.��There�has�also�been�more�than�£250�million�spent�on�publicity,�

particularly�in�the�tourism�area,�which�has�all�been�paid�and�raised�by�work�done�by�L&P.�

�

L&P�of�course,�although�funded�by�the�Mayor,�is�very�much�on�an�investment�basis�and�the�intention�is�that�

steadily�but�sure�the�funding�from�the�mayoralty�reduces�in�proportion�to�the�amount�of�money�raised�from�

other�sources.��That�is�certainly�the�direction�of�travel�and�that�is�certainly�what�we�would�be�doing.��I�am�

going�to�ask,�if�I�may,�Gordon�to�talk�a�little�bit�about�the�business�plan,�if�that�is�permitted.�

�

There�are�one�or�two�other�quick�highlights.��We�are�rated�very�highly�[on�our�work]�with�students.��It�is�the�

number�one�ranking�for�students�to�come�here.��We�are�the�leading�destination�for�foreign�direct�investment�

(FDI)�money�in�Europe�and�we�have�seen�that�consistently�over�a�number�of�years�now.��For�events,�we�have�

moved�from�being�19th�in�the�ranking�to�the�fourth,�which�is�an�extremely�good�position�to�be�in.��People�do�

recognise�just�how�good�it�is�to�have�an�event�here�in�London.�

�

London�has�also�been�named�as�the�‘ultimate�sports�city’,�which�is�fair�because�of�everything�that�has�

happened�with�the�Olympics�and,�indeed,�anybody�who�saw�anything�of�the�Rugby�World�Cup�can�see�why�

people�want�to�come�to�London�for�sporting�occasions.��It�would�be�fair�to�say�that�as�a�city�-�and�I�talk�about�

the�city�in�the�widest�possible�sense�-�we�do�that�pretty�well.�

�

Back�to�the�money,�it�is�really�important�that�we�steadily�reduce�the�proportion�-�I�am�not�saying�the�amount�

but�the�proportion�-�that�is�paid�for�by�City�Hall�and�we�move�steadily�towards�raising�more�and�more�of�that�

money�from�the�private�sector�and,�therefore,�build�a�bigger�and�bigger�pot.��It�is�the�size�of�that�pot�that�we�

need.��Compared�to�other�cities,�we�spend�very�little.�

�

There�are�one�or�two�highlights�that�I�just�wanted�to�lastly�mention.��We�are�publishing�a�new�

Tourism�Strategy.��We�have�shared�with�you�the�business�plan�and,�genuinely,�it�is�still�a�draft�and�we�are�very�

much�welcoming�any�comment�anybody�makes�to�us�and�are�trying�to�pick�all�of�that�up.��We�are�setting�

ourselves�far�higher�targets�than�we�have�previously.��We�are�looking�for�a�gross�value�added�(GVA)�of�

Page 27



 

�

£286�million�with�5,000�more�jobs�and�also�a�further�3,000�jobs�supported�as�a�net�result�of�that.��Those�are�

the�targets.�

�

If�I�may,�Chair,�could�Gordon�just�say�a�word�on�the�business�plan?�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Yes.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Thank�you,�Ed.��The�last�time�that�we�appeared�before�one�

of�the�Committees�of�the�Assembly,�it�was�recommended�that�we�try�to�bring�forward�our�business�planning�

process�to�give�you�input�and�be�able�to�contribute�more�to�that�process�before�we�appear�before�the�GLA’s�

Investment�and�Performance�Board�(IPB).��We�have�done�that�this�year�and�this�session�is�very�timely.��As�Ed�

said,�the�business�plan�is�being�worked�up�and�is�in�draft.��We�are�looking�to�go�to�the�IPB�in�December�to�get�

City�Hall’s�sign-off.�

�

Just�to�share�some�of�the�highlights�that�we�are�proposing�for�2016,�the�first�one�is�to�launch�a�new�export�

programme�for�the�city.��I�would�be�happy�to�talk�about�that.��It�is�quite�an�exciting,�innovative�new�model�we�

are�looking�to�roll�out�that�could�have�quite�a�large,�significant�impact.�

�

We�are�continuing�to�push�the�city’s�reputation�as�a�digital�technology�hub�and�also�as�a�life�sciences�sector.��

We�have�been�doing�a�lot�around�scaling�up�companies�and�showing�that�a�company�cannot�just�be�started�in�

London�but�can�get�funding�and�can�scale�up.��In�the�life�sciences�area,�we�will�be�doing�a�large�focus�next�year�

on�our�excellence�in�genomics�and�in�medical�technologies�and�trying�to�attract�investment�into�those�areas.�

�

We�are�looking�to�create�a�new�London�mobile�app.��This�is�very�much�around�being�a�guide�for�visitors�coming�

in,�providing�much�more�granular�content�and�geo-locational�technology�with�that�and�increased�

personalisation�that�will�encourage�visitors�to�explore�more�of�the�city�and�particularly�to�get�off�the�beaten�

track�and�out�of�Zone�1.�

�

Equally,�we�are�working�with�City�Hall�to�do�more�around�the�city’s�neighbourhoods.��Our�digital�channel,�

Visit�London,�reaches�more�than�28�million�people�a�year.��We�are�looking�to�grow�the�content�about�the�

neighbourhoods�of�London�as�well�as�the�core�attractions�of�the�city.�

�

As�Ed�said,�we�have�been�asked�by�the�London�Enterprise�Panel�(LEP)�to�look�at�a�ten-year�tourism�strategy�

for�London�and�to�develop�that�by�next�year.��That�is�very�much�around�high-volume�jobs.��It�is�very�much�

around�entry-level�jobs.��A�lot�of�the�jobs�that�we�facilitate�the�creation�of�through�the�spend�that�we�attract�

are�entry-level�jobs�and�we�are�looking�to�see�what�can�be�done�to�accelerate�that,�going�beyond�our�

promotional�remit,�looking�at�the�product,�looking�at�the�skills�requirements,�the�infrastructure�needs�in�the�

city,�etc.�

�

We�are�doing�more�with�the�cultural�institutions�in�London.��This�year�we�launched�the�second�Cultural�Season�

that�brought�together�all�of�our�top�museums�and�galleries.��We�will�be�looking�to�grow�that�again�next�year�

because�of�the�success�that�that�has�had�in�attracting�tourists.�

�

We�will�be�doing�more�on�the�events�side.��Festivals�and�events�are�a�key�driver�for�tourism.��We�will�be�looking�

to�do�more�to�aggregate�events�and�to�internationalise�them.��We�have�had�some�success�this�year�with�

London�Technology�Week,�which�we�created�last�year.�

�

As�Ed�said,�we�are�very�much�looking�to�drive�our�private�sector�and�non-GLA�grant�income.��We�are�almost�at�

the�level�now�where�we�have�parity�between�the�GLA�income�and�our�private�income.��That�is�up�from,�when�I�

Page 28



 

�

joined,�just�over�20%�private�income�to�about�parity.��Our�business�plan�looks�to�achieve�parity�next�year.��I�

suspect�we�will�probably�exceed�that.��We�can�talk�again�about�what�we�are�doing�in�that�space.�

�

Finally,�as�Ed�said,�we�are�looking�to�deliver�more�jobs�and�growth.��The�whole�raison�d’être�for�the�company�

being�set�up�was�attracting�investment�and�spend�from�overseas�that�will�create�jobs�and�that�will�bring�wealth�

into�the�city.��Therefore,�again,�for�the�fifth�year�in�a�row,�we�will�increase�the�jobs�and�the�GVA�target�for�

what�we�are�looking�to�deliver�back�into�the�city.��Those�are�the�main�highlights.�

�

Just�one�thing,�if�I�may,�Chair,�before�I�finish.��Although�the�focus�is�very�much�on�jobs�and�growth,�we�are�

very�cognisant�of�some�of�the�wider�policies�and�priorities�that�City�Hall�has.��For�example,�we�work�with�a�lot�

of�the�investors�coming�in.��We�encourage�them�to�get�involved�in�social�responsibility�programmes.��I�sit�on�

the�Team�London�Board�and,�again,�help�in�bringing�sponsors�into�that�programme.��A�company�we�recently�

brought�into�London�has�now�joined�the�HeadStart�programme�and�is�committing�£150,000�to�that.��While�

that�is�not�our�core�job�or�our�core�business,�we�do�try�to�use�our�relationships�to�further�those�other�objectives�

that�City�Hall�has,�whether�it�is�around�apprenticeships,�volunteering�or�other�areas.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much�to�both�of�you�for�those�opening�statements.�

�

We�now�move�to�the�questions�on�the�agenda.�

�

2015/3550�-�London’s�overseas�reputation�

Stephen�Knight�AM�

�

To�what�extent�is�government�policy�and�rhetoric�over�immigration�and�uncertainty�over�EU�membership�

damaging�the�reputation�of�London�overseas�and�our�city’s�economic�interests?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��There�are�two�areas�that�you�have�picked�up�in�your�question,�

which�we�have�seen.��You�have�raised�the�issue�about�immigration�and�the�European�Union�(EU)�referendum.�

�

Dealing�with�immigration�first,�particularly�Indian�immigration�and�particularly�students:�there�is�a�lot�of�

evidence�that�we�have�had�an�enormous�drop.��In�fact,�the�figure�that�we�have�is�that�in�2009�we�had�nigh�on�

10,000�Indian�students�and�by�2013�that�had�dropped�to�just�shy�of�5,000.��It�had�halved�in�that�period.��There�

is�some�evidence�at�the�moment�that�seems�to�suggest�we�have�stabilised�at�that�figure�and�we�are�bouncing�

along�around�there.�

�

Obviously,�we�need�to�go�back�up�again.��There�was�a�lot�of�bad�publicity�a�short�while�ago,�back�in�2009�or�in�

that�period,�mainly�to�do�with�visas�at�London�Metropolitan�University�and�one�or�two�other�places.��That�all�

caused�a�lot�of�problems.��We�are�trying�to�do�something�about�it.��It�is�an�immigration�issue�and�so�it�is�largely�

outside�of�our�hands.��However,�I�have�convened�a�meeting�that�is�taking�place�later�this�month�of�all�the�

London�universities�to�talk�about�the�Indian�visa�situation�and�to�see�if�there�is�anything�we�can�collectively�do.��

I�also�know�that�one�of�the�Ministers�is�actually�in�India�in�early�December�to�talk�about�that�subject.��We�are�

trying�to�build�up�some�evidence�and�some�pressure�to�put�on�them�to�try�to�move�the�whole�visa�situation�

forward.�

�

For�other�groups,�we�are�not�noticing�a�major�problem�as�far�as�students�are�concerned�and�that�is�not�an�

issue.�

�

As�far�as�the�EU�referendum�is�concerned,�although�it�is�there�and�people�sort�of�refer�to�it,�it�is�not�a�worry�at�

the�moment.��It�does�not�seem�to�be�causing�any�kind�of�investment�difficulty.��Whether�there�is�something�

Page 29



 

�

going�on�under�the�surface�that�we�are�not�seeing�remains�to�be�seen,�but�it�is�not�coming�up�in�meetings�with�

people�or,�if�it�does�come�up,�it�is�a�peripheral�subject.��There�still�seems�to�be�a�belief�by�the�majority�of�them�

that�we�will�ultimately�stay�in�[the�EU]�and�this�is�just�an�upheaval.��Of�course,�if�there�is�deregulation�for�those�

companies�that�have�already�invested�in�here,�they�are�very�keen�on�that�happening�anyway�and�so�it�is�in�their�

interests.�

�

That�is�really�where�we�are.��I�am�sorry�it�is�not�a�more�definitive�answer�on�that,�but�that�is�certainly�how�we�

see�it.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��That�was�very�interesting�and�I�am�particularly�interested�in�the�meeting�you�have�

coming�up�with�the�London�universities�and�with�the�Minister.�

�

Clearly,�the�importance�of�international�students�in�London�is�huge.��The�figures�I�have�seen�suggest�it�is�

£2.5�billion�that�they�add�to�London’s�economy�annually.��Clearly,�L&P�has�a�big�objective�to�increase�the�

number�of�international�students�coming�to�study�here,�as�does�the�United�Kingdom�(UK)�Government,�which�

says�it�has�that�objective.��Yet�the�UK�Government�also�has�an�objective�to�cut�net�migration.��When�you�

consider�the�proportion�of�net�migration�that�is�international�students�being�so�high,�those�two�policies�do�not�

make�any�sense�held�together.��It�is�almost�that�deep�confusion�at�the�heart�of�Government�policy�that�is�

sending�completely�mixed�messages.��We�have�seen�that,�obviously,�in�India�but�in�other�parts�of�the�world�as�

well.�

�

Clearly,�there�have�been�changes�to�immigration�policy.��It�is�not�just�the�rhetoric.��The�big�change,�of�course,�

is�the�removal�of�the�two-year�post-study�work�visa.��If�Theresa�May�[Rt�Hon�Theresa�May�MP,�

Home�Secretary]�had�had�her�way,�people�would�have�been�sent�home�the�day�after�they�graduated,�but�I�

think�they�now�have�four�months.��Nevertheless,�it�is�a�very�significant�change.��International�students�now�

have�to�pay�£150�a�year�each�towards�the�National�Health�Service�(NHS)�whether�they�use�it�or�not.��There�are�

other�changes:�they�are�interviewed�by�the�UK�Border�Force�on�entry�to�check�their�bona�fides,�which�is�

something�that�may�well�put�off�international�students�if�they�feel�they�are�going�to�have�to�go�through�that�

kind�of�hurdle.��It�does�not�make�them�feel�welcome.��There�have�been�real�changes�as�well�as�the�rhetoric.�

�

My�question�to�you�is:�to�what�extent�is�the�Mayor�lobbying�Ministers�to�make�London�and�the�UK�more�open�

to�international�students?��For�instance,�one�of�the�big�calls�has�been�to�remove�international�students�from�

the�net�migration�figures.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�can,�firstly,�assure�you�that�the�Mayor�has�certainly�had�

correspondence�on�Indian�visas�and�on�that�group�in�particular�and�particularly�on�the�tier-two�problem.�

�

The�argument�is�that�if�you�come�here�to�do�your�university�degree,�that�is�fine,�but�you�then�need�to�gain�

some�work�experience�and,�therefore,�it�is�getting�that�job�for�a�couple�of�years�before�you�then�return�to�your�

home�country.��The�rules�have�been�changed�so�that�you�can�stay�here�only�four�months�but,�even�worse�than�

that,�you�have�to�earn�a�minimum�of�£20,800�a�year�or�proportionate�of�that,�which�is�a�pretty�high�salary�for�

any�student�to�pick�up�having�just�left�university.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Indeed.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��It�is�another�obstacle�that�is�in�the�way.��For�us,�it�is�really�

important�and�the�Mayor�has�picked�this�up�on�a�number�of�occasions.��He�has�lobbied�for�it�hard.�

�

Page 30



 

�

If�you�go�to�countries�like�India�-�and�that�is�just�an�example�-�why�do�so�many�of�those�Indian�companies�

invest�in�London?��Why�do�they�welcome�British�companies�investing�in�India?��It�is�probably�because�they�

came�here�to�school,�came�here�to�university,�came�here�and�had�some�contact.��Of�course,�we�are�turning�that�

contact�off�and�all�we�are�doing�is�sending�those�same�individuals�off�to�Australia�or�off�to�the�United�States�

(US)�and�they�are�then�getting�the�net�--�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��We�are�doing�it�at�a�time�when�we�have�a�shortage�of�science�and�engineering�

graduates�here�in�London.��We�need�international�students�to�fill�that�gap.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�do�not�think�anybody�can�say�the�Mayor�has�not�argued�for�

relaxation�of�the�visa�situation�and�has�been�supportive�of�it,�particularly�for�this�group�of�individuals.��We�are�

continuing�to�do�that.��The�Mayor�is�doing�that.��We�are�continuing�to�lobby.�

�

As�I�said,�we�have�this�meeting,�which�is�designed�to�pile�more�pressure�on.��Certainly�having�the�universities�

on�board�with�us�and�speaking�with�one�voice�will�be�helpful.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Good.��Thanks�very�much�and�I�hope�that�you�will�keep�us�informed�of�progress�with�

lobbying�for�changes.�

�

Can�I�move�on�to�the�European�dimension?��You�said�that,�as�far�as�you�could�see,�it�was�not�a�worry�at�the�

moment�for�FDI.��Yet�I�can�point�to�an�Ernst�&�Young�(EY)�report�published�in�May�this�year,�its�attractiveness�

report,�which�found�that�31%�of�investors�were�either�reducing�or�freezing�their�planned�investments�up�to�

2017�as�a�result�of�insecurity�caused�by�the�referendum.��We�have�one�report�that�surveyed�overseas�investors�

and�found�that�almost�a�third�of�them�are�putting�their�investments�on�hold�in�London.��Are�you�confident�that�

you�think�it�is�not�having�an�effect�at�the�moment?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��I�am�aware�of�that�EY�report.��FDI�data�is�notoriously�

difficult�to�gather.��You�have�the�EY�report,�you�have�fDi�Markets,�which�is�part�of�the�Financial�Times�(FT)�

group,�and�then�you�have�the�Government’s�own�data�from�UK�Trade�&�Investment�(UKTI),�all�of�which�say�

different�things�and�none�of�which�are�comprehensive.�

�

Certainly�from�our�experience,�we�are�not�seeing�it�having�an�impact�on�the�investment�that�we�support.��We�

are�talking�at�the�moment�to�around�1,000�companies�that�are�potentially�going�to�invest�in�London.��Each�

year,�around�250�or�300�of�those�will.��This�year,�our�numbers�are�up�again�on�last�year.��We�are�not�seeing�

that�slowdown.��It�may�be�that�follow-on�investment�is�being�deferred.��That�is�possible�and�we�would�not�be�

picking�that�up.��We�tend�to�focus�on�the�newer�investment�coming�in.��Where�it�is�--�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��It�seems�intuitive,�does�it�not?��If�people�are�saying�the�reason�they�are�coming�to�us�is�

for�access�to�the�EU�-�and�a�lot�of�them�are�-�and�if�there�is�insecurity�about�whether�we�are�going�to�be�a�

member�of�the�EU,�it�is�going�to�be�something�that�is�going�to�worry�them.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��It�varies�by�function,�by�company�and�by�geography�of�

where�the�investment�is�coming�from.��When�I�sit�down�with�American�investors,�they�tend�to�be�quite�relaxed�

about�it.��They�talk�about�having�their�investments�in�Switzerland�and�being�able�to�trade�from�Switzerland�and�

they�cannot�believe�that�something�would�not�be�sorted�out.��When�we�talk�to�Japanese�investors,�they�tend�

to�be�more�cautious�and�want�to�make�sure�there�is�greater�certainty.��Equally,�in�areas�such�as�life�sciences�

and�certain�aspects�of�financial�services�where�you�need�passport�regulations,�there�are�particular�functions�

where�there�might�be�greater�concern�about�the�investment�if�the�UK�was�not�part�of�that�regulatory�system.�

�

Page 31



 

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Do�you�think�Japanese�investors�and�life�science�investors�are�all�particularly�concerned�

about�it?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��There�are�particular�investments�within�those�areas�where�

there�would�be�greater�concerns�than�in�other�areas.��However,�you�are�right.��The�two�key�reasons�investors�

give�us�for�coming�to�London�are,�firstly,�the�access�to�markets�and,�secondly,�the�talent�that�exists�here.��

Those�are�the�key�drivers.�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Would�you�agree�that�we�have�a�set�of�Government�policies�that�is�actually�hampering�

your�key�purpose�in�terms�of�bringing�international�investment�and�international�students�to�London?��Your�

aims�are�being�hampered�by�the�Government.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�sit�on�various�groups�at�national�Government�level.��On�

the�visa�side,�we�contribute�to�Home�Office�groups�and�we�contribute�the�data,�the�input�and�the�insights�that�

we�have�from�the�clients.��As�Ed�[Sir�Edward�Lister]�said,�we�try�to�feed�that�in�to�influence�policies�--�

�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��The�answer�is�yes,�is�it?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��I�would�not�want�to�be�seen�to�be�criticising�national�

Government�policy�at�the�London�Assembly.��I�will�leave�that�to�Ed�to�do.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��I�would�like�to�follow�up�on�some�of�the�similar�issues,�actually.��Sir�Edward,�looking�

firstly�at�the�student�visa�issue,�you�have�talked�about�universities.��However,�in�July�2015,�the�Government�

also�tightened�the�rules�affecting�further�education�(FE)�students�by,�for�example,�limiting�the�length�of�a�visa�

to�two�years�instead�of�three.��You�have�made�a�point�about�how�you�have�made�representations�to�the�

Government�-�or�the�Mayor�has�-�but,�presumably,�you�do�not�seem�to�have�achieved�very�much�in�that�we�still�

had�these�changes�coming�in�in�July�2015.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��No,�that�is�right.��We�are�having�difficulty�getting�cut-through�

on�this.��There�has�been�some�relaxation�in�certain�areas.��It�does�not�seem�to�be�a�big�problem�with�Chinese�

students�but�it�is�a�problem�with�Indian�students.��There�are�these�kinds�of�issues�that�are�out�there�at�the�

moment.�

�

We�have�done�our�best�to�lobby�on�this,�but�it�is�actually�one�where�there�is�not�a�lot�of�traction�from�the�

Home�Office.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Our�focus�is�very�much�on�higher�education�because�that�is�

where�the�significant�value�is�for�international�students�rather�than�the�FE�sector.��While�FE�is�obviously�

extremely�important,�you�get�fewer�international�students�in�that�area.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Even�so,�for�every�520�students,�they�are�bringing�the�equivalent�of�97,000�leisure�

tourists,�are�they�not?��It�is�a�huge�hit�on�London’s�income.��Just�over�500�students�bring�in�£20�million�a�year.��

What�are�you�doing,�Sir�Edward,�to�redouble�the�efforts�to�try�to�push�the�Government�harder�on�this?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��That�is�why�we�have�convened�this�meeting�with�the�

universities�because�we�have�to�try�to�speak�as�one�voice.��Do�not�forget�that�we�got�ourselves�into�this�

problem�because�one�or�two�universities�were�seen�by�the�Home�Office�-�without�going�into�the�whys�and�

wherefores�of�it-to�have�been�breaking�the�rules.��That�gave�those�who�wanted�it�the�excuse�to�cut�back�on�

student�visas.��That�is�why�it�is�very�important�that�we�work�jointly�with�the�universities�to�find�ways�in�which�

Page 32



 

�

we�can�give�the�kind�of�reassurance�that�the�Home�Office�is�looking�for.��That�is�about�us�working�together�

with�them�and�working�with�the�chancellors�of�the�universities�to�make�the�case.��That�is�what�we�are�doing.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Will�you�bring�the�FE�sector�as�well�into�that�meeting?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�will�happily�bring�the�FE�sector�in,�although�I�will�just�reiterate�

that�all�our�evidence�is�that�that�has�never�been�as�strong�a�sector�as�the�university�sector�is�for�Indian�students�

simply�because�of�the�cost�issue.��If�you�are�coming�here,�you�have�to�be�relatively�wealthy�in�the�first�place�

and�so�they�tend�to�be�people�going�to�university.��However,�I�will�happily�take�that�point�on�board.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��If�we�have�figures�that�are�halving�over�the�four�years�to�2013�in�Indian�students�and�

we�have�further�restrictions�coming�in�in�the�summer�of�this�year�-�and�some�of�those�have�been�discussed�

already�apart�from�the�FE�impact�-�then�it�is�sending�a�pretty�poor�message�around�the�rest�of�the�world,�is�it�

not?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�are�also,�in�the�promotional�work�we�do�running�the�

Study�London�website�and�working�with�the�universities,�trying�to�be�pragmatic.��As�Ed�[Sir�Edward�Lister]�said,�

there�is�less�of�an�issue�in�the�Chinese�market.��The�model�that�agents�sell�to�potential�Chinese�students�

around�how�they�pay�back�their�fees�would�typically�be�a�different�model,�which�has�been�less�impacted�and�so�

we�have�been�pushing�more�in�that�market.�

�

We�launched�a�couple�of�years�ago�a�specific�Chinese-language�site�and�a�number�of�social�media�sites�to�try�to�

fill�the�Indian�gap�with�more�Chinese�students,�which�has�been�successful.��We�are�also�doing�more�with�a�

number�of�universities�this�year�in�the�Middle�East�market,�again,�to�try�to�boost�the�numbers�from�that�

market.�

�

We�are�trying�to�work�around�to�a�degree�but�we�are�also�focused�on�the�Indian�market�as�the�important�one.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��In�the�Chinese�market,�you�have�the�close�working�relationships�

between�London�universities�and�Chinese�universities.��You�do�not�have�those�same�linkages�with�the�Indian�

universities.��You�could�say�that�that�is�because�the�visa�problem�has�resulted�in�less�connection�taking�place�

and�we�have�to�try�to�do�something�about�that,�but�all�we�are�trying�to�say�is�that�we�are�trying�to�push�open�

the�doors�that�we�can�open�relatively�easily.��We�are�going�for�some�low-hanging�fruit�and�we�are�unashamedly�

doing�that.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Obviously,�China�is�flavour�of�the�month�at�the�moment.��As�far�as�Indian�students�are�

concerned,�once�we�have�lost�that�market,�they�will�have�gone�to�America�and�the�links�will�be�broken.��That�is�

a�pity,�bearing�in�mind�our�longstanding�cultural�and�economic�links�with�India.��It�is�potentially�a�market�that�

has�gone�forever,�is�it�not?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�are�seeing,�as�Ed�[Sir�Edward�Lister]�said,�it�stabilising.��

In�the�last�couple�of�months,�we�have�seen�a�significant�uplift�again�from�the�Indian�market.��We�have�been�

doing�quite�a�lot�of�public�relations�(PR)�activity,�working�with�The�Times�of�India�and�others�to�try�to�reset�the�

messaging�in�India�about�the�quality�of�the�education,�the�quality�of�the�experience�and�the�welcome�that�

Indian�students�will�get.��I�would�hope�that�we�will�start�to�see�that�turn�around,�having�stabilised�in�the�last�

couple�of�months,�but�we�are�a�bit�too�early�to�tell.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Of�course,�we�have�the�rest�of�the�world�as�well.�

�

Page 33



 

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Yes.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Could�I�go�on�to�talk�about�some�of�the�issues�around�the�[potential�of]�“Brexit”�[UK�

exit�from�the�EU].��In�your�business�plan,�Sir�Edward,�you�state�that�you�are�focused�on�proactively�targeting�

“international�and�European�headquarters�functions”.��What�modelling�have�you�done�about�the�implications�

of�a�British�exit�for�this�particular�objective?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��At�the�moment,�it�is�all�anecdotal.��Our�research�team�is�

going�to�be�looking�at�this�and�looking�particularly�at�the�functions�that�could�be�impacted,�looking�at�the�

impact�it�could�have�on�both�international�and�European�headquarters.��At�the�moment,�it�is�simply�anecdotal�

and�we�have�not�had�the�resources�to�do�any�detailed�modelling.��I�know�the�national�Government�has�not�

done�any�modelling�in�this�area,�either.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Do�you�not�think�it�needs�to�be�done?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Yes,�absolutely.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��This�is�potentially�creeping�up�on�us�and�Sir�Edward�may�be�right�and�people�may�be�

discounting�the�risk�of�us�actually�leaving�because�the�messages�seem�to�be�changing�virtually�daily�about�that.��

It�is�an�uncertainty�and�we�do�have�some�internationals�already�having�expressed�concerns�about�the�risk�of�

Brexit�and�suggesting�they�will�be�scaling�back�what�they�have�already;�Nestlé,�Hyundai,�Ford,�Goldman�Sachs,�

to�name�a�few.��It�is�a�potentially�grave�problem.��As�we�get�closer�to�the�referendum,�people�will�start�getting�

more�nervous,�will�they�not?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Absolutely,�I�agree.��We�need�to�do�that�work.��Again,�it�is�

worth�flagging�that�this�year�we�are�seeing�an�increase�in�the�investment�that�we�are�attracting�and�that�we�are�

supporting.��We�will�deliver�a�larger�number�of�jobs�this�year�than�we�have�ever�done�in�the�past.��Absolutely,�

that�work�needs�to�be�done�and�needs�to�be�done�quickly.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��If�Britain�were�to�leave�the�EU,�it�would�make�it�very�difficult�indeed�to�persuade�

global�firms�to�come�here,�would�it�not?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Yes.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Yes.��The�Confederation�of�British�Industry�(CBI)�has�said:�

�

“We�should�not�underestimate�the�potential�pitfalls�of�alternatives�to�full�EU�membership.��Being�

outside�with�limited�influence�could�leave�us�at�the�back�of�the�queue�for�signing�good�quality�trade�

deals�with�major�economies�and�also�hamper�our�access�to�the�EU�market�itself.”�

�

Would�you�concur�with�that?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��It�would�depend�on�what�the�relationship�is�and�if�there�was�

a�no�vote�in�the�referendum.��It�would�depend�on�what�the�relationship�was.��The�Mayor’s�Economic�Advisor,�

Gerard�Lyons,�has�done�some�analysis�on�potential�scenarios�and�what�the�impact�could�be�for�the�London�

economy.��That�is�the�most�detailed�work�that�I�have�seen�in�this�area.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��This�is�the�CBI’s�response�to�the�Mayor�of�London’s�Europe�Report,�which�is�what�

Mr�Lyons�was�talking�about�and�what�you�have�just�referred�to.�

Page 34



 

�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��All�we�can�do�is�report�back�on�the�people�that�we�are�having�a�

dialogue�with.��The�referendum�is�going�to�take�place�at�some�point�in�the�next�year�or�so.��From�our�point�of�

view,�the�quicker�it�happens�the�better�because�it�removes�the�uncertainty.�

�

However,�for�now,�we�have�to�keep�on�pumping�out�the�message�that�it�is�not�clear�what�the�outcome�is�going�

to�be.��This�is�still�one�of�the�most�dynamic�markets�in�Europe.��It�is�still�in�its�own�right�a�very�strong�market�to�

come�into�and�the�benefit�if�there�is�a�renegotiation�will�be�a�reduction�in�bureaucracy,�which�of�course�will�be�

to�their�benefit.��There�are�attractions�as�well�because�those�same�companies�do�complain�about�the�red�tape�

that�is�involved�in�establishing�businesses�in�this�country.��There�is�another�side�to�this�coin.�

�

Having�said�what�we�have�said,�as�far�as�we�are�concerned,�the�quicker�this�comes�to�a�conclusion�the�better,�

but�I�suspect�it�is�not�going�to�come�quickly.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Do�you�envisage�any�circumstances�at�all�in�which�the�Mayor�would�be�advocating�a�

no�vote�in�the�referendum?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��That�is,�I�am�afraid,�a�question�you�really�have�to�ask�the�

Mayor.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��I�will�ask�L&P,�then.��Do�you�envisage�any�circumstances�in�which�L&P�would�be�

advocating�a�no�vote�in�the�referendum?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��No,�I�think�that�it�would�be�very�unwise�of�L&P�to�enter�into�

that�particular�political�battle.��That�is�probably�one�better�placed�here�than�there.�

�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Why�do�you�say�that,�Sir�Edward?��If�L&P’s�job�is�to�attract�inward�investment,�tourism�

and�all�the�rest�of�it�into�London�-�and�it�appears�from�what�you�were�saying�in�the�discussion�we�have�just�had�

that�EU�membership�is�very�important�to�London�-�why�would�L&P�not�want�to�express�a�view�about�that�

along�with�all�of�the�other�groups�that�are�making�their�points�of�view�heard?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��L&P,�as�its�name�implies,�works�with�a�number�of�partners.��We�

work�very�closely�with�the�hotel�industry.��We�work�very�closely�with�the�Government�and�UKTI.��We�work�

closely�with�FDI�organisations,�banking�organisations�and�all�the�rest�of�them.��It�is�not�for�us�to�enter�into�that�

particular�political�battlefield.��That�is�something�better�done�elsewhere.��It�is�our�job�to�promote�London�in�the�

best�way�we�can.��If�we�were�outside�the�EU,�we�would�still�be�in�the�same�position�of�having�to�promote�

London.�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��Can�I�just�ask�you�one�or�two�more�questions�about�the�European�dimension?��It�is�

right,�is�it�not,�that�more�Americans�visit�London�as�a�tourist�destination�than�any�other�European�city?��Is�it�

also�not�correct�that�there�is�more�trade�done�by�this�country�-�and�by�London,�obviously�-�with�Asia�and�with�

the�Americas�than,�indeed,�with�Europe?�

�

My�question�to�you,�really,�is:�are�you�intending�to�ask�a�specific�question�in�any�survey�you�do�of�tourists�

particularly�about�the�attractions�of�London�as�opposed�to�Europe�or�in�comparison�to�Europe.��It�seems�to�me�

that�that�is�rather�important�in�promoting�London.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Our�largest�tourism�markets,�as�you�say,�are�the�US,�France�

and�Germany�by�volume,�but�the�US�by�far�in�terms�of�value�is�the�largest.�

Page 35



 

�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��What�about�Asia?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��It�depends�on�which�country�in�Asia.��Someone�mentioned�

that�China�is�flavour�of�the�month.��China�is�still�in�the�30s:�I�think�it�is�about�the�35th�or�36th�largest�source�

market�for�tourists�in�London�but�a�very�large�spending�market�and�gets�into�the�top�teams�in�teams�in�terms�

of�spend.��Because�of�the�limited�resources�we�have,�we�are�focused�on�bringing�the�highest�return�in�the�

volume�of�tourists�and�the�spend�of�tourists�and�so�our�focus�is�on�those�high�value,�high�volume�markets.�

�

In�the�work�that�we�are�doing�on�the�long-term�strategy�for�London,�we�are�going�out�and�asking�American�

tourists�specifically�the�questions�you�have�put�about�the�attractiveness�of�London,�about�the�experiences�they�

are�interested�in�having�and�how�London�compares�to�other�destinations�and�whether�or�not�we�have�the�right�

products�or�are�promoting�the�right�products.��We�are�gathering�that�evidence�at�the�moment�and�getting�the�

results.�

�

The�initial�evidence�suggests�that�we�need�to�focus�more�on�the�experiences�that�they�have�rather�than�the�

actual�products�that�we�offer,�but�that�London�does�have�the�diversity�of�product�that�will�be�needed�in�future�

years�to�continue�to�attract�American�visitors�in.��It�is�about�we�package�that,�how�we�promote�that�and�how�

we�reach�those�people�and�through�which�channels.��That�is�what�is�really�important.�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��Do�you�ask�the�same�question�of�the�Asian�visitors,�particularly�the�Chinese?��I�see�vast�

numbers�of�Chinese�in�London�and,�indeed,�Japanese�and�others�from�the�Far�East.��Presumably,�it�is�just�as�

attractive�to�them?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��With�this�long-term�strategy�work,�we�have�gone�out�to�a�

small�number�of�European�markets,�to�China�and�I�believe�to�one�other�in�Asia.��My�apologies;�I�can�give�you�

that�data.��For�the�Chinese�visitor,�there�is�different�evidence�coming�in�about�the�welcome,�about�the�food�

offerings�here,�about�Chinese�language�signage,�tour�guides,�etc.��We�have�done�quite�a�bit�of�work�with�the�

hotel�industry�and�with�Visit�Britain�to�try�to�make�sure�that�that�is�understood�within�the�industry�and�that�we�

are�growing�the�number�of�Blue�Badge�guides�and�the�amount�of�Chinese�signage�within�the�key�attractions,�

etc.�

�

We�are�also�looking�to�do�a�piece�of�work�early�next�year�again�with�Visit�Britain�in�the�China�market,�which�we�

have�really�focused�on�the�trade�rather�than�wider�promotion.���We�will�be�using�that�research-�through�some�

Chinese�celebrities�-�to�go�back�into�the�Chinese�market�and�make�sure�that�the�Chinese�audience�sees�the�

‘wow’�factor�that�London�has�and�that�appeals�to�the�things�that�they�are�interested�in.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�number�of�Chinese�visitors�to�London�was�99,000�in�2014,�

which�was�less�than�1%.��They�are�not�there�in�volume�but,�as�Gordon�says,�they�are�there�in�spend.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��They�are�particularly�important�to�the�retail�sector,�to�some�

of�the�five-star�luxury�hotels,�etc.��There�are�bits�of�the�economy�for�which�that�market�is�very�important.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Things�like�having�renminbi-issuing�cash�machines�in�certain�

stores�and�things�like�that�actually�were�more�important�because�that�enabled�them�to�access�cash�relatively�

easily�here�in�London.�

�

The�trouble�is�that�we�are�now�moving�into�the�other�problem�area,�which�is�Schengen.��Of�course,�we�are�not�

in�the�Schengen�Agreement.��If�a�Chinese�tourist�comes�to�Europe,�they�have�to�get�two�visas,�one�to�come�to�

Page 36



 

�

the�UK�and�one�to�go�to�the�Schengen�countries.��Although�that�has�eased�now�that�there�is�an�agreement�

where�they�can�buy�their�Schengen�visa�and�their�UK�visa�in�one�operation�and�that�has�improved�the�situation,�

it�is�relatively�new.��It�is�fair�to�say�that�that�has�not�yet�worked�its�way�into�the�system,�but�hopefully�it�will�

and�hopefully�it�will�show�an�increase�in�the�number�of�visitors.�

�

Roger�Evans�AM:��I�would�like�to�return�to�the�debate�about�building�links�with�the�Indian�market�here�in�

London.��Recently�I�spoke�at�the�World�Hindu�Economic�Forum�and�also�at�Diwali�in�the�Square�and�I�was�

struck�on�both�of�those�occasions�by�the�size�and�the�enthusiasm�of�London’s�population�of�Hindus�and�Sikhs�

with�Indian�roots.�

�

What�is�L&P�doing�to�use�that�enthusiasm�and�those�existing�links�to�benefit�the�city�and�to�encourage�more�

development?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��There�are�two�bits�to�add.��Firstly,�we�are�trying�to�use�some�

Indian�role�models�in�publicity�and�in�reputation.��Indeed,�I�have�forgotten�the�name�of�the�individual�but�we�

have�one�who�is�a�particularly�famous�film�star.��Forgive�me;�I�will�have�to�give�you�the�name.��Famous�in�India,�

obviously.��It�is�people�like�that�and,�if�we�can�get�them�on�board�talking�about�London,�it�is�worth�an�awful�

lot.��That�is�what�we�are�trying�to�do.��We�are�trying�to�find�advocates.��We�are�fortunate�in�having�an�office�in�

India.��We�have�L&P�people�there�in�the�country.��Therefore,�we�are�relatively�well�placed�to�do�some�of�this.��

There�is�that�work�going�on.��I�mentioned�the�meeting�with�the�universities,�which�is�important.�

�

The�other�one,�of�course,�is�trying�to�-�as�they�are�beginning�to�-�enable�visas�for�business�people�to�get�in�and�

for�longer�periods�of�time.��That�is�very�important�and�that�is�a�big�issue�with�some�of�the�biggest�investors�in�

the�UK.��There�are�some�pretty�big�Indian�investors�working�here�and�they�are�getting�their�visas,�but�it�is�a�

slow�process.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��There�are�two�things�maybe�just�to�add�to�that.��On�the�

tourism�side,�we�have�pulled�back�the�work�we�do�in�India,�the�reason�being�that�the�data�showed�that�the�

additionality�that�we�could�have�was�smaller�than�in�other�markets.��A�lot�of�the�Indian�visitors�will�come�

anyway�to�visit�family�and�relatives�here.��Therefore,�they�do�not�need�us�to�use�public�money�to�bring�them�

here�and�we�have�pulled�back�from�that�market.�

�

On�the�investment�side,�India�is�our�third-largest�source�market�for�FDI�and�we�are�working�currently�with�

Tech�London�Advocates�and�others�in�the�technology�sector.��We�have�recently�launched�a�campaign�with�

British�Airways�and�others�called�The�Future�20,�which�is�about�trying�to�identify�the�next�20�global�companies�

that�will�come�out�of�India�-�whether�it�is�Wipro,�TCS,�Tata�or�others�-�and�to�hook�them�into�London�and�for�

London�to�be�their�international�partner,�to�bring�those�companies�into�London,�to�support�and�mentor�them,�

to�introduce�them�to�investors�here,�etc.��That�piece�of�work�is�very�important�to�us�and�we�will�be�rolling�that�

out�over�the�next�few�months.��We�think�we�will�get�quite�a�lot�of�publicity�around�that�in�the�Indian�market�to�

remind�Indians�of�the�importance�of�London�as�a�springboard�for�them�so�that�they�should�look�to�London�to�

internationalise�rather�than�looking�on�the�technology�side�to�the�west�coast�of�the�US,�like�a�number�of�them�

do.�

�

Roger�Evans�AM:��I�also�spoke�at�a�breakfast�quite�recently�when�we�welcomed�the�China�Development�

Banking�Corporation�to�London�on�opening�its�first�office.��What�is�L&P�doing�to�encourage�more�Chinese�

financial�institutions�to�base�themselves�in�London?�

�

Page 37



 

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��A�lot.��If�you�look�at�the�tier-one�Chinese�banks�that�have�

all�set�up�operations�here,�we�were�involved�in�all�of�those,�supporting�their�investment,�helping�to�attract�their�

investment�to�get�them�here�and�helping�them�get�established�and�get�a�customer�base�here.�

�

We�were�involved�in�working�with�the�Corporation�and�others�on�advocacy�when�there�was�an�issue�around�

branch�versus�subsidiary,�which�was�encouraging�some�of�the�Chinese�banks�to�set�up�in�Luxemburg�or�

elsewhere�rather�than�in�London.��That�was�resolved�last�year�by�the�Chancellor�[of�the�Exchequer,�

Rt�Hon�George�Osbourne�MP].�

�

We�are�now�working�with�what�we�would�call�the�tier-two�banks�in�China.��Having�got�the�large�tier-one�banks,�

we�are�working�with�the�tier-two�banks,�again,�to�encourage�them�to�come�here.��We�have�operations�in�

Shanghai�and�in�Beijing�with�a�small�number�of�staff,�about�three�staff�in�each.��A�lot�of�their�activity�is�focused�

on�Chinese�financial�services�firms.��In�fact,�the�officer�who�heads�up�that�team�was�with�the�Bank�of�China�and�

helped�to�expand�its�international�operation�into�London.��We�have�specifically�recruited�in�this�area�to�have�

the�expertise�to�provide�the�support.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�was�just�going�to�add�that�of�those�organisations�opening�up,�

on�at�least�two�occasions�the�Mayor�has�opened�their�offices.��We�have�been�quite�active�in�encouraging�them�

and�helping�them.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��It�is�only�to�follow�on�from�what�my�colleague�Roger�Evans�[AM]�was�saying.��By�2040,�

the�young�population�of�Africa�will�dwarf�that�of�China�and�India.��I�want�to�know�what�it�is�L&P�is�doing�to�

recognise�the�consequential�increase�in�economic�activity�that�there�is�taking�place�in�sub-Saharan�Africa�and�

how�we�are�going�to�seize�those�opportunities�as�the�major�trading�capital�of�the�world?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��It�would�be�nice�to�say�that�we�are�about�to�do�lots�of�things�in�

Africa,�but�we�are�not�--�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��I�know�you�are�not.��That�is�why�I�asked�the�question.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��--�and�it�is�simply�a�matter�of�resources.��The�resources�have�

been�prioritised�into�certain�markets�and�the�African�market�is�not�one�of�the�priorities.��That�is�not�to�say�that�

there�is�not�a�big�market�there,�but�there�is�a�budget�that�we�have�and�it�is�just�not�feasible�to�do�an�enormous�

amount�more�in�those�markets.��The�priorities�do�very�much�remain�in�place�about�the�US,�which�is�still�the�

biggest�single�investor�in�this�country�and�also�a�major�source�of�tourism.��The�US�is�very�much�number�one�

and�then�you�are�moving�to�China,�Asia�and�India.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��There�are�two�areas�where�we�are�doing�relatively�small�

amounts�of�work�in�Africa.��One�is�attracting�Nigerian�students,�which�is�quite�a�large�market�for�international�

students.��It�is�not�in�the�top�three�or�four�but�it�is�still�quite�large.��It�is�in�the�top�ten;�I�cannot�recall�exactly�

where.��We�are�pushing�out�content�that�is�relevant�to�that�market�and�trying�to�get�PR�in�that�economy.�

�

The�other�one�is�slightly�odd�and�now�we�are�not�doing�much�at�the�moment,�but�we�have�seen�a�lot�of�

investment�coming�into�the�west�of�London�from�commodity�companies�and�extraction�industry�companies�

focused�on�sub-Saharan�Africa.��Having�their�European�operations�here�are�Australian�mining�companies�and�

East�European�mining�companies�and�they�are�coming�to�London�specifically�to�access�the�sub-Saharan�

opportunities.�

�

Page 38



 

�

Therefore,�although�we�are�not�focused�specifically�on�Africa,�we�are�selling�the�links�that�we�have�and�the�

historic�links�that�we�have�as�well�as�the�family�links�and�tradable�links�with�those�markets.��Obviously�now�with�

the�commodity�price,�we�are�not�seeing�that�investment�flowing�in�in�the�way�it�was�a�few�years�ago,�but�that�

will�pick�up�at�some�point.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Are�you�aware�that�amongst�the�population�of�600,000�in�London�who�have�African�

heritage�-�the�African�diaspora�-�there�is�frustration�about�the�way�in�which�China,�France�and�other�countries�

seem�to�be�doing�so�well?��There�is�actually�an�enormous�amount�of�goodwill�and�they�just�want�to�see�us�

extend�a�hand�of�welcome�in�order�to�establish�trading�links�with�sub-Saharan�Africa.��Are�you�aware�that�there�

is�that�frustration�among�a�very�large�proportion�of�London’s�population?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�are�aware�of�that.��Indeed,�it�is�one�of�the�frustrations,�of�

course,�that�we�still�have�those�tremendous�links�through�the�Commonwealth.��

The�Commonwealth�Business�Council�has�done�quite�a�lot�of�work�building�up�its�organisation.��There�is�quite�a�

lot�happening�in�other�places.�

�

However,�from�our�point�of�view,�with�the�resources�we�have,�we�have�to�prioritise�them�and�at�the�moment�

the�priorities�are�as�set�out.��That�is�not�to�say�one�should�not�look�at�different�priorities,�but�if�we�were�to�go�

into�one�of�those�areas,�we�would�have�to�cut�back�somewhere�else.��That,�I�am�afraid,�is�the�issue.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Let�us�go�on�to�the�next�question.�

�

2015/3551�-�London�&�Partners’�strategic�delivery�

Fiona�Twycross�AM�

�

How�effective�is�London�and�Partners�in�delivering�jobs,�investment�and�tourism�for�London?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��This�is�really�about�the�inward�investment�side�for�us.��This�is�

where�we�have�been�particularly�effective.�

�

Firstly,�I�will�just�make�this�point.��Since�we�merged�all�of�these�individual�organisations�together,�we�have�

made�about�£2�million�worth�of�back-office�savings.��That�has�all�been�ploughed�back�through�into�the�

organisation.�

�

Therefore,�now�it�is�very�much�about�how�we�deliver�more�and�what�those�areas�are.��The�obvious�one�is�the�

FDI�area,�where�L&P�has�been�involved�with�over�1,000�companies.��Kit�[Malthouse�AM�MP]�was�very�involved�

when�he�was�Chairman�[of�L&P]�with�a�lot�of�that�work.��That�has�been�a�great�success�and�we�have�been�able�

to�attract�a�lot�of�inward�investment�into�London,�moving�their�offices�and�moving�their�headquarters�here,�

and�that�has�been�a�great�story.��Those�bits�we�are�very�pleased�about.�

�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��I�would�like�to�start�my�questioning�by�asking�a�few�questions�about�transparency�at�

L&P�simply�because,�without�solid�accountability�policies�in�place,�it�is�quite�difficult�for�us�as�Assembly�

Members�to�judge�how�L&P�is�delivering�on�the�core�objectives.�

�

As�you�are�aware,�Sir�Edward,�last�December�we�had�correspondence�over�transparency�at�L&P.��As�part�of�that�

exchange,�you�talked�about�L&P’s�status�as�a�not-for-profit�partnership�and�how�that�gave�it�

‘institutional�agility’.��What�does�this�phrase�mean�in�practice?��How�important�is�that�agility�and�how�does�it�

affect�transparency�as�well?�

�

Page 39



 

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��There�are�two�parts.��Firstly,�just�dealing�with�the�transparency�

point,�we�did�radically�overhaul�the�transparency�policies�of�L&P�at�the�instigation�of�the�Assembly�and�we�put�

in�the�new�process�in�April�[2015].��We�are�now�publishing�far�more�information�than�was�ever�published�

previously.�

�

We�are�on�a�journey.��Whether�we�have�reached�the�right�spot�on�that�journey�of�transparency,�I�do�not�know.��

It�needs�to�be�kept�under�constant�review.��The�Board�is�keeping�it�under�review.��The�Board�will�want�to�look�

and�see�what�the�upsides�and�downsides�have�been�of�this�and�whether�we�should�go�further.��That�is�worthy�

of�a�lot�more�conversation�and�it�will�continue.�

�

However,�on�the�agility�point,�it�is�really�important�that�L&P�is�able�to�move�quickly.��We�do�raise�now�pretty�

much�half�our�money�from�the�private�sector,�either�money�or�support�in�kind,�and�it�is�obvious�for�some�of�

those�organisations�that�they�are�concerned�if�too�much�publicity�is�put�out�that�they�are�not�in�agreement�

with.��We�simply�have�to�handle�that�sensitively.��It�is�just�normal�commercial�practice.��When�we�are�obtaining�

money�from�various�sources,�it�is�all�in�the�accounts�and�it�is�all�transparent�in�that�sense.��L&P�has�been�able�

to�move�around�quite�quickly�and�has�been�able�to�identify�opportunities�with�our�partners.��That�has�worked�

pretty�well.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Perhaps�just�to�give�an�example,�for�the�last�tourism�

campaign�that�we�ran�-�we�called�it�the�London’s�Guest�of�Honour�campaign�-�that�reached�around�300�million�

potential�visitors.��We�had�funding�through�the�GREAT�Campaign.��It�was�its�most�effective�campaign�last�year�

with�about�a�third�of�the�budget�of�a�lot�of�the�other�ones�that�it�ran.�

�

What�we�were�able�to�do�was,�for�every�£1�that�we�were�put�in,�we�were�able�to�raise�£4�from�the�private�

sector.��That�meant�that�that�money�went�significantly�further�than�other�national�Government�organisations�

had�been�able�to�do.��Recently�-�and�I�do�not�in�any�way�wish�to�criticise�my�colleagues�at�Visit�Britain,�who�are�

doing�a�great�job,�but�by�way�of�example�-�their�visitor-spend-to-grant�return�on�investment�is�about�20-to-1.��

When�we�did�the�same�analysis�for�that�campaign,�we�were�about�double�in�terms�of�what�we�were�able�to�

attract�because�of�that�leverage�and�the�private�sector�funding.��We�are�currently�having�confidential�

negotiations�with�[credit]�card�providers,�with�airlines�and�others�potentially�about�long-term�relationships�

again�that�would�leverage�that�public�money�quite�significantly.�

�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��That�was�helpful�and�I�will�come�back�to�the�commercial�income�in�a�moment.��The�new�

transparency�arrangements,�as�you�have�said,�have�been�in�place�since�April�[2015].��The�quarter�1�update�by�

L&P�states�that�they�are�working�effectively.��Just�before�we�move�off�this�point,�how�has�the�assessment�been�

made�that�the�new�transparency�arrangements�are�working�effectively?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�have�published�now�all�the�things�we�said�we�would�publish.��

They�are�all�on�the�website.��To�the�best�of�my�knowledge,�everything�is�out�there.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Yes.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�now�need�to�find�out�what�people’s�views�are�about�that.��

We�do�need�to�talk�it�through�with�the�Board�a�bit�further.��As�you�know,�I�am�very�supportive�of�publishing�as�

much�as�we�possibly�can.��It�is�fair�to�say�that�the�Board�is�a�little�bit�more�nervous�and�that�is�understandable.��

It�is�just�a�balancing�act.��We�do�need�to�discuss�it�further�with�them�and�we�will�continue�to�do�that.��Let�us�

just�see�how�this�lot�goes�and�see�what�responses�and�reactions�we�get.�

�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��Do�you�have�a�timescale�for�reviewing�that?�

Page 40



 

�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��No,�but�we�have�always�assumed�that�the�natural�time�to�review�

it�would�be�after�a�year’s�worth�of�operations�and�so,�basically,�next�April�or�May�would�be�the�ideal�time�to�

look�again�at�it�to�see�how�it�has�gone.�

�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��As�Kit�[Malthouse�AM�MP]�mentioned�earlier,�he�was�the�last�Chairman�of�L&P�and�in�

January�this�year�he�said�to�the�Economy�Committee�that�L&P�had�failed�to�attract�sufficient�commercial�

income,�commenting,�“We�have�undershot�a�little”.�

�

Given�that�you�place�a�great�deal�of�emphasis�on�reflecting�a�wide�breadth�of�private�sector�experience,�would�

you�share�the�view�that�it�has�been�difficult�to�attract�commercial�income?��It�seems�to�differ�a�bit�from�the�

view�that�you�had�expressed.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��It�has�taken�longer.��We�were�perhaps�overoptimistic�about�

how�quickly�we�could�build�some�of�the�income�streams.��I�am�pleased�to�say�that�this�year�we�are�on�target�to�

exceed�the�commercial�income�target�that�we�set.��We�have�set�a�much�more�ambitious�one�again�next�year�

and�it�should�be�about�half�of�the�total�income�that�we�bring�in.��At�the�midyear�point,�I�do�not�have�the�exact�

figure�in�front�of�me�but�it�was�over�60%�of�the�annual�target�for�commercial�income.��We�have�restructured.��

We�have�brought�different�skills�into�that�team.��Also,�it�was�about�the�longevity�of�some�of�the�initiatives�that�

we�put�in�place.�

�

One�area�that�I�was�very�pleased�with�was�the�Dot�London�registry�that�we�run�on�behalf�of�the�city.��That�was�

profitable�within�its�first�year.��Within�12�months�it�became�profitable�and�we�were�able�to�pay�the�first�

dividend�into�the�company�this�year.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��If�I�may,�I�do�not�think�we�should�underestimate�just�how�hard�

it�is�to�persuade�companies�that�they�want�to�pay�into�an�organisation�like�L&P.��It�is�quite�an�exercise�and�we�

have�to�try�to�identify�some�long-term�funding�along�the�way�for�the�future.��That�is�the�hard�thing:�trying�to�

find�-�like�Dot�London�-�things�that�will�continue�to�give�us�income�over�a�long�period�of�time.��That�is�

something�we�spend�a�lot�of�time�talking�about�and�trying�to�identify�ways�of�doing�that.��We�are�where�we�are�

at�the�moment.��It�has�been�reasonably�successful�but�not�as�successful,�perhaps,�as�we�would�have�hoped.�

�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��I�noted�with�interest�because�one�of�my�questions�was�going�to�be�about�limited�

income�from�public�funds�in�the�future,�but�you�suggested�that�you�do�not�envisage�cuts�to�funding�centrally;�

you�just�envisage�the�proportion�of�GLA�money�compared�to�commercial�money�changing?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�sincerely�hope�we�are�not�going�to�be�cutting�the�budget�any�

further.��That�would�be�a�great�shame.�

�

I�remember�having�many�arguments�when�I�was�perhaps�on�the�other�side�of�the�fence�with�Kit�[Malthouse�AM�

MP]�when�he�was�in�my�position�about�what�the�percentages�should�be�or�not.��The�point�is�-�and�this�was�

Kit’s�point�always�to�me�and�I�now�fully�subscribe�to�it�-�that�as�a�city�we�are�spending�a�pittance�compared�

with�any�other�city�and�we�know�that.��We�are�actually�doing�an�awful�lot�for�relatively�little�money.��It�would�

be�an�awful�shame�if�we�now�reflected�what�are�likely�to�be�quite�difficult�settlements�in�London�and�cut�that�

budget�further.��We�must�do�our�best�to�try�to�protect�it.�

�

However,�we�have�to�get�more�money�in�and�that�means�we�have�to�make�the�percentage�of�our�total�budget�

much�less�because�we�do�need�to�spend�substantially�more�than�we�are.�

�

Page 41



 

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Just�to�paint�a�picture�of�the�last�four�years�since�we�were�

created,�as�Ed�[Sir�Edward�Lister]�said,�the�grant�funding�has�gone�done.��In�2011/12�it�was�£15.8�million�and�

it�has�gone�down�to�just�over�£11�million�next�year.��The�private�funding�has�gone�up�from�just�over�£4�million�

to�next�year�about�£10.5�million�or�close�to�£11�million.��Therefore,�we�are�very�slightly�ahead�but�the�funding�

bundle�each�year�has�been�broadly�the�same�and�the�makeup�has�been�different.��There�has�been�a�lower�call�

on�the�taxpayer�and�more�commercial�income�each�year,�but�the�overall�package�has�broadly�been�the�same�

each�year.�

�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��You�would�like�the�package�to�increase�in�order�to�do�more?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��I�certainly�would.��If�you�look�at�some�of�the�overseas�

comparisons,�as�Ed�[Sir�Edward�Lister]�mentioned,�there�was�a�report�published�by�Deloitte�earlier�this�year�on�

benchmarking�the�effectiveness�of�London’s�promotional�system.��That�showed�that�Berlin�was�spending�

almost�£40�million�on�tourism�alone.��Paris�was�spending�significantly�more�than�us,�again,�around�£40�million.��

New�York�was�spending�significantly�more�than�London.�

�

Therefore,�yes,�our�competitors�are�very�aggressively�going�after�the�tourist�pound�or�the�tourist�dollar�and�for�

direct�investment.��On�the�student�side,�we�have�seen�a�number�of�markets�change�their�policies�in�order�to�

attract,�for�example,�more�Indian�students�as�we�have�been�losing�them.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman�in�the�Chair):��Assembly�Member�Arnold?�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�Yes,�thank�you,�Deputy�Chairman.��My�question�is�to�both�of�our�guests.��I�think�

we�can�all�agree�that�having�high-quality�infrastructure�-�be�that�a�transport�network,�housing�or�power�

systems�-�are�vitally�important�in�attracting�trade�and�investment�to�London.�

�

Have�any�stakeholders�raised�concerns�with�L&P�regarding�broadband�connectivity�in�London?��I�raise�this�

question�as�London’s�infrastructure�has�been�called�a�national�disgrace.��Indeed,�the�

Federation�of�Small�Businesses�published�a�report�in�August�2014�-�I�do�not�know�if�you�are�aware�of�that�

report�-�saying�that�the�capital’s�broadband�infrastructure�was�not�fit�for�purpose.�

�

I�will�just�add�that�last�week�Assembly�Member�Johnson�and�I�received�a�delegation�of�assembly�members�from�

the�Tokyo�City�Council.��They�told�us�that�Japan�is�planning�one�gigabyte�to�each�stadium�seat�for�the�Olympic�

Games�in�six�years’�time.��We�have�here�in�London�a�measly�30�megabytes�if�you�are�lucky�on�a�good�day.��That�

is�for�downloading;�we�will�not�even�talk�about�uploading.�

�

Edward�[Sir�Edward�Lister],�is�there�a�failure�here?��What�is�L&P�doing�about�it?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Firstly,�in�fairness,�I�am�not�sure�it�is�an�L&P�issue�per�se.��It�is�

actually�a�little�bit�wider.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��You�have�a�role�to�play.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��It�is�certainly�a�mayoral�issue,�though,�and�I�fully�accept�that.��

There�are�a�number�of�things�we�are�trying�to�do�to�improve�the�situation.�

�

However,�we�are�constantly�getting�ourselves�caught�in�a�ridiculous�situation�of�-�I�would�suggest�-�almost�

market�failure.��There�are�just�not�enough�drivers�out�there�to�get�the�kind�of�broadband�services�we�need,�

both�wireless�and�hardwired,�across�the�city.��We�have�a�problem�with�state�aid:�unlike�other�countries,�we�

Page 42



 

�

cannot�put�money�into�this�area�easily,�mainly�because�ours�is�an�independent�and�private�telecoms�system�

rather�than�a�nationalised�industry.��If�you�are�in�certain�countries,�it�is�a�nationalised�industry�and�you�can�

spend�state�money�on�it.��It�is�a�problem.�

�

We�are�doing�a�number�of�things.��We�have�done�some�pretty�consistent�lobbying.��I�have�to�say�to�you�that�

we�have�not�had�a�lot�of�success�with�that.��We�have�brought�in�-�and�it�was�launched�a�short�while�ago�-�the�

certification�scheme�for�buildings.��We�will�certify�buildings�by�the�quality�of�their�connectivity.��The�highest�

grade�is�where�they�have�more�than�one�provider�because�that�is�what�companies�particularly�want.��They�want�

alternative�sources�of�supply�within�the�same�building.��They�want�it�both�hardwired�and�wireless.��They�want�it�

from�different�companies.��They�want�to�know�that�they�will�keep�functioning�no�matter�what�happens.��We�

have�that.��We�have�that�certification�scheme�launched.��A�number�of�buildings�have�signed�up�to�it�already.��It�

is�growing�quite�well.�

�

We�are�due�to�have�a�meeting�of�the�Mayor’s�Connectivity�Advisory�Group�shortly.��We�will�get�a�further�

update.��I�will,�if�may,�Chair,�make�sure�that�it�is�sent�through�to�you.��It�will�give�some�idea�of�where�we�are�

going.��However,�companies�like�Land�Securities�have�started�to�certificate�some�of�their�buildings.��It�is�people�

like�that.��We�are�trying�to�create�some�commercial�pressures�on�providers�to�deal�with�the�problem.���

�

The�Government�has�helped�with�creating�permitted�development�rights�for�masts�and�aerials.��That�is�

relatively�new.��That�is�good�news�because�that�was�one�of�the�problems�that�was�out�there.��Also,�we�are�

trying�to�give�the�green�boxes�in�the�street�permitted�development�rights.��That�will�speed�up�provision.�

�

However,�we�are�still�in�the�position�that�basically,�if�you�are�in�outer�London,�you�have�pretty�good�broadband�

because�companies�went�after�the�business�for�television�services�to�individuals.��If�you�happen�to�be�in�central�

London,�you�have�rubbish�connectivity.��If�you�happen�to�be�in�one�of�those�bits�of�London�that�was�not�

cabled�back�in�the�1980s�-�for�example,�Rotherhithe,�where�nobody�lived�-�you�are�--�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��There�is�nothing.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��--�lucky�to�be�able�to�get�anything.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��That�is�right.��Sir�Edward,�can�I�just�come�in�here?��I�am�sure�you�are�

aware�that�the�[House�of�Commons]�Public�Accounts�Committee�is�doing�scrutiny�on�this.��Can�you�give�some�

assurance�that�you�will�explore�the�possibility�of�L&P�and�the�Mayor�putting�in�the�strongest�possible�

submission?�

�

We�have�seen�that�when�the�Mayor�gets�his�mojo�going�-�or�whatever�he�does�-�and�can�then�work�with�the�

appropriate�Secretary�of�State,�we�can�get�opt-outs�and�we�can�get�action.��It�is�a�disgrace.��It�cannot�be�

appropriate�for�there�to�be�planning�in�one�part�of�the�planet�to�give�-�as�I�have�said�-�one�gigabyte�to�a�seat�in�

a�sport�stadium�when�it�is�easier�to�have�a�bicycle�deliver�your�work�in�Shoreditch.��This�is�the�centre�of�the�

creative�industry�in�this�city.��Can�you�give�us�that�assurance�that�you�will�put�that�on�your�agenda?���

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�am�very�happy�to�give�that�assurance.��I�will�also�make�sure�

you�are�fully�briefed�from�the�next�meeting.��I�cannot�remember�the�date�of�it,�if�you�will�forgive�me,�but�it�is�in�

about�two�or�three�weeks’�time.��I�will�make�sure�that�you�are�notified.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��I�am�sure�all�Assembly�Members�will�thank�you�for�that.�

�

Page 43



 

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��I�assure�you�also�that�this�is�a�huge�and�very�important�issue�

for�us.��About�50%�of�the�companies�we�are�trying�to�attract�-�and�the�companies�in�the�Tech�City�cluster�we�

are�looking�to�support�and�internationalise�-�into�London�are�technology�companies.��In�recent�years�it�was�one�

in�three�new�jobs�in�the�city.��The�key�issues�that�they�raised�with�us�are�access�to�skills�-�which�is�also�related�

to�housing�costs�-�and�broadband.��That�may�be�the�bandwidth�-�as�you�said,�special�effects�companies�having�

to�bike�their�products�rather�than�to�upload�them�-�but�it�is�also�around�connectivity�times.��For�start-ups,�if�

you�have�to�wait�six�weeks�and�you�only�have�six�months�of�funding,�it�could�be�a�death�knell�for�you.���

�

We�have�a�relationship�with�BT�and�Virgin.��They�sometimes�do�us�special�favours�but�that�does�not�solve�the�

problem�more�generally�across�the�city.��It�is�an�absolutely�key�priority.���

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM:��This�is�going�to�be�for�Sir�Edward�and�also�Gordon.��One�of�L&P’s�key�priorities�going�

forward�is�to�help�London�firms�gain�more�export�contracts�through�joined-up�trade,�investment�activities�and�

overseas�trade�missions.�

�

What�added�value�does�L&P�bring�to�securing�exports�in�what�is�already�a�crowded�field�with�UKTI�and�the�City�

[of�London]�Corporation�performing�similar�roles?��Where�do�you�add�value�when�there�is�already�a�crowded�

field�there?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Perhaps�I�can�set�out�what�we�are�proposing�to�roll�out�in�

the�next�couple�of�months.��As�you�said,�the�Chamber�is�involved�in�this�space.��UKTI�has�a�small�London�trade�

team.��The�Lord�Mayor�plays�a�role�in�this�area,�as�well�as�private�providers,�banks,�Grant�Thornton�and�others.��

What�we�are�looking�to�do�is�to�focus�on�three�areas�we�are�already�involved�in.��This�is�about�companies�that�

are�able�to�rapidly�scale�up�and�internationalise.�

�

This�week�we�are�running�something�we�call�Silicon�Valley�Comes�to�the�UK.��That�has�a�‘scale-up�club’�

particularly�for�technology�firms�that�have�demonstrated�20%�growth�year-on-year�over�a�three-year�period,�

have�at�least�£1�million�in�turnover�and�have�demonstrated�to�investors�and�others�that�they�can�rapidly�scale�

up�and�become�the�next�global�company.�

�

What�we�are�looking�to�put�in�place�-�and�it�will�not�be�open�to�everyone�as�we�will�invite�companies�to�bid�for�

places�on�this�programme�-�is�a�12-month�programme�of�mentoring�from�investors�and�from�existing�exporters.��

We�have�professional�services�companies�funding�and�supporting�this�programme.��It�will�be�relatively�modest.��

It�has�800�companies�through�the�programme.��It�will�be�focused�particularly�on�the�technology�area�because�

that�is�where�we�are�seeing�so�much�growth,�on�the�life�sciences�area�because�there�is�so�much�public�

investment�going�in�and�opportunities�to�scale-up�that�area,�and�on�what�we�are�calling�‘urban�solutions’,�

which�is�really�city-to-city�selling.��That�is�using�the�Mayor’s�links�with�his�counterparts�in�other�cities�to�try�to�

provide�smart�solutions�opportunities,�other�urban�solutions,�urban�planning�and�transportation-type�solutions�

for�existing�London�companies.���

�

The�nice�thing�about�this�programme�is�that�it�will�all�be�funded�through�the�private�sector.��We�have�brought�

on�board�five�private�sector�partners�who�are�paying�for�this.��We�will�facilitate,�operate�and�run�it.��What�we�

are�building�is�networks�in�key�markets�overseas,�networks�of�mentors.��As�I�said,�that�is�existing�exporters,�

incubators,�accelerators,�venture�capital�firms,�banks�and�others.��They�will�give�of�their�time�because�they�are�

interested�in�these�companies�and�would�like�to�get�access�to�them.��We�hope�that�by�doing�that�and�providing�

a�mentoring�solution�-�rather�than�providing�a�solution�of�officials�running�this�and�providing�the�advice�

themselves,�which�some�of�the�other�providers�do�-�we�will�be�much�more�effective.���

Page 44



 

�

�

We�are�launching�this�with�the�Mayor,�we�hope,�in�the�next�month.��Then�we�will�be�formally�making�the�first�

call�for�companies�to�join�the�programme�in�January�next�year.���

�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM:��How�many�overseas�trade�missions�has�L&P�actually�led�and�how�many�has�it�

indirectly�supported�overseas�since�its�creation?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��How�many�have�we�led?��I�will�need�to�count�them�and�get�

back�to�you.��With�the�Mayor,�it�is�about�seven�or�eight?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Yes,�but�there�are�one�or�two�without�the�Mayor.��

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��I�can�give�you�the�exact�data.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��About�a�dozen�or�so,�I�would�have�thought,�or�something�of�

that�order.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��If�you�look�at�the�last�two�that�we�have�done�with�the�

Mayor�-�to�New�York�and�Boston�and�earlier�to�Singapore�and�Kuala�Lumpur�-�we�brought�small�numbers�of�

companies�with�delegations�on�those�programmes�that�were�part�of�the�Mayor’s�Export�Programme.��About�

half�of�those�companies�have�reported�that�they�have�now�won�export�contracts.��I�do�not�have�the�data�with�

me�-�apologies�-�but�I�can�provide�that�for�you.�

�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM:��Once�upon�a�time,�the�Mayor�of�London�had�opened�up�offices�in�New�Delhi�and�

Mumbai,�recognising�how�important�the�Indian�market�is�with�1.2�billion�consumers.��We�have�already�talked�

about�the�special�relationship�and�all�of�the�damage�done,�particularly�in�the�education�sector,�by�this�

Government�and�by�the�failure�of�the�UK�regulatory�authorities.��The�students�talk�about�their�fingers�being�

burnt.��It�is�a�‘once�burnt,�twice�shy’�sort�of�thing.��There�has�been�a�huge�amount�of�damage.�

�

Is�there�still�a�role�to�play�for�London?��Was�it�a�mistake�to�close�those�missions�that�the�London�Mayor�had�

opened�previously?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�still�have�the�offices�in�India.��They�are�still�in�existence.�

�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM:��Where?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��In�Mumbai.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��L&P�has�three�staff�in�a�serviced�office�in�Mumbai.��Their�

focus�up�until�now�has�been�sourcing�and�identifying�Indian�companies�that�are�looking�to�internationalise�and�

then�to�make�sure�that�they�come�to�London�rather�than�elsewhere.��As�we�roll�out�this�export�programme,�we�

will�look�to�integrate�the�trade�and�investment�part.��You�are�often�trying�to�sell�into�the�same�companies�that�

you�are�trying�to�attract�and�so�there�are�a�lot�of�synergies�in�bringing�the�two�together.��There�will�be�an�

opportunity�to�bring�the�export�piece�into�that�team.��We�will�need�to�look�at�the�resources�that�we�have�and�

whether�they�are�sufficient�there.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�overseas�offices�for�L&P�are�in�Mumbai,�Shanghai,�Beijing�

and�then�there�are�two�in�the�US.�

�

Page 45



 

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��New�York�and�San�Francisco.�

�

Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM:��It�was�[the]�New�Delhi�[office]�that�was�closed,�was�it?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�had�a�tourism�agent�previously,�who�was�based�in�

New�Delhi�when�I�joined.��As�I�was�mentioning�to�one�of�your�colleagues,�the�data�showed�that�the�outreach�

we�were�doing�to�attract�Indian�students�was�not�hugely�effective�because�they�would�have�come�anyway�for�

other�reasons.��Therefore,�we�cut�that�post�to�save�some�funding.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��We�learn�-�mainly�from�the�international�press,�I�have�to�say�-�that�the�Royal�Albert�Dock�

is�due�to�become�a�third�financial�centre�for�London�for�primarily�Asian,�particularly�Chinese,�business.��I�would�

like�to�ask�you�if�you�could�give�us�an�update�on�how�that�is�going.��Maybe�there�has�been�a�recent�

announcement�but�it�looked�as�though�the�financing�was�in�difficulty.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�position�with�the�Royal�Albert�Dock�is�this.��Planning�

permission�has�gone�through�the�system.��They�have�started�doing�the�detailed�design�work�on�phase�one.��

There�was�some�finance�coming�into�them,�which�enabled�them�to�complete�that�work.���

�

They�have�now,�as�was�announced�last�week,�done�a�deal�with�Citic�[Citic�Construction],�which�will,�with�its�

construction�branch,�be�joint-venturing�with�a�British�builder.��I�cannot�remember�which�one�it�is;�I�will�have�to�

let�you�know�the�answer�to�that�one.��That�joint�venture�was�announced.��They�are�putting�the�additional�

finance�in�to�get�phase�one�of�the�business�centre�off�the�ground.��From�what�they�tell�us,�their�marketing�is�

going�well�and�they�feel�very�confident�that�they�are�going�to�succeed.��The�important�thing�is�now�Citic�is�

putting�the�cash�in�and�Citic�is�one�of�the�largest�--�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Who�is�putting�the�cash�in?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Citic,�which�is�one�of�the�major�banks.��This�is�the�

construction�arm�of�that�bank.��It�is�one�of�the�tier-one�banks�in�China.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Is�there�a�financial�consortium�of�Chinese�banks�behind�it?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��No,�it�is�all�Citic’s�money.��It�is�doing�itself.��Whether�it�offsets�

some�of�that�finance�to�somebody�else�I�am�not�aware.��It�certainly�has�come�in�with�the�finance�to�get�phase�

one�off�the�ground.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��When�did�it�come�in�with�that?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��That�was�announced�during�the�[Chinese]�Premier’s�visit.��It�

was�an�announcement�made�by�the�Prime�Minister�and�Premier�jointly.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��That�is�the�good�news,�is�it?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��That�is�the�good�news.��It�has�cash.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��That�is�for�phase�one?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��That�is�for�phase�one,�which�is�pretty�important.��Once�you�can�

get�phase�one�off�the�ground,�then�the�rest�of�it�should�follow.��It�is�important�to�make�the�point�that�the�

Page 46



 

�

whole�of�that�development�is�really�commercial�rather�than�residential�and�so�it�has�not�been�the�easiest�thing�

to�get�moving.��It�is�now�moving.��We�are�feeling�fairly�good�about�that.�

�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��It�is�a�third�financial�centre,�is�it�not,�or�it�could�be?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��It�could�be.��It�is�worth�saying�it�is�deliberately�attracting�Asian�

investors.��They�have�recently�had�a�mission�-�that�they�funded�themselves�-�and�went�out�to�South�East�Asia�

advertising�and�selling�the�concept�that�they�have�down�there.��It�is�very�much�for�Asian�firms�to�move�in�there�

with�flexible�offices�that�can�be�whatever�size�they�like.��There�is�an�attraction,�particularly�by�Asian�companies,�

that�they�have�their�own�front�door�and�their�own�building�and�do�not�want�to�share.��That�is�the�whole�

concept�behind�that�development.��You�will�have�individual�buildings�of�varying�sizes.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Let�us�go�on�then�to�the�next�question,�tourism�in�outer�London.��It�is�in�

the�name�of�Assembly�Member�Arbour.�

�

2015/3549�-�Tourism�in�Outer�London�

Tony�Arbour�AM�

�

What�more�will�you�be�doing�to�ensure�that�Outer�London�sees�an�increase�in�visitor�footfall?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Tony�Arbour�[AM]�has�actually�met�with�Gordon�to�go�through�

this�and�see�what�else�we�can�do�to�try�to�get�tourists�to�move�outside�the�core.��It�is�worth�saying�that�of�the�

thousands�of�attractions�that�we�push,�48%�are�outside�central�London.��There�is�quite�a�bit�of�that.��You�will�

like�this:�of�the�101�free�things�you�can�do,�25�are�in�outer�London.��There�is�quite�a�bit�going�on.���

�

It�is�about�getting�people�into�London�and�then�trying�to�say�to�them,�“Look�a�little�bit�wider”.��That�is�what�

we�are�trying�to�do.��We�need�to�do�more.��Tony�Arbour�is�right�to�have�put�pressure�on�us.��He�is�right�to�say�

that�we�need�to�look�at�this.��However,�again,�it�always�has�to�be�in�balance.��We�have�to�make�sure�that�we�

get�the�maximum�for�the�money�we�are�spending.��There�is�a�balance�and�we�need�to�strike�that�right�balance.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Just�to�add�to�that,�in�the�last�couple�of�years�the�tourism�

promotional�activity�that�we�have�done�has�supported�around�4,500�jobs�over�two�years.��The�majority�of�those�

jobs�would�be�entry-level�jobs.��I�do�not�have�the�data.��I�do�not�know�whether�it�is�possible�to�collect�it.��I�

imagine�a�large�number�of�those�would�be�benefitting�outer�London�boroughs�even�if�the�tourists�are�not�all�

travelling�to�those�boroughs.���

�

As�we�discussed,�one�area�we�are�looking�to�do�more�in�is�to�increase�the�content�on�Visit�London,�which�

reaches�28�million�unique�visitors,�and�to�help�with�the�curation�on�that�website,�to�provide�more�information�

on�neighbourhoods�and�easier�navigation�for�people�to�find�that.���

�

Very�importantly,�as�Ed�said,�when�we�have�attracted�the�visitors�into�London,�we�need�to�make�sure�they�have�

the�ability�to�find�the�experiences�that�will�be�of�interest�to�them.��At�the�moment�we�are�negotiating�with�a�

commercial�partner�to�build�a�significant�new�mobile�app.��The�app�that�we�have,�we�did�not�pay�for.��We�have�

a�partner�who�funded�that�but�it�is�quite�limited�in�what�it�can�offer.��What�we�are�looking�at�is�something�that�

would�be�a�companion.��This�goes�back�to�the�Chair’s�point�about�access�to�Wi-Fi�and�to�broadband�when�

visitors�are�here�so�that�they�are�able�to�use�it.��It�will�help�them�to�find�the�attractions,�the�events�and�deals,�

and�help�them�particularly�to�get�out�of�Zone�1�and�to�find�those�other�experiences�in�other�parts�of�the�city.���

�

Page 47



 

�

What�we�have�been�trying�to�do�increasingly�is�to�personalise�what�information�they�receive.��We�are�working�

with�a�number�of�technology�providers�at�the�moment�to�see�who�will�be�the�best�partner�for�us.��From�the�

audience�insights�-�if�we�know�it�is�a�young�American�from�the�East�Coast�and�we�know�the�types�of�things�

that�young�Americans�from�the�East�Coast�are�interested�in�-�we�can�personalise�and�provide�that�data�that�

may�well�be�outside�the�core�centre�of�London�and�may�be�beyond�the�core�attractions�that�we�all�know�about�

and�love.��It�may�encourage�them�to�go�and�see�some�other�things.��We�will�hope�to�have�that�up�and�running�

next�year.��I�will�be�very�happy�to�keep�you�informed�of�progress�as�we�build�that.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��People�who�live�in�outer�London�pay�tax�as�well.��They�expect�to�see�

things�that�they�are�funding�and�publicity�given�to�their�part�of�town.��I�did�draw�your�attention�to�the�fact�

that�of�the�top�20�attractions�that�you�have�on�your�current�website,�none�are�in�outer�London�and�the�first�

one�is�Wembley�Stadium.��I�can�tell�you�that�you�could�spend�a�week�in�my�constituency�savouring�the�delights�

of�Richmond,�Kingston�and�Hounslow�and�still�not�scratch�the�surface.��There�is�plenty�to�see,�even�for�the�

young�American�students�whom�you�are�seeking�to�attract.��I�am�pleased�to�hear�you�are�developing�refined�

apps�to�assist�people�in�hearing�about�the�delights�of�outer�London.�

�

As�a�tangent�to�that,�relating�to�outer�London�and�to�my�constituency,�are�you�able�to�give�us�some�idea�of�the�

impact�of�England�crashing�out�of�the�World�Cup�at�the�group�stage�on�visitor�numbers,�to�London�as�a�whole�

and�to�outer�London�in�particular?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Not�anything�that�would�be�real:�I�have�heard�anecdotally�

from�some�of�the�sponsors�that�they�saw�a�drop-off�in�some�of�the�tickets�that�they�had�available�and�the�

interest�in�them.��However,�I�understand�the�numbers�were�still�very�strong�for�all�of�the�games.��When�we�have�

sat�down�and�done�the�analysis,�which�we�will�be�doing�because�we�did�the�technical�bid�for�the�Rugby�World�

Cup,�I�will�be�very�happy�to�come�and�share�that�with�you.��I�am�afraid�it�is�too�early�at�this�stage�to�know.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Can�I�just�add�that�there�is�no�evidence�that�it�affected�the�

numbers�attending�the�stadiums?��It�did�not�because�they�were�all�absolutely�jammed.��The�Fanzone�in�

Trafalgar�Square�was�at�absolute�capacity.��Although�England�may�have�dropped�out,�it�pleased�quite�a�large�

population�of�the�city,�particularly�those�from�the�Southern�Hemisphere.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�will�be�specifically�analysing�this.��We�made�some�

forecasts�when�we�were�bidding�for�this�as�to�the�value�to�the�economy.��We�will�be�going�back�in�due�course�

and�reviewing�whether�that�was�achieved�or�not�and�so�we�can�share�that�with�you.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��By�way�of�first-hand�anecdote,�in�relation�to�the�Fanzones�in�

Richmond�and�Twickenham,�whilst�[England]�were�still�in�[the�competition],�you�could�not�get�into�the�

Fanzones�as�there�were�large�queues.��Afterwards,�it�was�really�quite�empty.��You�will�appreciate,�of�course,�

that�there�was�very�large�investment�by�the�businesses�that�operate�in�that�part�of�London�and�so�they�lost.���

�

However,�on�the�credit�side,�are�you�able�to�give�us�an�opinion�on�the�news�we�have�just�heard�that�the�

National�Football�League�(NFL)�is�proposing�to�have�London�-�Twickenham�in�particular�-�as�a�venue�for�its�

games?��Were�you�involved�in�that?��Are�there�any�figures�attached�to�that?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��L&P�-�and�previously�Visit�London�-�has�been�working�with�

the�NFL�since�about�2007.��We�have�had�a�very�strong�relationship�with�it.��We�are�involved�in�each�of�the�

games�that�it�brings�here.��We�have�been�helping�it�to�build�its�fan�base.��It�now�has�more�than�one�million�fans�

here�on�its�database.��The�third�game�this�year�saw�the�millionth�fan�go�through�a�turnstile�for�a�NFL�match.��

Page 48



 

�

The�matches�are�very�valuable�to�the�city�with�the�contribution�they�make�to�the�economy�and�the�number�of�

tourists�they�attract�in.��It�is�a�big�priority�for�us�and�a�big�priority�for�the�Mayor.���

�

It�has�announced�that�it�is�extending�the�relationship�with�Wembley�for�the�next�block�of�time�and�then�

potentially�to�extend�that�again.��It�has�also�previously�announced�the�deal�with�Tottenham�to�go�to�

Tottenham�in�2018�or�2019.��In�the�meantime,�it�has�made�this�announcement�with�Twickenham�that�before�

the�Tottenham�Stadium�is�ready�it�will�use�Twickenham�for�the�games.���

�

We�have�helped�to�grow�the�number�of�games�from�two�to�three�and�to�make�them�mainstream�games�rather�

than�show�games,�going�up�to�four�in�the�future.��We�are�lobbying�very�hard�to�get�a�permanent�team�here.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��As�far�as�Tottenham�is�concerned,�it�is�putting�their�planning�

application�in�shortly,�which�will�incorporate�facilities�for�the�NFL�games.��It�is�taking�that�very�seriously.��

Obviously,�that�is�a�game-changer�for�it�as�well�in�getting�that�off�the�ground.�

�

The�Mayor�has�met�with�the�organisation�on�several�occasions.��We�have�been�present�at�a�number�of�the�

meetings�that�have�taken�place.��There�is�not�much�more�we�could�have�done�to�encourage�it�to�come�here.��

The�next�thing�we�want�is�to�persuade�it�that�one�of�its�teams�should�be�based�here�permanently.��That�is�the�

next�move.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��‘Twickenham�Tigers’�has�a�ring�to�it.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��There�is�one�bit�of�information�that�is�only�anecdotal,�but�we�

are�rather�hoping�the�NFL�might�in�due�course�be�able�to�confirm�this�one�way�or�the�other.��One�of�the�

reasons�its�games�are�so�successful�is�not�just�because�of�the�home-grown�crowd,�which�is�quite�significant,�

but�they�are�attracting�fans�in�from�all�over�Europe.��There�is�obviously�quite�a�big�tourist�bit�in�this,�which�we�

need�to�somehow�quantify�and�understand�a�bit�better.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��The�games�are�bringing�quite�a�large�number�of�particularly�

German�tourists.��Germany�has�the�historic�link�with�US�[military]�bases�and�so�understands�and�loves�NFL.��A�

lot�of�German�tourists�come�in.��We�have�been�working�with�the�NFL�to�help�market�in�the�German�market.���

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��I�wonder�if�I�could�explore�another�aspect�of�attracting�tourist�

business�into�London.��That�is�offering�accommodation�in�people’s�own�houses,�bed-and-breakfasts.��We�do�

infinitely�less�than�our�neighbours�on�the�near�continent�in�attracting�such�business.��Do�you�think�this�is�a�

business�we�should�be�going�after?��How�would�you�seek�to�attract�that�business?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��One�of�the�websites�that�is�particularly�targeted�at�that�area�is�

in�discussion�with�L&P�at�the�moment�as�to�whether�there�can�be�some�arrangement�in�place.���

�

We�have�to�be�quite�careful�about�how�we�manage�this.��We�are�very�concerned�that�we�also�continue�to�

encourage�the�hotel�industry�as�well.��One�of�our�big�problems�as�a�city�-�which�we�did�not�really�touch�upon�

earlier�-�is�our�shortage�of�hotel�rooms,�which�is�quite�desperate.��Our�estimate�is�that�we�need�about�40,000�

hotel�rooms�by�2030�on�top�of�everything�that�is�in�the�planning�system�at�the�moment�and�there�are�a�large�

number�of�hotels�in�the�planning�system.��Hotels�are�running�at�occupancies�in�excess�of�90%,�which�is�

creating�all�sorts�of�other�problems,�not�least�to�all�the�prices.��We�need�to�hit�the�right�kind�of�balance.��We�

need�to�encourage�the�hotel�industry�to�build�substantially�more�than�they�have�done.��On�the�other�side,�we�

also�need�to�make�sure�that�we�encourage�Airbnb�and�those�of�that�world�to�build�up�that�alternative�market.��

However,�we�do�not�want�one�to�damage�the�other.��I�am�sorry�if�I�have�not�explained�that�properly.�

Page 49



 

�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��I�am�hard�put�to�think�that�somebody�who�might�be�staying�at�

The�Dorchester�is�going�to�look�at�20�Acacia�Cottage,�Hornsey,�as�an�alternative.��In�any�event,�it�must�be�true,�

must�it�not,�that�if�someone�comes�to�this�country�with�a�total�budget�to�spend�and�are�spending�less�on�

accommodation,�they�will�be�spending�more�on�other�attractions?��I�am�really�quite�hard�put�to�see�that�there�

is�any�conflict�between�the�two.���

�

One�of�the�features�in�relation�to�letting�and�bed-and-breakfasts,�of�course,�has�been�the�tax�changes.��I�do�

not�recall�seeing�any�substantial�publicity�given�by�L&P�-�or,�to�be�fair,�by�anyone�else�-�to�the�tax�changes�

that�permit�people�to�do�this�without�going�to�their�local�authority�or�making�the�appropriate�revenue�

declarations.��Maybe�this�is�something�you�should�be�looking�into.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��As�Ed�[Sir�Edward]�said,�Airbnb�is�one�of�a�number�of�

players�in�the�space.��Its�big�priority�at�the�moment�is�growing�the�number�of�hosts�in�London.��As�you�said,�it�

has�a�lower�number�here�than�it�does�in�Paris�and�in�some�other�cities.��You�are�absolutely�right�that�its�visitors�

typically�stay�longer�than�the�average�visitor�does.��We�actually�have�three�of�its�staff�sitting�in�our�office�-�

while�I�am�sitting�here�-�having�discussions�at�the�moment�about�how�we�could�work�together.���

�

It�is�important�though,�as�Ed�said,�that�we�balance�different�markets.��We�have�very�important�relationships�

with�some�of�the�hotel�chains.��Edwardian�Group,�for�example,�is�very�generous�and�contributes�significant�

funding�to�our�leisure�tourism�activity.��We�have�great�relationships�with�hotel�chains�such�as�Marriott�and�

Hilton,�not�least�on�the�business�tourism�side.��What�we�would�want�to�do�is�to�build�a�relationship�with�

companies�such�as�Airbnb�and�others�in�this�area,�as�well�as�retain�the�good�relationships�with�hoteliers.���

�

Another�area�that�may�be�of�interest�to�Airbnb�is,�of�course,�our�own�travel�technology�lab,�which�we�created�

earlier�this�year.��It�is�very�much�tourism,�travel�and�hospitality�start-up�companies�that�are�looking�to�disrupt�

the�tourism,�travel�and�hospitality�sectors.��There�are�some�in�the�sharing�economy�in�that�lab�that�may�be�of�

interest�to�companies�like�Airbnb�and�to�work�with�those�companies.��There�are�a�number�of�ways�we�can�work�

with�them.��We�are�talking�with�them�at�the�moment.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��I�am�happy�to�hear�that�there�are�others,�in�addition�to�Airbnb,�

because�it�is�none�of�our�business�to�encourage�a�monopoly.�

�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Following�on�from�Tony�[Arbour�AM],�sometimes�in�central�London�it�feels�like�tourists�

have�taken�over�the�world.��I�am�pretty�keen�to�see�tourists�-�and�I�think�a�lot�of�residents�of�central�London�

are�-�spread�around�outer�London.��Are�you�really�doing�enough�on�that�front?��Take,�for�example,�the�last�

time�I�came�back�on�the�Eurostar�from�Europe.��It�was�a�train�full�of�mostly�Japanese�and�Chinese�tourists.��

There�were�advertisements�on�the�Tannoy�for�them�to�go�to�Madame�Tussauds�and�the�London�Dungeon.��

That�is�the�kind�of�thing�you�need�to�do.�

�

Is�that�something�L&P�is�considering�and�will�do�in�the�future�to�spread�the�tourist�load�across�the�whole�of�

London,�both�economically�and�for�people’s�quality�of�life?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��There�are�two�answers,�if�I�may.��The�first�one�is�about�

when�we�run�the�tourism�campaigns.��As�you�have�rightly�pointed�out,�standing�next�to�Big�Ben�in�August�is�

not�particularly�attractive�because�of�the�volume�of�people�that�are�there.��The�campaigns�that�we�run�are�to�

bring�people�in�in�the�shoulder�periods�when�there�are�fewer�people�in�the�city.��The�work�we�have�been�doing�

with�the�GLA�-�for�example,�to�launch�what�we�have�called�the�Lumiere�Festival�in�January�-�is�specifically�to�

encourage�people�to�stay�on�after�the�Christmas�period�when�typically�they�would�desert�London�because�it�is�

Page 50



 

�

cold�and�dark.��It�is�to�give�them�a�reason�to�come�and�to�stay�here�at�that�time.��We�are�looking�to�spread�the�

tourists�out�during�the�year�as�well�as�geographically.�

�

Geographically,�the�conversation�that�I�had�with�the�Deputy�Chairman�about�spreading�to�outer�boroughs�is�

about�getting�them�in�here�through�the�most�attractive�hooks�we�can,�but�then�when�they�are�getting�here�

helping�them�to�curate�the�city�and�to�understand�that�there�is�a�much�wider�offering�than�just�the�core�

attractions�in�Zone�1.��That�is�an�area�where�we�probably�have�not�done�enough.���

�

It�has�simply�been�a�resource�issue.��Next�year,�the�grant�funding�for�leisure�tourism�will�be�about�£1.5�million.��

We�will�boost�that�up�through�private�funding�to�exceed�£4�million�but�that�is�still�relatively�small�when�you�are�

running�campaigns�in�markets�like�the�US.��To�try�to�get�cut-through�in�those�markets,�it�is�a�pretty�small�

budget.��What�we�do�is�digital,�social�and�virtually�nothing�else,�apart�from�PR.��It�is�a�resource�issue�but�in�this�

area,�as�we�have�mentioned,�we�need�to�do�more�to�wrap�up.�

�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��I�am�glad�you�accept�that�because,�for�example,�tourists�have�a�decision�to�make:�do�

you�queue�up�for�an�hour�to�get�into�Madame�Tussauds�or�go�somewhere�else?��We�can�certainly�suggest�that�

it�will�not�be�too�hard�from�there�on�the�District�line�to�go�to�Kew�Gardens.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��The�Culture�Season,�which�we�launched�last�year,�is�also�

working�with�the�museums�and�galleries�during�their�shoulder�periods.��It�is�also�at�times�when�they�are�

opening�museums�and�galleries�later�in�the�evenings,�overnight�and�so�on.��Again,�we�are�able�to�make�that�

information�available�to�tourists:�if�you�could�not�get�into�the�Alexander�McQueen�exhibition,�which�was�the�

classic�one,�then�it�was�open�all�night�and�you�could�go�in�at�3.00am�in�the�morning�when�it�was�half-empty�

and�see�it.��Extending�the�hours�and�working�with�the�museums�and�galleries,�again,�is�something�that�we�have�

been�doing.�

�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Just�another�thing�that�Tony�[Arbour�AM]�mentioned:�hotel�provision.��Again,�it�seems�

to�be�focused�on�central�London.��I�have�seen�in�Paddington�that�practically�anything�that�is�converted�at�the�

moment�is�into�a�hotel.��Are�places�like�Hounslow�better�able�to�deal�with�that,�given�their�proximity�to�

Heathrow�Airport?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�answer�is�that�it�is�everywhere�and�everybody.��We�need�

hotels�basically�right�across�the�city�of�one�sort�or�another.��When�I�talk�about�40,000�hotel�rooms,�it�is�of�all�

classes�and�grades.��It�is�a�real�mixture.���

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��The�largest�numbers�are�in�Zone�2,�I�think.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Yes.��It�is�the�sites.��It�is�very�hard�to�get�the�sites.��There�is�no�

shortage�of�cash�coming�into�hotels.��You�will�have�seen�the�announcement�in�the�Evening�Standard�that�there�

is�a�hotel�being�proposed�to�go�on�top�of�Paddington�Station.��There�is�no�shortage,�but�it�is�getting�those�

sites�through.��Local�authorities�are�not�always�keen�on�supporting�hotels,�although�that�may�change�as�the�

business�rates�debate�changes�and�they�see�greater�benefit�from�business�rates.��It�is�constantly�trying�to�

encourage�more�hotel�chains�to�come�in�and�more�hotels�to�open.��It�is�everywhere.��There�is�absolutely�

nowhere�in�London�that�is�saturated.��I�wish�there�were.���

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�are�actively�pursuing�hotel�chains�from�all�around�the�

world�through�our�overseas�teams.�

�

Page 51



 

�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��I�wanted�to�follow�up�and�pick�up�on�an�issue�you�talked�about�earlier,�Sir�Edward,�

about�the�cost�of�hotels�and�staying�in�London,�particularly�with�regard�to�families�and�promoting�London�as�a�

family-friendly�city.��Obviously,�with�families,�costs�do�rack�up.��Can�I�ask�what�steps�you�are�taking�to�maintain�

London’s�status�as�a�family-friendly�city?��Have�you�seen�any�evidence�of�a�change�in�the�nature�of�tourists,�

perhaps�with�the�costs�particularly�of�accommodation,�and�a�shift�from�families�to�other�travellers?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�will�leave�the�second�part�to�Gordon�to�answer.��I�cannot�

answer�that�but�I�can�the�first�bit,�which�is�the�overall�cost�element�of�hotels.�

�

There�is�no�doubt�about�it:�it�is�now�beginning�to�be�a�major�problem�for�us.��For�example,�for�conventions:�

nobody�will�make�a�commitment�going�forward�three�or�four�years�about�their�rates�or�anything�else�because�

they�know�that�they�can�let�their�rooms.��That�means�it�is�getting�very�hard�to�attract�conventions�and�other�

things�into�the�city�and�so�there�is�a�real�negativity�behind�this.��The�prices�are�high�because�there�is�such�a�

shortage�of�room�space.��For�any�institution�that�is�operating�at�over�90%�capacity,�it�means,�basically,�there�

are�no�spare�rooms�and�so�they�can�almost�ask�what�they�want�in�the�way�of�fees.��That�is�a�real�downside�and�

the�only�way�to�deal�with�that�must�be�to�get�more�hotels�through�the�system.���

�

On�an�economic�point,�hotels,�particularly�hotels�with�four�stars�and�upwards�-�and�I�know�this�goes�against�

the�family�point�-�are�really�good�news�on�the�jobs�front�because�they�create�large�numbers�of�good�jobs�

coming�through�them.��We�want�to�get�as�many�hotels�moving�as�we�possibly�can.��We�need�to�find�more�sites�

for�them,�but�there�is�this�issue.��I�do�have�some�hope�that�the�changes�to�the�business�rates,�if�they�are�done�

in�the�right�way�-�we�will�see�more�of�the�Comprehensive�Spending�Review�(CSR)�and�go�forward�-�and�if�

boroughs�can�start�keeping�more�of�the�benefits�of�the�business�rates,�it�will�encourage�them�to�build�more�

hotel�rooms�and�get�more�established.���

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��On�the�point�about�families,�we�do�a�huge�amount�in�

promoting�London�as�a�family-friendly�destination.��I�would�be�very�happy�to�come�and�share�the�detail�of�

that.��Some�of�the�big�growth�in�hotels�has�been�in�the�three-star�area�with�people�like�Premier�Inn�expanding�

very�rapidly.��We�work�with�them�to�promote�budget�accommodation�and�cheaper�accommodation�and�to�

provide�those�offerings.��Not�least,�we�do�that�through�a�new�website�that�we�set�up�this�year�with�

Booking.com,�hotels.london,�which�again�gives�access�to�the�cheaper�accommodation�and�information�about�

that.���

�

We�did,�last�year,�a�big�piece�of�work.��We�partnered�with�one�of�the�film�studios,�Studio�Canal,�around�the�film�

Paddington.��Obviously�it�was�a�London-based�film.��We�launched�the�Paddington�Trail�as�a�tourist�attraction.��

That�was�also�to�encourage�people�to�get�out�of�central�London.��It�was�a�free�thing�for�kids�and�families�to�do�

and�it�took�them�to�parts�of�London�they�may�not�otherwise�go�to.��We�also�did�a�massive�amount�of�PR�

around�that.��We�were�the�main�media�partner�for�the�film.��The�Twitter�reach�was�about�37�million�for�that�

campaign�and�we�are�looking�to�repeat�that�next�year�with�another�film�company.��We�are�already�talking�to�

them�now�about�another�family�film�that�is�filmed�in�London,�based�in�London�and�promotes�and�showcases�

the�best�of�London.��We�are�doing�a�huge�amount�on�that.�

�

Then�also�there�are�a�number�of�events�that�we�have�attracted�in�to�London.��One�of�the�big�ones�will�be�the�

New�Scientist�Live�event�taking�place�at�Excel�[conference�centre].��Again,�that�is�a�family-friendly�event.��It�

brings�together�leading�science�figures�but�makes�it�accessible�for�younger�people�and�for�kids.��We�are�talking�

to�New�Scientist�Live,�having�won�that,�about�how�we�can�promote�that�probably�more�to�a�domestic�audience�

rather�than�international.��Again,�it�is�potentially�a�great�opportunity�for�kids�to�experience�science�and�to�

interact.��They�have�people�like�Professor�Brian�Cox,�Professor�Stephen�Hawking�[British�physicists]�and�others�

participating�in�that.��It�will�be�a�big�deal�for�us�next�year.���

Page 52



 

�

�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��One�of�my�children�did�the�Paddington�Trail�and�they�did�enjoy�it.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Good.��Thank�you.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��With�regards�to�the�issue�of�outer�London,�I�will�just�say�to�Tony�that�if�tourists�

could�get�out�or�stay�in�Hornsey,�they�would�have�wonderful�views�of�Alexandra�Palace�and�of�course,�in�

Enfield,�they�would�have�Forty�Hall�to�go�and�visit.�

�

Is�there�anything�you�can�do,�as�the�GLA�or�L&P,�to�encourage�local�boroughs�in�outer�London�to�encourage�

people�to�create�those�bed-and-breakfasts�and�other�accommodation?��A�very�quick�answer,�if�you�can.���

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��It�is�not�an�area�we�are�currently�in.��We�are�not�currently�

doing�anything�in�that�space.��We�were�as�Visit�London,�when�the�budget�was�larger,�involved�in�product�

creation�and�the�rating�system�and�so�on.��We�are�now�simply�promotional.���

�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��It�is�something�you�could�look�at,�potentially?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�can�look�at�it.��The�reason�I�am�hesitating�is�that�it�is�just�

how�much�resource�we�can,�in�all�honesty,�put�into�it.��It�about�prioritisation,�but�we�can�look.��Can�we�come�

back�to�you?��Let�me�come�back�to�you�on�that.�

�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��VisitEngland�still�has�the�ratings�scheme�where�it�goes�out�

and�provides�all�sorts�of�consultancy�and�advice.��That�includes�London.��That�side�of�the�business�we�handed�

over�to�VisitEngland�to�do�for�the�whole�of�the�country.��There�is�still�a�player�in�that�area.��I�can�maybe�talk�to�

James�[Berreford,�Chief�Executive]�at�VisitEngland.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��The�Olympic�Orbit�Tower�is�losing�something�like�£10,000�per�week�because�of�visitor�

numbers.��They�have�fallen�below�the�projected�forecast.��Are�you�doing�enough�to�promote�tourism�in�east�

London?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�are�doing�as�much�as�we�can�with�the�resources�we�have�to�

promote�tourism.��We�are�doing�pretty�well.��London�is�the�most�visited�city�in�the�world.��We�have�that�

accolade.��We�have�had�that�now�for�two�years.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Two,�and�this�will�be�another�record.��It�is�up�6%�again�this�

year.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Possibly�this�year�again�and�so�we�are�doing�pretty�well�in�

getting�the�tourist�numbers�in.��I�suspect�that�the�barriers�now�to�us�are�the�ones�we�have�just�been�touching�

on,�which�are�probably�hotels�and�that�kind�of�thing.��We�are�an�expensive�city�and�we�will�only�ever�reduce�

our�cost�base�if�we�have�more�hotels�and�more�places�where�people�can�stay.��At�the�moment,�it�is�going�pretty�

well.��I�do�not�think�we�can�do�more�than�we�are�doing.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Yes,�but�is�it�not�important�that�where�you�have�a�loss�of�income,�there�are�measures�or�

something�you�can�undertake�to�try�to�recover�the�taxpayer’s�money?��One�of�the�key�visions�of�the�Olympic�

Page 53



 

�

legacy�was�to�promote�tourism�in�the�Olympic�Village�and�certainly�we�have�an�example�here�where�there�is�a�

major�loss�of�income.��Is�this�not�something�you�should�be�doing?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��As�you�know,�there�are�proposals�to�make�a�small�modification�

to�the�Orbit�that�is�underway�at�the�moment,�which�will�be,�of�course,�to�give�it�some�extra�features�like�a�slide,�

which�will,�I�suspect,�suddenly�move�it�from�being�a�loss-maker�to�being�probably�quite�profitable.��It�is�down�

to�them�to�make�the�changes�they�need�to�get�more�people�going�into�it.��All�in�all,�if�the�plans�for�the�

Olympicopolis�can�all�be�brought�to�fruition�-�and�they�are�pretty�ambitious�-�they�will�of�course�make�a�

fundamental�change�in�tourist�destinations.��If�we�can�get�the�Smithsonian�there,�if�we�can�get�the�

Victoria�&�Albert�Museum�East�and�if�we�can�get�all�the�other�artistic�facilities�operating�in�the�Olympic�Park�

alongside�the�stadium,�it�is�going�to�become�one�of�the�big�tourist�attractions�in�London.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�are�already�doing�a�lot�with�the�Olympic�legacy�

company�[London�Legacy�Development�Corporation].��I�sit�down�with�the�Chief�Executive�every�quarter.��We�

are�working�with�Lee�Valley�Park�as�well�-�it�is�a�partner�of�ours�-�on�promoting�its�offerings;�the�white-water�

rafting,�for�example.��Since�the�Olympics,�we�have�so�far�attracted�12�large�international�events�into�the�Park,�

some�of�which�have�happened�and�others�of�which�will�happen�next�year,�leading�right�through�to�2020.��The�

big�one�is�2017�for�the�International�Association�of�Athletics�Federations�and�International�Paralympic�

Committee�athletics��[competitions]�coming�in.��Creating�reasons�for�people�to�visit�the�Park�and�making�it�

more�of�a�destination�is�a�big�priority�and�we�have�done�a�lot�of�work�in�that�area�through�the�major�events�

side.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��I�welcome�your�ten-year�tourist�strategy,�which�is�part�of�your�business�plan.��Do�you�

reckon�that�there�is�provision�in�the�strategy�for�addressing�major�loss�of�income�from�tourist�attractions�or�

from�other�areas?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��The�ten-year�strategy�will�look�at�whether�we�have�the�right�

products�in�the�right�places�to�attract�the�audiences.��It�is�very�much�a�work�in�progress.��I�apologise�that�I�

cannot�really�say�a�lot�more�than�that�because�the�team�is�working�on�it,�but�I�would�be�very�happy�in�due�

course,�when�I�have�more�information,�to�come�and�brief�you�if�that�would�be�of�interest.�

�

Navin�Shah�AM:��Sure.��Can�you�look�into�this?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Yes.�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��I�must�say�that�all�the�foreign�visitors�I�talk�to,�whether�I�know�them�well�or�not,�

complain�about�the�large�numbers�in�central�London�now.��It�is�a�buzzy�city�but�it�is�also,�they�feel,�very�

crowded,�extremely�busy�and�quite�tiring.��This�is�a�well-targeted�question�that�Tony�Arbour�[AM]�has�put�to�

you�about�outer�London.��Can�I�ask�you�what�you�are�doing�particularly?��How�much�are�you�spending�to�

encourage�people�to�take�a�river�cruise?��Indeed,�they�will�reach�Tony�Arbour’s�constituency.�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��They�will.�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��They�will�go�through�the�glories�of�Wandsworth�on�the�way�and�many�other�beautiful�

places.��It�is�a�real�possibility�to�get�them�to�some�lovely�parts,�upstream�and�indeed�downstream,�on�the�cruise�

boats.���

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�are�doing�a�lot,�actually.��The�river�is�very�important�and�

has�been�underutilised�as�a�tourism�asset.���

Page 54



 

�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��Indeed.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��City�Hall�set�up�a�concordat�group�a�couple�of�years�ago�

looking�at�this,�looking�at�whether�we�have�the�right�piers�in�the�right�places�and�how�we�are�promoting�it�and�

so�on.��We�are�trustees�also�of�the�Thames�Festival,�involved�in�that�side�of�the�work�and�we�are�also�--�

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��That�is�central�London,�mostly.��That�is�mostly�central�London.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��That�is�mostly�central�London�but�the�wider�work,�working�

with�City�Cruises�and�others,�is�going�the�length�of�the�river.��We�are�very�actively�promoting�the�river�as�an�

attraction.��It�is�a�balance,�again,�between�tourism�traffic�and�other�uses�of�it,�which�is�out�of�my�hands.��That�

is�for�other�people�to�sort�out.��Certainly�we�are�doing�a�lot�to�try�to�make�sure�people�are�aware�of�that�as�an�

asset�and�that�they�use�it�more.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��As�you�know,�because�you�have�been�instrumental�in�getting�

this,�there�are�now�two�more�boats�going�on�to�the�river�taxi�service,�two�large�ones,�which�will�increase,�I�

hope,�the�frequency�of�the�river�taxi�services.��It�is�not�the�river�taxi;�the�river�bus�service.��There�is�quite�a�lot�

taking�place�there�and�it�is�very�much�part�of�the�marketing�of�L&P�to�go�to�the�river.���

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��It�does�seem�to�me�that�so�far�some�tricks�have�been�missed.��As�Sir�Edward�says,�we�

have�now�reached�11�million�people�using�the�river�in�various�ways,�but�of�course�the�river�buses�can�go�only�as�

far�as�Putney�upstream�because�of�the�shallowness�of�the�river�at�low�tide.��The�cruise�boats,�which�go�much�

more�slowly,�go�much�further�and�indeed�go�as�far�as�Richmond�and�then�of�course�you�can�get�yet�another�

one�to�go�even�further�up�the�Thames.��It�is�a�question�of�applying�the�Visit�London�app�and�various�other�

methods,�such�as�the�various�books�that�come�out�that�tell�people�about�other�parts�of�London�apart�from�the�

centre.��Can�you�give�me�any�more�news�of�what�you�are�doing?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��Only�to�repeat�what�I�have�said,�which�is�that�we�are�

looking�at�this�both�in�terms�of�the�mobile�app�side�and�also�around�the�neighbourhood�side�and�augmenting�

the�content�that�is�on�the�website�for�particular�neighbourhoods,�which�will�include�Richmond�amongst�other�

neighbourhoods�in�the�city,�and�have�access�and�how�you�get�there.��We�will�be�doing�more�and�we�will�be�

happy�to�share�that�with�you.��It�will�be�early�next�year,�I�suspect.���

�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��There�are�some�beautiful�places�that�the�tourists�do�not�otherwise�see.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��As�someone�who�lives�in�that�part�of�the�city,�I�am�familiar�

with�them�and�I�know�how�beautiful�they�are.�

�

Roger�Evans�AM:��Should�tourists�become�bored�with�Richmond�eventually,�of�course,�they�can�travel�--�

�

Tony�Arbour�AM�(Deputy�Chairman):��Tired�of�Richmond?�

�

Roger�Evans�AM:��No�doubt�at�an�advanced�age�by�that�time,�they�can�travel�east�to�sample�the�delights�of�

outer�east�London.��One�of�the�great�things�about�outer�London�for�tourists,�of�course,�is�that�it�is�less�

polluted�and�less�noisy�than�inner�London.��It�provides�a�bit�of�a�haven�for�them.��Do�you�think�that�airport�

expansion�plans�could�put�this�in�danger?�

�

Page 55



 

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�feel�that�this�is�a�question�better�asked�of�the�Mayor�at�one�of�

your�regular�sessions�with�him.��It�is�obviously�an�issue.��We�are�getting�quite�a�bit�of�representation�about�the�

availability�of�flights�but�most�of�this�is�about�business�flights�rather�than�tourism�flights.��From�a�tourist�

perspective,�we�are�pretty�relaxed.��From�a�business�perspective,�there�is�undoubtedly�a�major�problem�that�we�

are�not�reaching�some�of�the�cities�that�we�need�to�reach.��Places�like�Frankfurt�are�flying�to�far�more�Chinese�

cities�than�the�UK�are,�for�example,�from�London.���

�

That�is�all�about�capacity�but,�as�you�are�aware,�even�expanding�Heathrow�Airport�with�a�third�runway�is�

unlikely�to�open�up�many�of�those�markets�because�you�need�something�far�more�extensive.��This�is,�of�course,�

where�the�argument�for�a�brand�new�hub�estuary�airport�comes�in�but,�as�I�say,�that�may�be�a�better�one�for�

the�Mayor�to�answer.���

�

Roger�Evans�AM:��While�we�are�on�the�subject,�this�morning�Sadiq�Khan�MP�[London�mayoral�candidate]�

suggested�he�was�going�to�revisit�the�decision�to�block�the�expansion�of�London�City�Airport,�which�would�

damage�the�environment�in�east�London�and�also,�by�your�own�claims�there,�not�really�address�the�size�of�the�

problem�that�we�need�to�deal�with.��What�would�your�advice�be�to�candidates�who�are�looking�at�

London�City�Airport?���

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�issue�of�London�City�Airport�is�a�very�complex�one.��Firstly,�

it�has�quite�restricted�flying�times�that�I�do�not�think�anybody�is�questioning.��The�issue,�though,�is�of�course�

where�the�planes�fly�over�and�who�happens�to�be�underneath�the�flight�path�as�it�comes�in.��Some�of�your�

constituents,�I�know,�get�quite�upset�about�the�noise�levels�and�pollution�levels�that�come�from�that.�

�

Roger�Evans�AM:��Justifiably.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��It�is�not�without�its�controversy.��The�Mayor�feels�very�strongly�

that�he�needs�to�be�consistent�in�his�arguing.��He�believes�Heathrow�is�in�the�wrong�place.��He�also�believes�

that�it�is�wrong�to�expand�City�Airport�and�that�the�answer�is�a�completely�new�airport�away�from�London.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Given�the�comments�you�made�earlier�about�the�importance�of�major�events�

and�sporting�events,�do�you�not�think�that�the�last-minute�withdrawal�from�the�Tour�de�France�Grand�Depart,�

a�decision�that�was�taken�at�the�end�of�September,�damaged�not�just�our�relationship�with�France�and�our�

good�reputation�as�an�events�host�but�also�was�a�rather�big�loss�of�tourist�promotion�opportunities?��Do�you�

not�think�that�was�a�very�un-coordinated�and�badly�made�decision?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�criticism�of�it�is�that�we�ever�applied�for�it�in�the�first�place�

rather�than�whether�we�should�or�should�not�have�withdrawn�from�it,�if�I�may.��The�reason�I�say�that�is�that�I�do�

not�think�it�was�clear�right�at�the�beginning�how�big�the�bill�would�have�been�for�that�particular�event.��It�looks�

like�the�total�bill�would�have�been�close�to�£35�million,�which�we�would�have�had�to�find�as�a�city.��It�was�just�

not�possible�to�find�that�level�of�money.��The�Government�had�made�it�absolutely�clear�-�not,�admittedly,�at�

the�beginning,�but�over�the�course�of�months�as�the�scheme�was�being�thought�through�-�that�that�money�

would�not�be�forthcoming�from�it.��That�entire�£35�million�would�have�had�to�come�out�of�Transport�for�

London’s�(TfL)�finances.��On�pure�financial�grounds,�it�was�a�non-starter.�

�

On�tourism�grounds,�yes,�it�is�a�loss.��We�do�know�that�tourist�events�like�that�are�enormously�popular�but�it�is�

not�clear�whether�that�would�have�been�acceptable�with�the�road�closures�and�everything�else.��There�was�

quite�a�bit�of�complaint�last�time.��It�was�not�without�its�controversy�with�Londoners.�

�

Page 56



 

�

Our�biggest�priority�has�been�the�London-Surrey�bike�ride,�which�is�enormously�popular�with�Londoners�and�

something�that�we�do�fully�support.��Indeed,�L&P�is�part�of�the�organising�committee�for�that�and,�as�it�

becomes�profitable,�it�is�an�income�stream�for�L&P.��That�is,�from�an�L&P�point�of�view,�our�priority.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Would�you�be�willing�to�publish�the�cost-benefit�analysis,�therefore,�that�shows�

that�it�would�not�have�worked�for�us?��Did�you�do�one?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�am�not�sure�if�there�was�a�cost-benefit�analysis.��I�will�happily�

publish�for�you�whatever�there�was,�but�I�am�not�sure�if�there�was�one.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��That�is�interesting.��It�would�be�helpful�to�find�out�if�there�was�one.��I�am�

running�out�of�time�and�so�forgive�me�if�I�blast�away.��There�does�seem�to�be�fundamentally�something�wrong�

with�a�decision�that�is�not�taken�in�a�co-ordinated�way�when�this�was�always�intended�as�a�multidisciplinary�

benefit:�cycling�promotion�and�environmental�promotion�but�also�tourism�and�image-building�for�London.�

�

Is�there�not�therefore�fundamentally�a�problem�with�an�organisation�with�one�aspect�of�the�benefit�-�the�

cycling�promotion�-�being�expected�to�fund�the�tourism�promotion�benefit�as�well?��How�would�you�have�

made�that�decision�better?��How�would�you�have�assessed�it�better�to�make�sure�that�this�kind�of�damaging�

debacle�does�not�happen�again?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�am�not�sure�that�we�could�have�done�it�any�other�way.��There�

are�not�the�resources�within�City�Hall’s�finances�to�meet�that�one�along�with�everything�else�and�so�it�would�

have�meant�cutting�other�programmes�at�City�Hall.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��What�I�mean�is:�why�was�there�a�bad�decision,�in�your�view,�made�to�bid�in�the�

first�place?��How�did�that�decision�run�away�with�you?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��When�the�bid�was�put�in,�it�was�always�assumed�that�there�

would�be�various�parties�sharing�that�bill.��What�became�very�clear�as�it�progressed�-�and�the�decision�was�a�TfL�

one�-�is�that�there�were�no�other�parties�involved�in�this�and�that�the�entire�bill�would�have�fallen�on�the�city.��

Once�it�was�clear�the�entire�bill�was�coming�on�the�city,�then�it�became�very�questionable.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Given�that�you�do�think�that�these�events�are�important,�do�you�not�need�to�

put�in�place�a�better�framework�for�early-stage�decision-making?��It�is�not�just�that�we�missed�an�opportunity;�

we�suffered�some�damage�from�it.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�do�have�the�Major�Events�Steering�Committee,�which�meets�

on�a�regular�basis,�looks�at�each�of�the�events�that�come�before�it�and�goes�through�each�in�quite�a�lot�of�

detail.��To�be�fair,�the�Major�Events�Steering�Committee�did,�right�at�the�beginning,�have�some�questions�

about�the�financing�of�this�particular�event.��It�does�look�at�all�of�the�events.��It�looks�at�the�planning�of�the�

events�and�it�makes�sure�that�all�the�partners�are�on�board.��For�example,�the�Rugby�World�Cup�2015�very�

much�went�through�the�Major�Events�Steering�Committee�and�it�was�intimately�involved.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��What�changed,�then,�between�it�going�to�the�Major�Events�Steering�Committee�

and�the�day�before�the�contract�was�going�to�be�signed?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�clarity�that�it�was�going�to�cost�£35�million.�

�

Page 57



 

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Was�that�a�surprise?��Did�they�tell�you�that�three�days�before�you�were�due�to�

sign�the�contract?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��No,�it�was�not�three�days�before.��To�be�fair,�it�was�within�the�

timeframe�that�we�had�to�make�a�decision�whether�to�proceed�or�not�proceed.��We�had�a�bid�out�there�and�we�

withdrew�the�bid.��It�was�not�as�though�we�won�it�and�then�turned�it�down;�we�just�withdrew�our�bid.��It�was�

within�our�own�planning�timelines.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��You�were�within�one�day�of�signing�the�contract�--�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�were�within�one�day.�

�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��--�and�you�had�already�seen�Edinburgh�and�Manchester�off,�to�whom�I�hope�

you�have�apologised.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�leaving�it�gave�them�an�opportunity�to�come�in�if�they�

wanted�to.��I�would�suggest�that,�even�for�them,�£35�million�might�be�a�bit�eye-watering.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Let�us�then�move�to�the�final�question.��We�now�have�Assembly�Member�

Johnson�leading�on�this.��Assembly�Member�Jones�gives�her�apologies.�

�

2015/3548�-�A�Fairer�London��

Darren�Johnson�AM�(on�behalf�of�Jenny�Jones�AM)�

�

What�is�London�&�Partners�doing�to�promote�the�living�wage�and�apprenticeships?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��The�only�reply�I�have�to�make�is�that�of�course�it�is�not�for�us,�

as�L&P,�to�be�encouraging�London�firms�to�pay�the�London�Living�Wage.��It�is�not�our�role.��We�do,�obviously,�

as�an�organisation�pay�it�but�it�is�not�our�role�to�encourage�London�firms�to�do�it.��We�do�not�have�the�

interface�with�them.��Our�interface�with�them�is�purely�on�the�export�side�or�on�the�inward�investment�side.��

We�do�not�get�ourselves�involved�in�that�area.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��I�completely�agree�that�it�would�not�be�your�primary�aim�but�certainly�in�terms�of�the�

relations�that�L&P�has�with�the�hospitality�sector,�as�we�have�talked�about�and�as�has�kept�coming�up�through�

this�meeting�this�morning,�I�would�have�thought�there�were�genuine�opportunities�there�to�be�able�to�pursue�

the�living�wage�agenda�in�a�way�that�maybe�the�Mayor,�City�Hall�and�the�standard�GLA�setup�could�not�reach�

in�a�same�way.��There�may�be�additional�opportunities.��Have�you�thought�about�that?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��We�have�provided�contact�details�for�people�in�the�hospitality�

sector�to�other�people�so�that�they�have�been�able�to�push�them�on�the�London�Living�Wage,�but�we�have�

never�felt�it�was�our�job�to�go�into�that�area.��We�are�working�side-by-side�with�them�to�bring�in�tourists.��We�

have�always�felt�that�that�is�much�more�an�exercise�for�somebody�else�to�do�and�within�somebody�else’s�remit.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��We�have,�as�Ed�[Sir�Edward]�said,�been�very�open�in�making�

introductions�to�relevant�officials�here�within�City�Hall�and�elsewhere.��In�my�work�with�Team�London,�I�am�

making�introductions�to�companies�that�can�support�that�initiative.��On�the�apprenticeships�side,�again,�we�

have�provided�information�and�where�we�have�brought�together�the�hospitality�industry�and�the�tourism�

industry�to�talk�about�joint�promotional�activities,�we�have�given�opportunities�for�City�Hall�officials�to�talk�

about�apprenticeships�to�support�what�the�British�Hospitality�Association�(BHA)�is�doing�with�the�

Page 58



 

�

Big�Conversation.��We�worked�with�the�BHA�to�give�a�platform�to�the�Mayor�to�speak�at�its�summit�this�year�

where�he�specifically�raised�the�living�wage�and�apprenticeships.��We�are�facilitating�wherever�we�can�to�help�

with�this�but,�as�Ed�said,�it�is�not�really�our�core�role.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��No,�I�can�understand�it�is�not�the�core�but�if�you�are�having�those�opportunities,�those�

conferences,�those�one-to-one�dialogues�or�whatever,�it�seems�to�be�a�useful�exercise�in�order�to�help�the�

reach�of�the�agenda.��So�far�City�Hall�has�failed�to�crack�this�in�terms�of�the�hospitality�sector.���

�

Do�either�of�you�know�how�many�jobs�in�the�hospitality�and�catering�industries�pay�less�than�the�

London�Living�Wage?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��No.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��It�is�70%.��That�is�the�figure.��You�compare�that�to�any�other�industry�and�it�shows�

there�is�serious�work�to�do.��I�do�not�think�it�would�be�undermining�tourism�or�damaging�to�business.��There�

have�been�strong�business�arguments�and�a�strong�business�case�for�introducing�the�living�wage�in�other�

sectors.��It�could�be�done�in�a�positive�way,�it�could�be�done�working�with�the�industry�and�it�is�something�in�

which�L&P,�even�if�it�is�only�facilitating�access�with�GLA�officials,�could�play�a�stronger�role.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��On�that�second�one,�we�have�facilitated�access.��Let�me�

reassure�you�on�that.��We�have�done�that�and�made�the�contacts.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��How�often�do�you�meet�with�the�big�hotel�and�restaurant�chains�in�day-to-day�

operations?�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��As�a�group�or�individually,�it�will�vary.��We�bring�together�

the�key�hoteliers�and�other�big�attractions�that�work�with�us�on�promotion�and�that�contribute�to�the�costs�

toward�on�at�least�a�quarterly�basis.��We�try�to�bring�together�the�London�tourism�industry�once�a�year,�all�the�

companies�we�work�with,�about�800�companies,�and�we�typically�get�about�500�or�600�turn�up�to�that.��Then�

we�will�participate�in�things�like�the�annual�BHA�summit,�either�speaking�or�being�on�panels�or�participating.��

We�have�pretty�regular�dialogue�and�of�course�the�BHA�is�one�of�the�members�of�L&P�and�so�is�effectively�one�

of�the�owners�of�L&P.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Just�to�reiterate,�the�Mayor�did�speak�at�its�conference�or�

summit�this�year�and�he�made�this�very�point.��It�is�not�as�though�we�have�not�done�it.�

�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��No.��It�sounds�like�it�is�an�open�door�that�could�be�pushed�further.��Clearly,�the�Mayor�

and�City�Hall�officials�have�done�some�things�and�used�these�opportunities�so�far.�

�

I�am�wondering�if�L&P�could�make�a�commitment�to�include�it�as�part�of�the�work�plan.��Yes,�it�is�not�core�

business�but�you�could�have�it�as�part�of�your�business�plan.��The�living�wage�has�been�an�important�issue�for�

this�Mayor�and�the�last�Mayor.��It�is�likely�to�be,�I�am�sure,�for�the�next�one.��Given�the�particular�problems�in�

this�particular�industry,�it�would�not�seem�unreasonable�to�include�a�commitment�to�promoting�the�

London�Living�Wage�in�the�hospitality�and�catering�industry�in�the�business�plan�of�L&P.�

�

Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�Officer,�L&P):��I�would�be�very�happy�-�and�we�could�do�it�after�this�

meeting�-�to�sit�down�with�the�City�Hall�colleagues�who�are�leading�on�these�areas�and�to�agree�a�plan�with�

them�as�to�how�we�can�help�them�and�facilitate�them�over�the�next�12�months.�

�

Page 59



 

�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��Yes,�and�a�facilitative�approach�is�the�right�one.��There�does�seem�to�be�opportunities�

there.��Some�have�been�used�but�I�am�sure�many�more�could�be�taken.��It�would�be�nice�to�see�some�thought�

going�into�this�and�it�being�formalised�in�the�business�plan.��Thank�you�for�both�your�answers.�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Will�you�ensure�that�anyone�you�go�into�a�commercial�relationship�with�in�the�hospitality�

industry�has�an�up-to-date�slavery�and�human�trafficking�statement,�as�required�by�the�Modern��Slavery�Act�

[2015]?���

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��What�you�are�now�doing�is�putting�bureaucracy�on�to�us�and�it�

is�not�our�function.��We�are�trying�to�encourage�these�companies.��We�are�trying�to�get�them�to�provide�some�

of�their�money�for�tourism�in�London�and�you�are�then�asking�us�to�fulfil�an�entirely�different�role,�which�is�not�

our�role,�as�the�regulator.��I�must�say�to�you�that�it�would�be�inappropriate�for�us�to�be�doing�that.��If�that�is�

the�issue,�then�it�should�be�done�by�others.���

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��It�would�be�a�criminal�offence�for�a�company�with�a�turnover�of�greater�than�£36�million�

not�to�have�a�human�trafficking�statement.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��Yes,�but�it�is�not�our�job�to�be�the�policemen�of�that.��It�is�the�

job�of�other�people�to�be�the�policemen�of�that.��Other�people�are�paid�to�do�that.���

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Clearly,�the�Slavery�Bill�made�it�the�job�of�everybody�to�make�sure�that�human�trafficking�

was�out�of�the�supply�chain.��That�was�the�key�point�of�the�Slavery�Bill:�that�the�supply�chain�should�be�clean�

of�human�trafficking.��Bearing�in�mind�that�there�are�trafficked�people�in�London�who�are�working�in�the�

hospitality�industry�-�and�when�you�are�a�trafficked�person�working�in�the�hospitality�industry�you�do�not�say,�

“I�am�a�trafficked�person�working�in�the�hospitality�industry”,�because�of�your�marginal�immigration�status�-�it�

therefore�requires�some�other�agencies�to�ensure�that�those�instances�of�human�trafficking�are�not�taking�

place.��Is�it�not�the�duty�of�the�Mayor�to�ensure�that�his�commercial�relationships�are�entered�into�with�clean�

hands?�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��I�am�suggesting�to�you�that�documents�are�a�matter�for�other�

people�to�be�patrolling�and�not�for�us.��I�am�totally�sympathetic�to�what�you�are�trying�to�achieve�but,�also,�

you�are�now�putting�a�bureaucracy�on�to�L&P�to�go�out�to�organisations.��We�are�in�dialogue�with�over�800�

organisations�in�the�tourism�field�from�large�to�small�and�you�are�asking�us�to�start�asking�them�for�that�kind�of�

documentation.��Quite�frankly,�they�are�going�to�look�at�us�and�wonder�what�kind�of�organisation�we�are.��It�

will�damage�our�relationships�with�them�and�I�do�not�think�it�is�appropriate�for�us.��If�that�is�an�aim�of�the�

mayoralty�--�

�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��It�is�not�what�I�am�asking�you�to�do.��It�is�what�the�Government�is�asking�you�to�do.�

�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�L&P):��--�then�it�should�be�done�by�other�people,�not�by�a�tourist�

organisation�such�as�ours.�

�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much.��All�right.��Can�I�ask�the�Assembly�if�there�are�any�

further�questions�on�the�opening�statements�that�have�not�been�answered�this�morning?��No?��Thank�you.�

�

I�thank�Sir�Edward�and�Mr�Innes�for�their�attendance�and�for�answering�the�Assembly’s�questions.���

�

Page 60



���������������������������������� �
�

Appendix 2 
�

Written�Answers�to�Questions�Not�Answered��

at�the�Plenary�Meeting�on�4�November�2015�

�

London's�overseas�reputation�
Question�No:�2015/3550�
Stephen�Knight��
To�what�extent�is�government�policy�and�rhetoric�over�immigration�and�uncertainty�over�EU�
membership�damaging�the�reputation�of�London�overseas�and�our�city's�economic�interests?�

Oral�response�

London�&�Partners'�strategic�delivery�
Question�No:�2015/3551�
Fiona�Twycross��
How�effective�is�London�and�Partners�in�delivering�jobs,�investment�and�tourism�for�London?�

Oral�response�

Tourism�in�Outer�London�
Question�No:�2015/3549�
Tony�Arbour��
What�more�will�you�be�doing�to�ensure�that�Outer�London�sees�an�increase�in�visitor�footfall?�

Oral�response�

A�fairer�London�
Question�No:�2015/3548�
Jenny�Jones��
What�is�London�&�Partners�doing�to�promote�the�living�wage�and�apprenticeships?�

Oral�response�

�

Page 61



Israeli�high�tech�
Question�No:�2015/3552�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�business�links�and�investment�have�you�made��with�Israeli�high�tech�companies?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

The�Israeli�economy�is�particularly�strong�in�high-tech�industrial�sectors,�such�as�software,�
telecoms�and�semiconductors,�as�well�as�biomedical�equipment�and�pharmaceuticals.�Tel�Aviv�
also�claims�to�have�the�highest�density�of�start-ups�in�the�world,�and�may�be�the�second-largest�
start-up�cluster�outside�California�by�volume.�

Since�2003,�L&P�has�attracted/assisted�23�Israeli�companies�to�invest�in�London,�making�Israel�
London’s�18th�largest�source�market.�In�their�first�year,�these�projects�created�157�jobs.�The�
projects�were�mainly�in�tech,�business�services�and�financial�services.�

L&P�is�forecasting�increasing�investment�from�Israel�in�the�coming�years.�During�the�past�two�
financial�years,�L&P�is�currently�influencing/supporting�35�Israeli�FDI�projects,�with�14�of�these�
identified�during�the�last�2�financial�years.�These�projects�are�concentrated�in�Fintech,�Adtech,�
E-commerce�and�cyber-security�sectors.�

The�US�remains�the�leading�destination�market�for�Israeli�FDI,�attracting�c.25%�of�all�outbound�
Israeli�FDI�projects.�The�UK�performs�less�well,�attracting�4%�of�projects,�making�it�the�7th�
largest�destination�market.�

However,�London�performs�disproportionately�better�and�is�the�third�ranked�city�for�Israeli�FDI�
after�New�York�and�Bucharest.�Moreover,�London�attracts�for�50%�of�all�Israeli�FDI�to�the�UK.�
Since�2003,�Israeli�FDI�into�London�has�created�an�estimated�9,960�jobs�and�£1bn�of�capital�
investment.�

Page 62



London's�Jewish�heritage�
Question�No:�2015/3553�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�efforts�have�you�made�to�promote�London's�Jewish�heritage�to�visitors?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

In�order�to�maximise�the�ROI�to�the�GLA,�L&P�focuses�its�leisure�tourism�marketing�activities�on�
its�largest�markets�by�value�and�volume:�the�USA,�France�and�Germany.�

However,�L&P�also�runs�VisitLondon.com�and�associated�social�media�platforms�(Facebook,�
Pinterest,�Instagram,�Twitter,�etc.)�

The�website�is�global�and�reaches�28�million�unique�users�every�year.�It�also�seeks�to�offer�the�
breadth�and�depth�of�London’s�tourism�offer,�and�features�Jewish�heritage�and�events�which�
are�open�to�the�public�and�of�potential�interest�to�tourists.�

VisitLondon.com�has�attraction�listings�which�relate�to�London’s�Jewish�heritage,�for�example:�

• The�Jewish�Museum�in�Camden�

• The�Czech�Memorial�Scrolls�Museum�

• The�Wiener�Library�Institute�of�Contemporary�History�

• The�Ben�Uri�Gallery�

L&P�also�promote�events�through�listings�and�social�media�posts.�Recent�examples�include�the�
Holocaust�exhibition�at�the�Imperial�War�Museum,�the�Jewish�Comedy�festival�at�JW3�and�the�
Judith�Kerr�exhibition�at�the�Jewish�Museum.�There�is�also�a�Kosher�restaurants�page.�

Additionally�'Chanukah�on�the�Square'�is�a�major�event�in�the�London�calendar.�It�is�included�in�
the�‘events�calendar’�page�on�visitlondon.com�as�one�of�the�top�15�events�in�London�for�the�
month�of�December.�

Visitors�from�the�rest�of�the�EU�
Question�No:�2015/3554�
Andrew�Dismore��
How�many�visitors�do�you�estimate�came�to�London�from�the�rest�of�the�EU�in�each�of�the�last�
3�years?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

L&P�can�provide�the�following�estimates,�which�come�from�the�ONS’s�International�Passenger�
Survey.��

�� 2012� 2013� 2014�

EU�Visitors�to�London�(m)� 8.8� 9.6� 10.1�
�

Page 63



Businesses�based�in�the�rest�of�the�EU�
Question�No:�2015/3555�
Andrew�Dismore��
How�many�businesses�based�in�the�rest�of�the�EU�have�you�helped�set�up�in�London�in�each�of�
the�last�3�years;�and�how�many�jobs�were�created�as�a�result?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

L&P�has�attracted�and�helped�the�following�number�of�EU�businesses�to�invest�in�London,�
which�created�the�following�number�of�jobs�during�the�first�investment�year:�

FDI:�

�� 2012-13� 2013-14� 2014-15�

Projects�from�EU� 53� 80� 62�

Year�1�jobs� 980� 855� 905�
�

Tour�de�France�grande�depart�(1)�
Question�No:�2015/3556�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�do�you�consider�the�impact�of�London's�last�minute�rejection�of�the��Tour�de�France�
grande�depart�will�be,�in�attracting�other�high�profile�sporting�events�and�visitors��to�London?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

London�hosts�some�of�the�world’s�largest�sporting�and�cultural�events.�These�include�regular�
blockbuster�events,�such�as�the�London�Marathon,�RideLondon�and�NFL�International�Series,�
as�well�as�one-off�events,�such�as�this�year’s�Rugby�World�Cup�and�2017’s�IAAF�World�
Championships.�

There�was�no�“last�minute�rejection”�of�the�Tour�de�France�grande�depart.�London�remains�
committed�to�hosting�sporting�and�cultural�events�that�provide�the�city�with�a�strong�return�on�
investment,�based�on�our�evaluation�of�economic,�media�and�community�impact.�The�decision�
not�to�host�the�2017�Grand�Départ�was�a�difficult�one�but�was�reached�for�sound�financial�
reasons.�The�decision�has�no�impact�on�our�ongoing�commitment�to�hosting�sporting�events�in�
London�and�we�are�sure�that�the�international�community�will�continue�to�see�London�as�a�
leading�destination�for�major�sports�events.�

Page 64



Tour�de�France�grande�depart�(2)�
Question�No:�2015/3557�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�do�you�estimate�the�revenue�to�London�businesses�and�services�would�have�been�as�a�
consequence�of�the�Tour�,�if�the��Tour�de�France�grande�depart�had�taken�place�in�2017�as�
originally�intended?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

The�cost�of�hosting�the�Grand�Depart�would�have�been�£35�million.�Initial�work�undertaken�by�
L&P�estimated�that�there�may�have�been�a�long-term�economic�benefit�return�in�excess�of�that�
amount�[around�£85�million�for�London].�However,�the�decision�had�to�weighed�against�having�
to�find�the�staging�costs�in�the�short-term,�when�other�competing�priorities,�such�as�the�cycle�
superhighway�must�be�funded.�It�would�also�be�at�a�time�when�the�effects�of�the�
Comprehensive�Spending�Review�are�not�fully�known.�This�was�a�difficult�choice�to�make,�but�
ultimately�the�right�one.�

Formula�1�
Question�No:�2015/3558�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�work�are�you�doing�on�bringing�a�Formula�1�race�to�London?�

Sir�Edward�Lister�(Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners)�&�Gordon�Innes�(Chief�Executive�
Officer,�London�&�Partners)��

We�have�not�had�any�recent�discussions�regarding�Formula�1.�However,�L&P�and�the�GLA�have�
been�heavily�involved�in�securing�the�Formula�E�event�for�London.�As�a�result,�the�final�two�
stages�of�the�Formula�E�event�race�season�will�be�hosted�in�London�for�the�coming�years.�Like�
Formula�1,�Formula�E�is�sanctioned�by�the�international�Governing�body,�the�FIA�(Fédération�
Internationale�de�l'Automobile).�

�

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



���������������������������������� �
�

Assembly�Plenary,�2�December�2015�

�

PRIORITY�ORDER�PAPER�

�

Report�No:���4�

Subject:��� Questions�and�Answer�Session�–�London�Fire�and�Emergency�
Planning�Authority�

Report�of:��� Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

�

LFEPA�Cuts�and�the�Safety�of�Londoners�
Question�No:�2015/3980�
Fiona�Twycross��
Since�2009/10,�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority�has�had�to�make�cuts�of�
£105.8�million�and�a�further�£50�million�has�been�taken�from�the�LFEPA�reserves.�Are�you�
confident�that�in�light�of�these�and�future�budget�cuts,�the�London�Fire�Brigade�will�continue�
to�be�fit�for�purpose�and�can�ensure�the�safety�of�Londoners?�

Dissolution�of�LFEPA�
Question�No:�2015/3981�
Tony�Arbour��
In�light�of�the�similar�responses�from�the�Mayor,�Assembly�and�Fire�Authority�to�the�
Government's�consultation�'Enabling�closer�working�between�the�Emergency�Services',�what�
impact�do�you�envisage�the�dissolution�of�LFEPA�and�the�establishment�of�a�Deputy�Mayor�for�
Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�would�have�on�the�London�Fire�Brigade?�

Impact�of�climate�change�on�your�work�
Question�No:�2015/3982�
Jenny�Jones��
Are�you�well�prepared�for�the�impact�that�a�changing�climate�might�have�on�the�Fire�Brigade's�
work�over�the�coming�decade?�

New�Technology�
Question�No:�2015/3983�
Stephen�Knight��
What�role�are�advances�in�technology�playing�in�the�Brigade's�work,�both�in�terms�of�new�
challenges�posed�and�new�tools�available�to�it,�or�likely�to�become�available�to�it�in�the�near�
future?�

�
Questions�not�asked�during�Plenary�will�be�given�a�written�response�by��
Monday�7�December�2015.�
�

Agenda Item 4

Page 67



Questions�for�Written�Answer�
�
�

Closure�of�Westminster�Fire�Station�
Question�No:�2015/3984�
Murad�Qureshi��
How�has�the�closure�of�Westminster�fire�station�impacted�attendance�times�in�the�City�of�
Westminster?�

Closure�of�Knightsbridge�Fire�Station�(1)�
Question�No:�2015/3985�
Murad�Qureshi��
How�has�the�closure�of�Knightsbridge�fire�station�impacted�attendance�times�in�the�City�of�
Westminster?�

Closure�of�Knightsbridge�Fire�Station�(2)�
Question�No:�2015/3986�
Murad�Qureshi��
How�has�the�closure�of�Knightsbridge�fire�station�impacted�attendance�times�in�the�borough�of�
Kensington�and�Chelsea?�

�

Page 68



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk




 

Subject:�Petitions



Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
2
December
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public
�
 





1.

 Summary

�

1.1� This�report�sets�out�details�of�petitions�to�be�presented�at�this�meeting�by�Assembly�Members.�

�

�

2.
 Recommendation




2.1
 That
the
Assembly
receives
and
notes
the
petitions
listed
at
paragraph
4
of
this
report


and
decides
whether
to
refer
the
petitions,
and
if
so
where
to,
and
seeks
a
response
to


the
points
raised.


�

�

3.
 Background




3.1� Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21�make�provision�for�the�presentation�of�petitions�by�an�Assembly�

Member�at�an�ordinary�meeting�of�the�Assembly.�

�

A�petition�to�be�presented�must:�

�

(a)�Be�addressed�to�the�Mayor,�the�Assembly,�a�Functional�Body�(as�the�case�may�be);�

�

(b)�Clearly�indicate�the�name,�address�and�contact�telephone�number�of�the�person�organising�the�

petition,�or�where�the�petition�was�organised�on�the�internet,�its�data�controller;�

�

(c)�Be�presented�in�the�form�of�printed�sheets,�each�of�which�includes�the�“prayer”�of�the�petition�

(the�“prayer”�is�the�formal�request�or�other�subject�matter�of�the�petition)�or,�if�the�petition�was�

organised�on�the�internet,�clearly�demonstrate�that�internet�users�who�subscribed�to�the�petition�

knew�what�the�prayer�was;��

�

(d)�Include�each�petitioner’s�name�(which�may�be�printed�or�be�in�the�form�of�a�signature,�provided�

that�the�signature�is�legible)�and�address�(sufficient�that�the�person�and�their�address�can�be�

identified)�or,�where�the�petition�was�organised�on�the�internet,�their�names�and�email�addresses;�

�

(e)�Indicate�the�total�number�of�manual�or�electronic�signatories�to�the�petition.�

Agenda Item 5

Page 69



        

�

(f)�Young�people�aged�17�or�under�signing�a�petition�may�give�their�address�as�that�of�the�school,�or�

other� recognised� youth� group� or� similar� organisation� that� they� attend� (with� details� of� their� class�

name�where�appropriate),�provided�that�the�lead�petitioner�is�a�teacher�at�or�leader�of�that�school�or�

youth�group�or�similar�organisation.�

�

(g)�Indicate�the�total�number�of�manual�or�electronic�signatories�to�the�petition;�and�




(h)�Refer�to�matters�within�the�responsibilities�of�the�Mayor,�the�London�Assembly�or�the�functional�

bodies,�or�to�matters�of�importance�to�Londoners,�including�those�who�visit,�live�or�work�in�Greater�

London.�

�

3.2� Notice�of�the�intention�to�present�a�petition�at�an�Assembly�meeting�and�a�copy�of�the�petition�must�

be�given�to�the�Executive�Director�of�the�Secretariat�by�no�later�than�12�noon�six�clear�working�days�

before�that�meeting.�

�

3.3� Under�Standing�Orders�the�Member�presenting�the�petition�will�read�out�the�prayer�of�the�petition�

(but�not�the�signatories).�The�Assembly�will�not�debate�the�petition.�If�the�Assembly�agrees�without�

debate,�the�petition�will�be�forwarded�to�the�Mayor,�Functional�Body,�relevant�committee�or�other�

organisation�with�a�request�for�a�response�to�the�points�made�by�the�petitioner.��The�response�

received�will�be�reported�to�the�Assembly�for�information�and�forwarded�to�the�petition’s�organiser.��

The�prayer�of�the�petition�and�the�response�received�will�be�published�in�the�appropriate�Assembly�

Minutes.�







4.
 Petitions
to
be
presented




4.1 Notice�of�the�following�petitions�has�been�received:�

�

4.2 A�petition,�received�by�Navin
Shah
AM,�is�to�be�presented�to�the�London�Assembly,�in�accordance�

with�Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21,�saying:�

�

‘We
the
undersigned
are
concerned
at
the
high
levels
of
harmful
exhaust
emissions,


including
Nitrogen
Dioxide,
from
diesel
engine
buses
on
Chamberlayne
Road.





We
call
on
the
Mayor
of
London
(Chair,
TfL),
Leon
Daniels
(MD,
TfL),
Cllr
Muhammed


Butt
(Brent
Council)
to
introduce
low
emission
hybrid
buses
on
all
7
bus
routes
through


Chamberlayne
Road
by
March
2016.’��

�

The�petition�has�1,100�signatories.���

�
The�contact�person�for�this�petition�is�Rick�Smith,�Kensal�Rise�Residents’�Association�(KKRA),�146�
Chamberlayne�Road,�NW10�3JR.�

�

[Note:�This�petition�is�associated�with�an�e-petition�hosted�by�Change.org�which�sets�out�a�further�

276�signatures.]��

�

Page 70



        

�

�

4.3 A�petition,�received�by�Caroline
Pidgeon
MBE
AM,�is�to�be�presented�to�the�London�Assembly,�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21,�saying:�




‘I
urge
the
Mayor
not
to
proceed
with
the
scrapping
of
all
1000
Police
Community
support


officers.’





The�petition�has�2,473�signatories.���

�

The�contact�person�for�this�petition�is�Pete�Dollimore,�96�Uxbridge�Road,�Hayes,�UB4�OJH.�



4.4 A�petition,�received�by�Darren
Johnson
AM,�is�to�be�presented�to�the�London�Assembly,�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21,�saying:�




‘In
the
first
half
of
2015,
lorries
were
involved
in
all
but
one
of
the
cycling
fatalities
in


London.





Collisions
with
lorries
are
the
biggest
cause
of
cyclist
deaths.





Sign
the
petition
–
tell
London’s
Mayor
to
get
lethal
lorries
off
our
roads
and:


• A
rush
hour
lorry
ban;


• Improved
driver
visions;
and


• Stronger
enforcement.’





 The�petition�has�13,022�signatories.




The�contact�person�for�this�petition�is�Simon�Munk,�London�Cycling�Campaign,�2�Newhams�Row,�

London,�SE1�3UZ.�

�

4.5 A�petition,�received�by�Jennette
Arnold
OBE
AM,�is�to�be�presented�to�the�London�Assembly,�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21,�saying:�

�

‘Transport
for
London
(TfL)
has
announced
plans
to
replace
the
two
lifts
at
Caledonian


Road
Tube
Station,
which
will
result
in
the
closure
of
the
station
for
8
months
from
4th


January
2016
until
mid-August
2016.





Islington
Council
has
written
to
TfL
making
it
clear
that
this
plan
is
not
good
enough.



We
the
undersigned
request
that
the
Mayor
of
London
instructs
TfL
to
consider
the


following
options
–



• Repair
one
lift
at
time
to
keep
the
station
open;


• Find
a
way
to
repair
two
lifts
in
far
less
than
8
months.





We
also
call
for
the
Mayor
of
London
to
urgently
review
TfL’s
decision
and
to
investigate


how
such
a
decision
was
taken
without
consultation
with
local
residents
or
the
local


council.’



Page 71



        

�

The�petition�has�558�signatories.




The�contact�person�for�this�petition�is�Cllr�Paul�Smith,�c/o�Islington�Town�Hall,�Upper�Street,�N1�

2UD.�

�



5.
 Legal
Implications

�

5.1� By�virtue�of�sections�59,�34�and�53�of�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended),�the�Assembly�has�the�power�

to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.��

�

5.2� Under�Standing�Order�3.20�the�petitions�presented�to�the�Assembly,�together�with�the�pages�

containing�the�names�and�addresses�of�the�signatories�to�the�petition,�are�documents�to�which�the�

access�to�information�rules�from�sections�100A�-�H�and�Schedule�12A�of�the�Local�Government�Act�

1972�apply.�

�

5.3� Any�applications�from�Members�to�see�the�names�and�addresses�of�the�signatories�to�the�petition�

will�be�considered�by�the�Executive�Director�of�the�Secretariat�on�a�case�by�case�basis�and�in�

accordance�with�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972�and�the�Data�Protection�

Act�1988.�







6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1� There�are�no�financial�implications�directly�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
None.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985



List�of�Background�Papers:�None.�

�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�

Email:� John.barry@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 72



                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk




 

Subject:�Motions

Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat




Date:
2
December
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public


�




1.
 Summary



�

1.1 The�Assembly�is�asked�to�consider�the�motions�set�out�which�have�been�submitted�by�Assembly�

Members.�

�

�

2.
 Recommendation
�



2.1 That
the
Assembly
considers
the
motions
submitted
by
Assembly
Members
as
set
out


below.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

3.1 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Jenny
Jones
AM�and�will�be�seconded��by�

Darren�Johnson�AM:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes:�

• recent�research�suggesting�that�“profound�and�immediate�changes”�are�now�required�to�keep�

average�global�warming�below�the�guardrail�of�2°C�and�that�global�greenhouse�gas�emissions�

must�peak�as�soon�as�possible�and�be�falling�by�10�per�cent�a�year�within�the�next�decade1.�

• analysis�of�the�draft�Paris�agreement�by�the�European�Commission�which�suggests�that,�with�the�

pledges�from�nations�so�far,�global�emissions�won’t�peak�until�20302,�and�further�analysis�

suggesting�that�on�the�basis�of�these�pledges�we�will�still�experience�global�average�warming�of�

2.7°C�of�warming�by�2100,�compared�to�warming�of�3.7°C�based�on�the�full�implementation�of�

existing�government�policies3.�

• reporting�by�the�Government’s�Committee�on�Climate�Change�that�UK�emissions�were�only�

falling�by�an�underlying�rate�of�1�per�cent�per�year,�when�at�least�3�per�cent�annual�reductions�

are�required�to�meet�the�its�current�policy�commitments4.�

                                                 
1�Anderson,�K�in�Nature�Geoscience�(12�October�2015),�Duality�in�climate�science�
2�https://ec.europa.eu/jrc/en/news/current-climate-commitments-would-increase-global-temperature-around-3-degrees��
3�Carbon�Tracker�initiative,�http://climateactiontracker.org/global.html��
4�https://www.theccc.org.uk/tackling-climate-change/reducing-carbon-emissions/how-the-uk-is-progressing/  

Agenda Item 6

Page 73



        

• the�£9.6�billion�of�UK�government�subsidies�given�annually�to�fossil�fuel�extraction�in�the�UK�and�

overseas,�equivalent�to�£350�per�household,�which�the�March�2015�budget�further�increased�

while�reducing�support�for�renewable�energy5,�while�the�Energy�Secretary�has�admitted�the�UK�

government�will�miss�its�legally�binding�renewable�energy�target�for�2020�due�to�“the�absence�of�

a�credible�plan”6.�

�

This�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to:�

• protect�climate�change�programmes�in�his�2016-17�budget,�including�the�safeguarding�of�the�

London�Climate�Change�Partnership�following�funding�cuts�from�the�Environment�Agency;�

• urge�fellow�city�leaders�at�the�C40�meetings�in�Paris�to�adopt�the�strongest�possible�measures�to�

reduce�greenhouse�gas�emissions;�and�

• make�this�climate�emergency�a�top�priority�for�his�remaining�time�in�office,�particularly�when�

lobbying�the�government.”�

��

�

3.2 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Jenny
Jones
AM�and�will�be�seconded�at�

the�meeting:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�recommendation�of�the�Airports�Commission�that�a�carbon�tax�is�imposed�

on�flights�by�2030�to�remain�within�emissions�targets�agreed�with�the�Committee�on�Climate�

Change.�

�

This�Assembly�notes�that�last�year�more�than�half�of�British�adults�took�no�flights,�that�only�one�in�

ten�took�more�than�four�flights,�and�that�15%�-�the�frequent�flyers�-�take�over�70%�of�all�our�flights,�

mostly�for�leisure�purposes7.�This�Assembly�notes�the�proposal�in�light�of�these�figures�from�the�‘a�

free�ride’�organisation�to�introduce�a�frequent�flyer�levy,�providing�every�person�with�one�tax�free�

return�flight�each�year,�and�progressively�taxing�further�flights�at�higher�rates�thereafter8.�

�

This�Assembly�believes�such�a�proposal�could�provide�a�fairer�way�to�implement�a�carbon�tax�on�

Londoners’�flights,�and�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�commission�a�study�on�its�feasibility�and�

potential�impact�from�GLA�Economics.”�

�

�

3.3 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Jenny
Jones
AM�and�will�be�seconded�at�

the�meeting:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�considerable�public�interest�in�the�Concession�Agreement�between�the�

London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC)�and�West�Ham�United�FC�for�their�rental�of�the�

Olympic�Stadium.�

�

                                                 
5�Overseas�Development�Institute�(November�2015),�Empty�promises:�G20�subsidies�to�oil,�gas�and�coal�production,�
http://www.odi.org/sites/odi.org.uk/files/odi-assets/publications-opinion-files/9957.pdf��
6�The�Ecologist�(9�November�2015),�Leaked�letter:�Rudd�admits�25%�green�energy�undershoot,�misled�Parliament,�
http://www.theecologist.org/News/news_analysis/2986190/leaked_letter_rudd_admits_25_green_energy_undershoot_misled_
parliament.html��
7�Analysis�of�DfT�(23�July�2014),�Public�experiences�of�and�attitudes�towards�air�travel:�2014,�
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/public-experiences-of-and-attitudes-towards-air-travel-2014��
8�http://afreeride.org/  

Page 74



        

This�Assembly�believes�the�LLDC�was�wrong�to�redact�the�released�document,�and�was�wrong�to�

appeal�the�Information�Commissioner’s�ruling�that�the�document�should�be�published�in�full.�

�

This�Assembly�therefore�calls�on�the�LLDC�to�drop�its�appeal�against�the�Information�Commissioner’s�

ruling�and�to�publish�the�Concession�Agreement�in�full.”�

�

�

3.4 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Caroline
Pidgeon
MBE�AM�and�will�be�

seconded�at�the�meeting:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�Mayor’s�supportive�response�to�its�previous�motion�expressing�concern�

over�staffing�changes�and�restructuring�at�the�Newsquest�Group,�whose�publications�include:��

�

The�Croydon�Guardian,�Sutton�Guardian,�Epsom�Guardian,�Wimbledon�Guardian,�Wandsworth�

Guardian,�Balham�and�Tooting�Guardian,�Mitcham�and�Morden�Guardian,�Kingston�Guardian,�Surrey�

Comet,�Elmbridge�Comet,�Richmond�&�Twickenham�Times,�and�The�News�Shopper�-�for�Lewisham,�

Greenwich,�Bexley�and�Bromley.�

�

This�Assembly�agrees�with�the�Mayor�that�local�newspapers�are�part�of�the�fabric�of�London’s�local�

communities�and�play�a�vital�role�in�informing�people�about�grassroots�subjects�that�matter�to�

Londoners.�

�

This�Assembly�believes�that�local�newspapers�continue�to�be�a�key�source�of�information�for�many�of�

London’s�diverse�communities,�and�perform�a�powerful�public�scrutiny�function�by�holding�local�

government�and�other�organisations�to�account�for�their�actions.����

�

This�Assembly�is�concerned�by�the�recent�announcement�that�Newsquest�is�to�move�eight�posts�on�

its�titles�in�south�London�to�its�production�centres�in�Weymouth�and�Newport�–�a�move�which�the�

Assembly�believes�will�threaten�the�quality�and�long�term�survival�of�local�papers�in�south�London.�

�

This�Assembly�therefore�calls�on:��

�

1) The�Mayor�to�write�to�the�CEO�of�Newsquest�Group�expressing�further�concern�over�the�

relocation�of�local�media�jobs�outside�London.�

�

2) The�Chair�of�the�London�Assembly’s�Economy�Committee,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�

Leads,�to�include�the�contribution�of�local�newspapers�to�London’s�economy�and�their�role�in�

connecting�local�communities�and�businesses�together�in�the�list�of�future�topics�for�possible�

investigation�identified�through�the�Committee’s�work�programme.”��

�

�

3.5 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Valerie
Shawcross
CBE
AM�and�will�be�

seconded�at�the�meeting:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�positive�environmental�and�health�effects�of�walking�and�wishes�to�see�

London�become�a�safer�city�for�pedestrians.�

�

Page 75



        

“This�Assembly�notes�the�Mayor’s�target�to�halve�the�number�of�people�killed�or�seriously�injured�on�

London's�roads�by�2020[1]�compared�to�the�Government�base�line�of�3,627.[2]��

�

“This�Assembly�believes�that�a�target�of�1,813�people,�or�fewer,�being�killed�or�seriously�injured�on�

London’s�roads�by�2020�is�still�too�high.��

�

“This�Assembly�believes�that�the�Mayor�should�adopt�a�Vision�Zero�approach�to�road�danger,�which�

incorporates�four�key�principles:��

• Safety:�road�traffic�systems�should�take�account�of�the�fact�that�people�make�mistakes�and�

should�minimise�both�the�opportunity�for�error�and�the�harm�done�when�they�do�occur.��

• Ethics:�human�life�and�health�have�highest�priority.��

• Responsibility:�those�who�design�and�manage�road�systems�share�responsibility�with�road�

users.��

• Mechanisms�for�change:�We�must�all�be�ready�to�change�to�achieve�safety.��

�

“This�Assembly�further�notes�than�Vision�Zero�combines�strong�enforcement�of�traffic�law�and�better�

roadway�engineering�with�campaigns�to�discourage�dangerous�behaviour�on�roads.�It�also�aims�to�

raise�the�profile�of�traffic�safety�problems�and�help�change�cultural�attitudes,�which�are�too�

accepting�of�road�death�and�injury.�

�

“This�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�and�TfL�to�take�a�bold�approach�to�pedestrian�safety.�We�need�

ambitious�targets�to�drive�forward�progress�on�pedestrian�safety,�the�political�will�to�make�difficult�

decisions,�and�clear�leadership�to�build�the�momentum�to�change�our�roads�and�streets�for�the�

better.�Adopting�Vision�Zero�principles�for�London’s�road�safety�policy�could�change�public�

perception�of�road�dangers�as�an�inevitable�part�of�modern�city�life.�It�would�remind�people�that�

death�and�injury�on�our�roads�can�be�avoided�if�a�serious�effort�is�made�to�tackle�the�causes�of�the�

problem.”��

�

�

3.6 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Murad
Qureshi
AM�and�will�be�seconded�

at�the�meeting:�

�

“Around�17,000�domestic�workers�are�brought�to�the�UK�each�year�to�work�in�some�of�the�most�

exclusive�residential�areas�of�London9.�Migrant�domestic�workers�are�particularly�vulnerable�to�

exploitation10�and�evidence�suggests�that�low�pay,�physical�and�mental�abuse,�long�working�hours,�

and�trafficking�are�endemic.�Reports�of�abuse�and�exploitation�are�rare�and�to�date�there�has�been�

no�conviction�upheld�for�trafficking�an�adult�to�the�UK�for�domestic�servitude11.�

�

                                                 
[1]�https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/media/press-releases/2015/june/mayor-takes-action-to-halve-road-casualties-by-2020��
[2]�http://content.tfl.gov.uk/casualties-in-greater-london-2014.pdf  
9�http://www.kalayaan.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/Kalayaan-3-year-briefing.pdf��
10�Domestic�work�by�its�nature�is�carried�out�in�the�home�of�the�employer,�out�of�sight�from�the�outside�world�regulatory�bodies.�
Migrant�domestic�workers�also�often�live�in�the�home�of�their�employer�which�further�increases�their�vulnerability�to�abuse�and�
exploitation.��
11�Kalayaan�Briefing:�Research�on�Police�Effectiveness�in�the�Protection�of�Migrant�Domestic�Workers�

Page 76



        

The�situation�is�exacerbated�under�the�current�visa�rules12,�introduced�in�2012,�which�tie�domestic�

workers�to�their�employer13.�Critics�of�the�tied-visa�claim�that�the�UK�government�has�recreated�

kafala,�a�much�criticised�sponsorship�system�used�in�Gulf�States,�which�is�turning�migrant�workers�

into�modern�day�slaves14.���

�

The�Mayor’s�response�to�the�issue�is�that�MOPAC’s�victim�strategy�pays�careful�attention�to�ensure�

the�best�possible�reach�of�resources�to�all�victims�of�crime15.�More�could�be�done�to�make�sure�that�

convictions�are�upheld�and�to�stop�abuse�from�happening�in�the�first�place.��

�

This�Assembly�therefore�welcomes�the�suggestion�made�by�the�Government’s�Anti-Slavery�

Commissioner,�Kevin�Hyland,�for�an�inspections�system�designed�to�assess�the�welfare�of�domestic�

workers16.�However,�concerns�that�such�regulation�would�be�ineffectual�under�the�current�tied-visa�

must�be�taken�into�account�when�considering�future�policies�to�protect�domestic�workers.��

�

We�understand�that�the�recommendations�of�an�independent�review�of�the�tied-visa�commissioned�

by�the�Minister�for�Modern�Slavery�and�Organised�Crime,�Karen�Bradley,�are�due�to�be�announced17.�

Given�the�barrier�to�justice�for�domestic�workers�that�the�tied�visa�presents,�this�Assembly�calls�on�

the�Mayor,�in�his�capacity�as�the�de�facto�Police�and�Crime�Commissioner�for�London,�to�write�to�the�

Home�Secretary,�making�the�case�for�the�tied-visa�to�be�repealed.”�

�

�

3.7 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Andrew
Dismore
AM
and�will�be�

seconded�by�Tom�Copley�AM:�

�

“This�Assembly�rejects�the�shameful,�decades-old�practice�of�blacklisting�that�has�in�the�UK�

construction�industry,�ruined�the�lives�of�thousands�of�workers�and�their�families18.�The�wide�scale�

nature�of�blacklisting�was�illustrated�by�the�Information�Commissioner’s�2009�raid�on�the�offices�of�

the�notorious�Consulting�Association,�which�uncovered�a�blacklist�containing�the�names�of�

thousands�of�construction�workers19.��

�

Over�thirty�large�construction�companies�used�the�Consulting�Association�database,�which�contained�

information�about�construction�workers’�personal�relationships,�trade�union�activity,�and�

employment�history20.�This�Assembly�notes�that�most�of�the�workers�on�the�blacklist�of�the�

Consulting�Association�were�trade�unionists,�many�of�them�blacklisted�for�raising�legitimate�health�

and�safety�concerns�with�their�employer.��

�

This�Assembly�is�therefore�concerned�to�learn�that�Keir�Group�–�a�founder�member�of�the�Consulting�

Association21�–�is�involved�in�the�building,�development,�and�maintenance�of�the�nine�PFI�fire�

                                                 
12�Since�April�2012�migrant�domestic�workers�who�enter�the�UK�on�the�Overseas�Domestic�Worker�visa�are�tied�to�their�employer,�
if�the�worker�leaves�for�any�reason�they�will�have�breached�the�immigration�rules.��
13�http://www.kalayaan.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/Kalayaan-3-year-briefing.pdf��
14�http://www.theguardian.com/world/2015/mar/17/uk-tied-visa-system-turning-domestic-workers-into-modern-day-slaves��
15�http://questions.london.gov.uk/QuestionSearch/searchclient/questions/question_281962��
16�http://www.standard.co.uk/news/uk/wealthy-foreigners-face-spot-checks-on-domestic-staff-to-stamp-out-slavery-
a3109971.html��
17�http://www.theguardian.com/world/2015/mar/17/uk-tied-visa-system-turning-domestic-workers-into-modern-day-slaves� 
18�Nigel�Morris,�Thousands�of�workers�'blacklisted'�over�political�views,�Independent,�06.08.12�
19�Ibid�
20�Dave�Smith�and�Phil�Chamberlain,�On�the�blacklist:�how�did�the�UK’s�top�building�firms�get�secret�information�on�their�
workers?,�Guardian,�27.02.15�
21�Scottish�Affairs�Committee�(2013),��Ninth�Report�Blacklisting�in�Employment:�Interim�Report�

Page 77



        

stations�that�are�being�constructed�across�London.�This�is�especially�disappointing,�given�the�

Mayor’s�categorical�statement�in�2013�that:�

�

“I�do�not�condone�or�tolerate�the�blacklisting�of�workers,�whether�for�raising�health�and�safety�

concerns�or�for�any�other�reason.”22�

�

This�Assembly�is�determined�that�blacklisting�should�never�occur�again�and�calls�on�the�Mayor�to�

emphasise�to�all�functional�bodies�that�every�employee�must�be�protected�in�raising�health�and�

safety�concerns�and�their�fundamental�right�to�trade�union�membership�without�the�fear�of�reprisals�

be�upheld;�and�calls�on�LFEPA�to�examine�whether�its�internal�procurement�processes�and/or�

commercial�law�allows�it�to�exclude�contractors�that�have�been�implicated�in�the�practice�of�

blacklisting,�such�as�Kier�Group.”�
�
�
�

�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
None.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None.�

�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�

Email:� john.barry@london.gov.uk�




                                                 
22�Mayor�of�London’s�response�to�16�January�2013�Plenary�motion�on�blacklisting,�05.03.13 

Page 78



                                                                    

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Action
Taken
by
the
Chair
Under

Delegated
Authority



Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
2
December
2015




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�
 



1.
 Summary



�

1.1 This�report�requests�the�Assembly�to�note�recent�action�taken�by�the�Chair�of�the�London�Assembly�

under�delegated�authority.�





2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Assembly
notes
the
recent
action
taken
by
the
Chair
of
the
London
Assembly,


Jennette
Arnold
OBE
AM,
under
delegated
authority,
namely
not
to
hold
a
confirmation


hearing
in
respect
of
the
proposed
reappointment
of
Gareth
Bacon
AM
as
Chairman
of
the


London
Fire
and
Emergency
Planning
Authority
for
the
period
1
December
2O15
to


16
June
2016.








3.
 Background



�
3.1� The�Mayor�wrote�to�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly�on�5�November�2015�regarding�the�reappointment�of�

Gareth�Bacon�AM�as�the�Chairman�of�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority.�A�copy�of�

the�letter�from�the�Mayor�is�attached�as�Appendix
1.�



4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

 

4.1� In�accordance�with�the�provisions�of�Schedule�4A�to�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999�as�

amended�(the�“GLA�Act”),�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly�has�delegated�authority�to�(i)�decide�whether�

to�hold�a�confirmation�hearing�for�the�Mayor’s�candidate�for�appointment�to�any�of�the�offices�listed�

in�Section�60A(3)�of�the�Act;�and�(ii)�to�request�that�the�Mayor’s�candidate�for�appointment�

produce,�under�paragraph�6(4)�of�Schedule�4A�of�the�GLA�Act,�documents�that�relate�to�his�or�her�

proposed�appointment.�

�

4.2� Accordingly,�following�informal�consultation�with�Assembly�Group�Leaders,�the�Chair�decided�that�

on�this�occasion�it�was�not�necessary�to�hold�a�confirmation�hearing�in�relation�to�the�Mayor’s�

Agenda Item 7

Page 79



        

proposed�reappointment�of�Gareth�Bacon�AM�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�LFEPA.�The�Chair’s�letter�

of�response�to�the�Mayor�is�attached�as�Appendix
2.�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1
 
There�are�no�direct�legal�implications�arising�from�this�report.






6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


Appendix�1�–�Letter�from�the�Mayor�to�the�Chair�of�the�London�Assembly�dated�5�November�2015�

Appendix�2�–�Letter�from�the�Chair�of�the�London�Assembly�to�the�Mayor�dated�10�November�2015�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�Member�Delegated�Authority�Form�646�

�

Contact�Officer:� Rebecca�Arnold,�Committee�Services�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4411�

E-mail:� rebecca.arnold@london.gov.uk�

�

 

Page 80



Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Chair of the London Assembly  City Hall 
  The Queen’s Walk 

  More London 
  London SE1 2AA 
  Telephone: 020 7983 4000 
  Web: www.london.gov.uk 
 
Jennette Arnold OBE AM   

Member for North East London      10 November 2015 
Hackney, Islington and Waltham Forest 
 
 
Boris Johnson 
Mayor of London 
City Hall 
The Queen’s Walk 
London, SE1 2AA 
 
 
 
Dear Mayor 
 
Re: Proposed Reappointment to the Office of Chairman of the London Fire and 
Emergency Planning Authority 
 
Thank you for your letter dated 5 November 2015, which advised of your proposed 
reappointment of Gareth Bacon AM to the office of Chairman of the London Fire and Emergency 
Planning Authority, for the period 1 December 2015 to 16 June 2016.   
 
I write formally to confirm that I have agreed that there is no need, on this occasion, to hold a 
confirmation hearing in respect of Gareth Bacon’s reappointment.   
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 

Jennette Arnold OBE AM 
Chair of the London Assembly 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Direct telephone: 020 7983 4349  Email: jennette.arnold@london.gov.uk 

 Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript of Item 3
	Minutes - Appendix 2 - Written Answers

	4 Question and Answer Session - London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
	5 Petitions
	6 Motions
	7 Action Taken by the Chair under Delegated Authority
	Action Taken by the Chair under Delegated Authority - Appendix 1
	Action Taken by the Chair under Delegated Authority - Appendix 2


